METRO
FLOOD

Board Agenda - Revised DIVERSION
AUTHORITY

Diversion Board of Authority

June 27, 2024 @ 3:30 p.m. CST
This meeting will be in-person at Fargo City Hall Commission Chambers (225 4% St N,
Fargo, ND 58102) and online.

1. Callto Order
a. Roll Call of Members

2. Approve minutes from May 23, 2024
[Attachment 00.01] (Pg. 3)

3. Approve Order of Agenda
4. CONSENT AGENDA — APPROVE THE FOLLOWING:
a. Finance Report [Attachment 01.00] (Pg. 9)
b. Voucher Approval [Attachment 02.00] (Pg. 33)
c. MOUs and Agreements [Attachment 03.00] (Pg. 52)

i. Minnkota Power Coop. & MFDA SWDCAI MOU Amendment 1 [Attachment 03.01]
(Pg. 55)

ii. Raymond Township & MFDA SWDCAI MOU [Attachment 03.02] (Pg. 58)
iii. SEWUD & MFDA SEAI & UMA MURA [Attachment 03.03] (Pg. 92)

iv. USACE, ND SHPO & MFDA MOA Log Cabin Relocation in the UMA
[Attachment 03.04] (Pg. 188)

d. DA Board Approval Contract Actions [Attachment 04.00] (Pg. 198)
i.  C-Three Media New Agreement [Attachment 04.01] (Pg. 200)
REGULAR AGENDA:
5. Co-Executive Director Update

a. MFDA Human Resources Transition Plan Update
[Attachment 05.00] (Pg. 203)

b. Executive Director Next Steps
[Attachment 06.00] (Pg. 205)

6. General Counsel Update John S.

a. Resolution Amending the Appointment of Members to the Diversion Authority Board and
Land Management Committee of the MFDA [Attachment 07.00] (Pg. 206)



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 2 of 247

7. Construction Project Updates

a. USACE Project Update
[Attachment 08.00] (Pg. 209)

b. SWDCAI Project Update
[Attachment 09.00] (Pg. 211)

c. Project Safety Update
[Attachment 10.00] (Pg. 212)

d. Drone Footage Video
8. Communications Team Update Amy W.
9. Land Management Update

a. Property Acquisition Status Report
[Attachment 11.00] (Pg. 213)

b. OINs 9191Y1 and 9741Y Excess Land Recommendation
[Attachment 12.00] (Pg. 219)

c. OIN 7234B Excess Land Recommendation
[Attachment 13.00] (Pg. 234)

10. Finance Update
11. Other Business.
12. Next Meeting:  July 25, 2024

13. Adjournment

MEDIA AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION INFORMATION

There are multiple ways to attend or watch this public meeting.

- View the Meeting on Fargo TV or at www.TVFargo.com

- View the Meeting on the City of Fargo’s Facebook or Twitter feed.
- View the Meeting at FMDiversion.com/Meeting

- View the Meeting at Twitter.com/FMDiversion



METRO
FLOOD

DIVERSION
AUTHORITY

Metro Flood Diversion Authority Board of Authority
Meeting Minutes

3:30 PM - May 23, 2024
City of Fargo Commission Chambers

A regular meeting of the Metro Flood Diversion Authority Board of Authority was held on May 23, 2024. The
following members were present: Shelly Carlson, Mayor, City of Moorhead; Dr. Tim Mahoney, Mayor, City of
Fargo; Chad Peterson, Cass County Commissioner; Chuck Hendrickson, Moorhead City Council; David Ebinger,
Clay County Commissioner; Kevin Campbell, Clay County Commissioner; Mary Scherling, Cass County
Commissioner; Tony Grindberg, Cass County Commissioner; John Strand, Fargo City Commissioner and Larry
Seljevold, Moorhead City Council.

Member(s) absent: Bernie Dardis, Mayor, City of West Fargo; Dave Piepkorn, Fargo City Commissioner and
Rodger Olson, Cass County Joint Water Resource District.

1. CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Carlson called the meeting to order at 3:30 PM. Roll call was taken, and a quorum was present.

2. APPROVE MINUTES FROM THE APRIL 11, 2024, MEETING
MOTION PASSED
Mayor Mahoney moved to approve the minutes from the April 11, 2024, meeting and Mr.
Campbell seconded the motion. On a voice vote, the motion carried.

3. APPROVE MINUTES FROM THE APRIL 25, 2024, MEETING
MOTION PASSED
Mr. Strand moved to approve the minutes from the April 25, 2024, meeting and Mr. Ebinger
seconded the motion. On a voice vote, the motion carried.

4, APPROVE ORDER OF THE AGENDA
MOTION PASSED
Mr. Campbell moved to approve the order of the agenda and Mr. Grindberg seconded the
motion. On a voice vote, the motion carried.

CONSENT AGENDA
MOTION PASSED
Mrs. Scherling moved to approve the Consent Agenda and Mr. Ebinger seconded the motion. On
a roll call vote, the motion carried.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 4 of 247

5. CO-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS UPDATE
Mr. Wilson provided an update on the MFDA employee manual, noting that the one being utilized compiled
by High Road Partners, has not been approved by the board.
MOTION PRESENTED
Mr. Peterson moved to eliminate the MFDA employee manual that is currently being utilized and
for staff to fall under the Cass County personnel manual for HR related services. Mr. Ebinger
seconded the motion. Additional dialogue continued without a vote.

Mr. Wilson stated that time will be needed to transition MFDA staff to the Cass County manual to ensure
that there will be no disruption or negative impacts on DA employees. Mayor Carlson asked for an
additional motion to reiterate that staff will be treated fairly and not negatively impacted with the
transition.
AMENDED MOTION PASSED
Mr. Peterson amended his initial motion adding that MFDA staff will be treated fairly and without
any negative impact as they transition to the Cass County personnel manual. Legal counsel, along
with the co-executive directors, will review the Cass County manual to develop a plan, and any
changes that will affect MFDA staff negatively will be brought to the board for review and/or
approval. Mayor Mahoney seconded the motion and on a roll call vote with Mr. Strand voting
“nay”, the motion carried.

Mr. Redlinger provided the following executive director recruitment update:

On May 7, 2024, the Metro Flood Diversion Authority's Planning Committee discussed the recruitment and
selection process for the MFDA Executive Director. The appointment procedure for the Executive Director
position is outlined in the Diversion Authority’s Joint Powers Agreement (JPA).

To support the Planning Committee’s discussion of this item, the Co-Executive Directors compiled
background material from previous search processes the Board authorized in the 2017-2019 timeframe.
The previous search processes, like the one today, focused on the solicitation, recruitment, interview
process, and placement of the MFDA Executive Director-designee. A link to the May 7, 2024, Planning
Committee agenda packet is below for your reference and includes historical documents for background
and use by the full Board.

May 7, 2024, MFDA Planning Committee Agenda Packet:
https://fmdiversion.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024/05/May-Planning-Committee-Packet.pdf

At the conclusion of the Planning Committee's May 7th discussion, it was requested that the Co-Executive
Directors provide the full Board of Authority with the current position description for review and to request
any feedback Board Members have on the current position description. An electronic copy of this position
description is attached for reference.

Request: Please send any suggestions or requested changes to the position description by Tuesday, May 21,
2023, by email to: MRedlinger@FargoND.gov. Proposed revisions will be summarized by the Co-Executive
Directors and presented to the Board of Authority at your May 23, 2024, regular meeting. At that time, a
proposed schedule of events will be discussed with the Board of Authority, and the Board will be requested
to provide its approval of the final position description and search process parameters, including the
advertising and recruitment phase. It is intended that the Executive Director advertising and recruitment
will begin shortly after this approval on May 23rd.

MOTION PASSED

Mayor Mahoney moved to have the co-executive directors work with county and city HR teams

to rewrite the executive director position description; it will go to the Planning Committee for

review and to the board for final approval. Mr. Grindberg seconded the motion and on a roll call

vote, the motion carried.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 5 of 247

6. GENERAL COUNSEL UPDATE
a. Resolution Amending the Appointment of Members to the Land Management Committee of the MFDA
Mr. Shockley provided an overview and summary outlining the above-referenced resolution:
MOTION PASSED
Mayor Mahoney moved to approve the resolution as presented and Mr. Ebinger seconded the
motion. On a roll call vote, the motion passed.

b. Resolution Related to the Automatic Issuance and Exchange of Temporary Authority Loan
Improvement Warrants
Mr. Shockley provided an overview and summary outlining the above-referenced resolution:
MOTION PASSED
Mr. Grindberg moved to approve the resolution as presented and Mayor Mahoney seconded the
motion. On a roll call vote, the motion passed.

7. CONSTRUCTION PROJECT UPDATES
a. USACE Project Update
Mr. Bakkegard provided the following USACE update:
1 Diversion Inlet Structure (DIS) — Construction
Structure includes 3-50 ft. wide Tainter gates. Construction is 99% complete. Construction completion
date will be revised pending outcome of modifications to the gate machinery design. Schedule for
remaining work: 2024: Complete operating machinery corrections; turf established.
2 Wild Rice River Structure (WRRS) — Construction
Structure includes 2-40 ft. wide Tainter gates. Construction is 97% complete. Construction completion
date will be revised pending outcome of modifications to the gate machinery design. Schedule for
remaining work: 2024: Complete operating machinery corrections; resolve punchlist items; turf
established.
3 [-29 Raise — Construction
Includes approximately 4 miles of interstate raise between County Roads 16 and 18. Construction is
99% complete. Final inspection held 3 January 2024; turf establishment to be extended to 26 July 2024.
Planning for O&M documents and turnover is ongoing.
4 Red River Structure (RRS) - Construction
Structure includes 3-50 ft. wide Tainter gates. Construction is 56% complete. Construction completion
date is 19 March 2026. Placing concrete for downstream baffle blocks, fabricating gates. Tainter
gate #1 delivery is complete and assembly on site is pending.
5 Drain 27 Wetland Mitigation Project Plantings - Construction
Native plantings 5-year contract awarded 17 May 2023. Remaining seeding is in progress. Completion
date for wetland establishment is 1 December 2027.
6 Drayton Dam Mitigation Project Design - Construction
Construction is complete. Turnover to MFDA for O&M occurred on 28 Nov 2023. Willow plantings
partially completed; remaining requires low water conditions.
7 Southern Embankment — Reach SE-2A - Construction
Construction is 69% complete. Contractor mobilizing to commence work after winter break.
Scheduled completion date is 30 September 2024.
8 FY2024 Contract Awards:
OHB Ring Levee: Awarded 22 February
Reach SE-1B: Awarded 27 February
Reach SE-2B: Awarded 11 March
Forest Mitigation: Bid protest is delaying contract work
Reach SE-4: Bid opening on 7 May; 6 bids received. Contract award planned for May/June 2024.
Apparent Low Bid: $23,893,746 by PWS, Inc., Brooklyn Park, MN



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 6 of 247

Government Estimate: $37,485,404

9 Southern Embankment Design: Remaining Reaches:

SE-3: Final review starts 10 June 2024 ............ccc........ Contract award: January 2025

SE-5: 95% review starts 10 July 2024 ............ccccueennee. Contract award: January 2025

10 Supplemental Environmental Assessment — Diversion Channel

Issued to disclose updated designs and impacts. FONSI signed and the final SEA was posted 6 May 2024.

b. SWDCAI Project Update
Mr. Bakkegard provided an update of the construction map that shows current work in progress, 30 and 60
day projected progress:
New Features Under Construction
e Rush River Inlet
e Drain 14B Inlet
® CR-6 Sheyenne Aqueduct
30 to 60 Day Outlook
e Lower Rush River Inlet
e Channel Reach 10
e Channel Reach 11
e Drain 21C Inlet
e Drain 50 Inlet
Misc. Highlights
e Channel Excavation
* CR-4/31 Crossing
e BNSF Hillsboro
e Maple River Aqueduct

c. Project Safety Update

Mr. Bakkegard provided the safety update for the period April 1, 2024, to April 30, 2024, and reported that
it was a good month with only two minor incidents. The team has officially worked over one million hours
on the project.

d. Drone Footage Video
A drone video highlighting the progress that has been achieved since April 2024 was viewed.

8. COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE
Ms. Willson provided the following Communications update:
Faces of the Diversion: Alex Offerdahl released in May; Capt. Kyle Volk to be released in June
Construction Update Videos: Current Event videos on Red River Structure and 1-29 crossing
Media Relations:
*  April Construction Update release
* Educating on DRB process
* Blog on crop insurance programs
* USACE: OHB Open House
* ASN: Safety week food donation

9. LAND MANAGEMENT UPDATE
a. Property Acquisition Status Report
Ms. Smith provided the following property acquisition status report:
*  95.4% completion in the Construction Footprint
* 49.1% completion in the UMA Footprint
* 88.7% of the parcels in the Southern Embankment have been acquired



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 7 of 247

10.

11.

12.

* 49.1% of the parcels in the Upstream Mitigation Area have been acquired

* 74.3% of the Environmental Easements have been signed

* 99.0% of the parcels in the Stormwater Diversion Channel have been acquired

*  97.4% of the Oxbow-Hickson-Bakke levee

* 100% MFDA constructed in-town levees and the Drayton Dam mitigation is completed

Key Activities:

* Continue negotiating settlement agreements for existing eminent domain actions
* Reached a mediated settlement on 6 parcels / 5 owners (4 ND, 1 MN)

* Inthe last month, successfully closed 3 parcels / 1 landowner group (all in ND)

* Held landowner informational meeting for the Wolverton project with BRRWD

* Supported a pre-construction meeting for the OHB project with USACE

* Developing a tracking system for release of temporary construction easements

* Continuing farmland leases for 2024

FINANCE UPDATE

Finance Report

Mr. Wilson reported that the bills payable through May 15, 2024, totaled $4,714,017, and the current net
position is $243,698,752. Mr. Wilson also reported that the two contracting actions that were presented
were approved as well as the bid award for WP52A to Industrial Builders, Inc., in the amount of $479,655.

OTHER BUSINESS

WP52A Bid Award

Mr. Bakkegard reported that the contract for Work Package 52A gravel resurfacing, Cass County, North
Dakota was publicly advertised, and three bids were received at the virtual public bid opening on April 25,
2024, at 1:00 PM.

Bids were received from Central Specialties, Inc., in the amount of $501,551; Industrial Builders, Inc., in the
amount of $479,655 and Park Construction Company, in the amount of $538,829. The engineers estimate
for the project was $459,002.

Jacobs (PMC), HMG LLC (EOR), and the Authority’s legal counsel have reviewed and evaluated the bid
documents and recommend the Metro Flood Diversion Authority award the contract for WP52A to
Industrial Builders, Inc., in the amount of $479,655, as the lowest responsive bidder.

MOTION PASSED

Mayor Mahoney moved to award the bid to Industrial Builders, Inc., and Mr. Ebinger seconded

the motion. On a roll call vote, the motion carried.

CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSIONS

Closed Executive Session pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 44-04-19.1, subdivision (2) and (5) and N.D.C.C. § 44-04-
19.2 in anticipation of reasonably predictable and pending civil or adversarial administrative proceedings
regarding the submittal of the ECR issue to the Technical Dispute Resolution Board and to receive external
P3 Litigation Counsel’s advice and guidance in anticipation of reasonably anticipated adversarial
administrative proceedings and disputes regarding the interrelated matters of the status and potential
application of Non-Compliance Points pursuant to the Project Agreement.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 8 of 247

14.

15.

*No final action concerning the topics discussed or considered during the above-described executive session
is anticipated to be taken after the above-described executive session so the Board will then proceed to the
second Closed Executive Session.

MOTION PASSED

Mr. Strand moved to go into executive session and Mr. Peterson seconded the motion. On a voice

vote, the motion carried.

Closed Executive Session pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 44-04-19.1, subdivision (2) (5) and (9) and N.D.C.C. § 44-04-
19.2 regarding an update from the Chair and External P3 Litigation and HR Counsel’s advice and guidance
regarding negotiating instructions and updates for a potential agreement with the Former Executive
Director.
MOTION PASSED
Mr. Grindberg moved to consecutively continue with the second executive session and Mr.
Hendrickson seconded the motion. On a voice vote, the motion carried. Members retreated to
the Red River Room at 4:53 PM.

A quorum returned to the Chambers at 6:36 PM.

NEXT MEETING
The next meeting will be June 27, 2024.

ADJOURNMENT
Mr. Peterson moved to adjourn, and Mr. Ebinger seconded the motion. The meeting adjourned at 6:36 PM.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 9 of 247

FM Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project
Fiscal Accountability Report Design Phase

As of 05/31/24
790: FM Diversion Project Fund 770: Budget Fund 773: Excess Capital Fund
2011-2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total 2021-2023 2024 Total 2023 2024 Total Grand Total
IRevenues
City of Fargo 229,263,214 39,900,525 41,606,950 43,281,539 9,826,518 363,878,746 - - - - - 363,878,746
Cass County 238,074,113 20,605,468 20,077,388 21,720,075 4,879,234 305,356,278 - - - - - 305,356,278
State Water Commission 270,967,976 44,928,872 21,249,909 337,146,758 - - - - - 337,146,758
State of ND - Legacy Fund - - 105,992,160 129,134,268 30,614,406 265,740,835 - - - - - 265,740,835
State of ND - SRF - - 1,272,652 8,316,726 2,731,423 12,320,801 - - - - - 12,320,801
Cass County Joint Water Resource District - 28,630,991 28,630,991 - - - - - 28,630,991
Other Agencies 706,805 - 706,805 - - - - - 706,805
City of Oxbow MOU Repayment 2,822,634 122,038 2,944,671 - - - - - 2,944,671
Reimbursements 168,602 52,055 18,930 15,735 255,322 - - - - - 255,322
Lease/Rental Payments 2,951,681 622,459 743,700 744,622 16,500 5,078,962 - - - - - 5,078,962
Asset Sales 1,235,569 1,802,265 1,348,132 4,125,699 303,705 8,815,371 - - - - - 8,815,371
Interest Income 4,790,772 1,011,554 1,377,312 7,208,616 3,347,850 17,736,103 - - - - - 17,736,103
Miscellaneous 4,886 7,336 1,987 70,350 567 85,127 3,320,850 692,050 4,012,900 - - - 4,098,027
Total Revenues 750,986,254 137,683,563 193,689,120 214,617,631 51,720,203 1,348,696,770 3,320,850 692,050 4,012,900 - - - 1,352,709,670
|Expenditures
7905 Army Corp Payments 53,159,000 - - 24,800 - 53,183,800 - - - - - - 53,183,800
7910 WIK - Administration 6,125,744 2,650,150 1,994,938 3,221,009 866,414 14,858,255 3,249,868 506,655 3,756,523 - - - 18,614,779
7915 WIK - Project Design 36,316,433 2,261,337 2,491,982 4,347,833 957,209 46,374,794 - - - - - - 46,374,794
7920 WIK - Project Management 70,718,325 13,629,756 14,935,064 14,936,935 4,156,388 118,376,468 - - - - - - 118,376,468
7925 WIK - Recreation 278,223 - - - - 278,223 - - - - - - 278,223
7930 LERRDS - North Dakota 275,657,728 42,321,398 53,946,968 73,284,991 14,118,421 459,329,507 - - - - - - 459,329,507
7931 LERRDS - Minnesota 4,982,754 3,832,050 5,722,668 5,714,157 14,018,131 34,269,760 - - - - - - 34,269,760
7940 WIK Mitigation - North Dakota 1,022,658 35,279,546 57,777 1,039,229 13,075 37,412,285 - - - - - - 37,412,285
7941 WIK Mitigation - Minnesota - 112,271 357,080 933,799 15,611 1,418,761 - - - - - - 1,418,761
7950 Construction - North Dakota 104,100,296 25,488,649 17,899,069 17,767,981 717,951 165,973,946 - - - - - - 165,973,946
7951 Construction - Minnesota - 210,000 669,048 - 879,048 - - - - - - 879,048
7952 Construction - O/H/B 33,612,243 2,070,541 646,144 118,976 32,830 36,480,734 - - - - - - 36,480,734
7955 Construction Management 11,598,799 180,481 137,041 1,062 5,322 11,922,705 - - - - - - 11,922,705
7959 SRF Construction - - 5,936,985 7,781,266 - 13,718,251 - - - - - - 13,718,251
7980 Operations & Maintenance 190,811 2,971 138,066 83,898 - 415,746 - - - - - - 415,746
7990 Project Financing 48,092,864 14,236,187 9,053,457 9,422,840 738,774 81,544,122 - - - - - - 81,544,122
7995 Project Eligible - Off Formula Costs - - - - - - - - - - - - -
7999 Non Federal Participating Costs 221,686 - - - - 221,686 - - - - - - 221,686
Total Expenditures 646,077,564 142,065,337 113,527,239 139,347,823 35,640,127 1,076,658,090 3,249,868 506,655 3,756,523 - - - 1,080,414,613

|Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers From Other Diversion Funds - - -
Transfers to Other Diversion Funds - 659,566 1,250,000 1,395,000 687,500 3,992,066 - - - - 3,992,066

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 659,566 1,250,000 1,395,000 687,500 3,992,066 - - - - - 3,992,066




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 10 of 247

FM Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project
Statement of Net Position
May 31, 2024

FM Diversion Project

Fund Budget Fund Grand Total

Assets
Cash $ 229,475,698 256,377 $ 229,732,075
Cash Horace 3.01 MIT 4,339,882 - 4,339,882
Cash BRRWD 8,645,371 - 8,645,371
Cash Held In Trust at BND

Excess Revenue Fund 695,578 - 695,578

Temp Debt Obligation Fund 1,866,838 - 1,866,838

Authority Loan Fund 76,764 - 76,764

P3 Reserve Fund 16,133,951 - 16,133,951

SRF Loan Reserve Fund 2,289,468 2,289,468

Revenue Fund 1,913 1,913
Prepaid Expense 4,633,885 - 4,633,885
Refundable Deposit 50,000 50,000

Total assets 268,209,349 256,377 268,465,725
Liabilities
Vouchers payable - - -
Retainage payable 138,488 - 138,488
Rent Deposit 18,750 - 18,750
Deferred Revenue 5,500 5,500
Total liabilities 162,738 - 162,738

NET POSITION $ 268,046,610 256,377 $ 268,302,987




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 11 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY Monday, June 17, 2024
Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024 Summary of Expenses

EXP-2024-05
Account Check Check Transaction Project Project
Number Date Number Vendor Name Amount Description Number Description
770-7910-429.11-00 \ 5/30/2024 \ 336193 \ Cass County Government \ $77,087.70 ‘ DIVERSION PAYROLL EXPENSE ‘ V00106 = EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Full Time Staff / Salaries $77,087.70
770-7910-429.20-01 \ 5/30/2024 \ 336193 \ Cass County Government \ $7,352.00 ‘ DIVERSION PAYROLL EXPENSE ‘ V00106 ‘ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Employee Benefits / Health Insurance $7,352.00
770-7910-429.20-03 \ 5/30/2024 \ 336193 \ Cass County Government \ $160.00 ‘ DIVERSION PAYROLL EXPENSE ‘ V00106 ‘ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Employee Benefits / Dental Insurance $160.00
770-7910-429.20-06 \ 5/30/2024 \ 336193 \ Cass County Government \ $29.20 \ DIVERSION PAYROLL EXPENSE \ V00106 \ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Employee Benefits / Vision Insurance $29.20
770-7910-429.21-01 \ 5/30/2024 \ 336193 \ Cass County Government \ $4,655.89 ‘ DIVERSION PAYROLL EXPENSE ‘ V00106 ‘ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Employee Benefits / Social Security $4,655.89
770-7910-429.21-02 \ 5/30/2024 \ 336193 \ Cass County Government \ $1,088.89 \ DIVERSION PAYROLL EXPENSE \ V00106 \ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Employee Benefits / Medicare $1,088.89
770-7910-429.22-07 \ 5/30/2024 \ 336193 \ Cass County Government \ $10,221.83 \ DIVERSION PAYROLL EXPENSE \ V00106 \ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Pension Benefits / Retirement $10,221.83
770-7910-429.33-37 \ 5/9/2024 \ 335750 \ HighRoad Partners, LLC ‘ $600.00 ‘ MAY HR PARTNER ‘ V09701 ‘ HR SERVICES
Other Services / HR Services $600.00
770-7910-429.34-15  5/23/2024 336107 Marco Technologies $2,042.84  DIVERSION IT SERVICES V10301 SERVICE AGREEMENT - IT
5/30/2024 336204 CONSOLIDATED COMMUNI $470.00 701-150-0113/0 INTERNET V00106 | EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Technical Services / Computer Services $2,512.84
770-7910-429.43-50 \ 5/30/2024 \ 336193 \ Cass County Government \ $392.00 \ DIVERSION MISC EXPENSES \ V00106 \ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Repair and Maintenance / Maintenance Service Contract $392.00
770-7910-429.53-20 5/30/2024 336193 Cass County Government $1,417.60 DIVERSION MISC EXPENSES V00106 = EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
y
Communications / Cellular Phone Service $1,417.60
770-7910-429.56-60 \ 5/30/2024 \ 336193 \ Cass County Government \ $1,552.00 \ DIVERSION MISC EXPENSES \ V00106 ‘ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
In State Travel / In State Travel Expenses $1,552.00

Report 59 Page 1 of 8



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 12 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

Summary Of Expenses

Monday, June 17, 2024

Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024
EXP-2024-05
Account Check Check Transaction Project Project
Number Date Number Vendor Name Amount Description Number Description
770-7910-429.61-10 ‘ 5/30/2024 ‘ 336193 ‘ Cass County Government $94.70 ‘ DIVERSION MISC EXPENSES ‘ V00106 | EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
General Supplies / Office Supplies $94.70
770-7910-429.68-30 ‘ 5/30/2024 ‘ 336193 ‘ Cass County Government $82.00 ‘ DIVERSION MISC EXPENSES ‘ V00106 ‘ EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Miscellaneous / Meeting Incidentals $82.00
770 Subtotal $107,246.65
790-7910-429.33-20 5/9/2024 335722 EIDE BAILLY LLP $622.75 DIVERSION CONSULTING V00102 = General & Admin. WIK
5/9/2024 335722 EIDE BAILLY LLP $12,336.25 DIVERSION AUDIT SERVICES V06406 | 2023 AUDIT
Other Services / Accounting Services $12,959.00
790-7910-429.33-25 6/5/2024 1104 OHNSTAD TWICHELL PC $96,464.47 AFP Ohnstad Twichell P V00102 | General & Admin. WIK
5/30/2024 | 336210 DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP $179,726.22 DIVERSION LEGAL SERVICES V00101 | Dorsey Whitney Legal
Other Services / Legal Services $276,190.69
790-7910-429.34-20 = 5/23/2024 336123 Neon Loon Communications, LL $22,125.50 COMMUNICATIONS SUPPORT V09601 | COMMUNICATIONS SUPPORT
5/30/2024 336190 C THREE MEDIA, LLC $8,340.35 VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICES V08601 | VIDEOGRAPHY
5/30/2024 336245 Michael H Klein $1,050.00 COMMUNICATIONS SUPPORT V07201 | COMMUNICATION CONSULTING
Technical Services / Marketing / Public Relat. $31,515.85
790-7910-429.34-56 ‘ 5/24/2024 | ES05240 ‘ City of Fargo $17,483.00 ‘ FISCAL AGENT FEE - 05/24 ‘ V05902 ‘ MONTHLY FISCAL AGENT FEE
Technical Services / FMDA Fiscal Agent Fees $17,483.00
790-7910-429.42-05 ‘ 5/23/2024 336024 ‘ Ambassador, Inc. $925.00 ‘ DIVERSION OFFICE CLEANING ‘ V10501 ‘ JANITORIAL SERVICES
Cleaning Services / Custodial Services $925.00
790-7915-429.33-05 = 5/23/2024 336081 HOUSTON-MOORE GROUP L $149,704.55 DIVERSION PROJECT V01633 | DESIGN & CONST. SUPPORT
5/23/2024 | 336081 HOUSTON-MOORE GROUP L $75,025.99 DIVERSION PROJECT V01634 = H&H MITIG. & PERMIT SUPPO
5/30/2024 336197 MOORE ENGINEERING INC $315.00 MOORE ENGINEERING, INC V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
Other Services / Engineering Services $225,045.54
790-7920-429.33-05 = 5/23/2024 336081 HOUSTON-MOORE GROUP L $312,973.16 DIVERSION PROJECT V01633 = DESIGN & CONST. SUPPORT
5/23/2024 | 336081 HOUSTON-MOORE GROUP L $39,872.45 DIVERSION PROJECT V01634 | H&H MITIG. & PERMIT SUPPO

Other Services / Engineering Services

$352,845.61

Report 59

Page 2 of 8



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 13 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

Summary Of Expenses

Monday, June 17, 2024

Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024
EXP-2024-05
Account Check Check Transaction Project Project
Number Date Number Vendor Name Amount Description Number Description
790-7920-429.33-79 | 5/16/2024 335900 CH2M Hill Engineers Inc $547,528.91 PROGRAM MGMT V00211 | CH2M HILL-6/2019-12/2021
5/16/2024 335900 CH2M Hill Engineers Inc $971,489.99 SUPPORT SERVICES V00212 = P3 PROCUREMENT SUPPORT
Other Services / Construction Management  $1,519,018.90
790-7930-429.33-05 5/2/2024 335496 DKJ Appraisal LLC $6,903.55 DKJ APPRAISAL V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
5/2/2024 335496 HDR Engineering, Inc. $24,738.53 HDR ENGINEERING INC V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
5/2/2024 335496 Prosource Technologies, Inc $9,260.46 PROSOURCE TECHNOLOGIES V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
5/2/2024 335496 SRF Consulting Group $32,169.65 SRF CONSULTING GROUP, INC V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
5/2/2024 335496 ULTEIG ENGINEERS INC $1,701.00 ULTEIG ENGINEERS, INC. V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
5/23/2024 336022 ADVANCED ENGINEERING I $162,379.15 DIVERSION PROJECT V00302 = PROGRAM MGMT SERVICES
5/23/2024 336081 HOUSTON-MOORE GROUP L $25,950.07 DIVERSION PROJECT V01633 | DESIGN & CONST. SUPPORT
5/23/2024 336081 HOUSTON-MOORE GROUP L $25,616.00 DIVERSION PROJECT V01634 = H&H MITIG. & PERMIT SUPPO
5/30/2024 336197 HDR Engineering, Inc. $14,198.75 HDR ENGINEERING V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
5/30/2024 336197 SRF Consulting Group $47,236.87 SRF CONSULTING GROUP V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
Other Services / Engineering Services $350,154.03
790-7930-429.33-25 5/2/2024 335496 Larkin Hoffman Attorneys $9,414.35 LARKIN HOFFMAN V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
5/2/2024 335496 OHNSTAD TWICHELL PC $75,887.28 OHNSTAD TWICHELL, PC V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
5/2/2024 335496 OHNSTAD TWICHELL PC $2,890.50 OHNSTAD TWICHELL, PC V01202 @ Cass Joint Water DPAC
5/2/2024 335496 OHNSTAD TWICHELL PC $10,287.00 OHNSTAD TWICHELL, PC V01203 | Cass Joint Water OHB
5/30/2024 336197 Larkin Hoffman Attorneys $6,438.50 LARKIN HOFFMAN V01201  Cass Joint Water ROE
5/30/2024 336197 OHNSTAD TWICHELL PC $4,085.50 OHNSTAD TWICHELL, PC V01203 | Cass Joint Water OHB
5/30/2024 336197 OHNSTAD TWICHELL PC $117,572.06 OHNSTAD TWICHELL, PC V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
Other Services / Legal Services $226,575.19
790-7930-429.33-32 | 5/30/2024 336197 CROWN APPRAISALS $4,000.00 CROWN APPRAISAL V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
5/30/2024 336197 CROWN APPRAISALS $6,000.00 CROWN APPAISAL V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
Other Services / Appraisal Services $10,000.00
790-7930-429.33-79 ‘ 5/16/2024 ‘ 335900 ‘ CH2M Hill Engineers Inc $28,602.89 ‘ PROPERTY ACQUISITION MGMT ‘ V00210 ‘ CH2M HILL-LAND ACQUISITON
Other Services / Construction Management $28,602.89
790-7930-429.34-65 ‘ 5/2/2024 ‘ 335496 ‘ 0859 - BACKLUND 1 $1,350.00 ‘ IRENE BACKLUND ‘ V01701 ‘ ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
Technical Services / Right of Entry Requests $1,350.00

Report 59

Page 3 of 8



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 14 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY Monday, June 17, 2024
Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024 Summary of Expenses

EXP-2024-05
Account Check Check Transaction Project Project
Number Date Number Vendor Name Amount Description Number Description
790-7930-429.38-99 5/2/2024 335496 Building & Grounds Managemen $3,500.00 | BUILDING AND GROUNDS V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 Title Company $50.00 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/16/2024 | 335966 NDSU BUSINESS OFFICE-BO $116,010.59 | WEATHER GAUGE AGREEMENT | V02703 | WEATHER GAUGE AGREEMENT

Other Services / Other Services $119,560.59

790-7930-429.52-70 |« 5/23/2024 336171 Watts and Associates, Inc. $39,349.62 CROP LOSS PROGRAM ‘ V06901 ‘ CROP INSURANCE DEVELOPMN
Insurance / Crop Insurance $39,349.62
790-7930-429.61-50 5/2/2024 335496 CASS COUNTY JOINT WATE $11.36 CASS COUNTY JOINT WRD V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
5/2/2024 335496 CASS COUNTY JOINT WATE $22.10 UPS V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
General Supplies / Postage $33.46
790-7930-429.62-51 5/2/2024 335496 Cass County Electric Cooperativ $558.46 CASS COUNTY ELECTRIC COOP V01701 =~ ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 336192 Cass County Electric Cooperativ $113.00 ACCT #1184422 DIVERSION V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 336197 Cass County Electric Cooperativ $676.02 CASS COUNTY ELECTRIC COOP V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
Energy / Electricity $1,347.48
790-7930-429.67-11 5/30/2024 336197 1912 - DUVAL 7 $1,035.00 DARWIN & SANDRA DUVAL V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 336197 8386 - LEO A & AMY M COSS $1,000.00 ALLLIANCE V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
Relocation / Residential Buildings $2,035.00
790-7930-429.67-12 5/2/2024 335496 1093N - RICHARD FARM ENT $104,644.00 GLASS IMPRESSIONS V01701 = ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 1112 - TERRY M & KRISTIE $2,803.80 JOSEPH SAUVAGEAU V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 1113 - TERRY M & KRISTIE $2,500.00 TERRY SAUVAGEAU V01701 = ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 1916 - RICHARD 1 $14,702.37 LARRY RICHARD V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 2014 - ODEGAARD 4 $22,453.00 CRATE CONSTRUCTION V01701 = ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 336197 1093N - RICHARD FARM ENT $47,440.74 GLASS IMPRESSION V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN

Relocation / Commercial Buildings $194,543.91

790-7930-429.68-10  5/30/2024 336197 Evan Holmen | $3]14213  EVAN HOLMAN | V01201 Cass Joint Water ROE
Miscellaneous / Miscellaneous $3,142.13

790-7930-429.68-22 ‘ 5/30/2024 ‘ 336234 ‘ HARWOOD TOWNSHIP ‘ $2,364.00 ‘LOST TAX REVENUE ‘ V09001 ‘ LOST TAX REVENUE
Miscellaneous / Lost Tax Revenue $2,364.00

Report 59 Page 4 of 8



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 15 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY Monday, June 17, 2024
Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024 Summary of Expenses

EXP-2024-05
Account Check Check Transaction Project Project
Number Date Number Vendor Name Amount Description Number Description
790-7930-429.71-30 5/2/2024 335496 0809N - KAREN OFFUTT $817,875.70 KAREN G OFFUTT TRUST V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 0830 - OFFUTT $817,875.69 KAREN G OFFUTT TRUST V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 0846 - BRANDT 6 $817,875.69 KAREN G OFFUTT TRUST V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 1883 - OFFUTT $817,875.69 KAREN G OFFUTT TRUST V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 9348 - BRANDT 6 $817,875.69 KAREN G OFFUTT TRUST V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 9993 - BIMLANDINC $541,183.99 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 9994 - MITCHELL $541,184.00 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 0233Y - CASS COUNTY JOIN $53,441.67 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 0507Y1 - CASS COUNTY JOIN ($19,939.14) | CASS COUNTY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 0510Y1 - CASS COUNTY JOIN (819,939.14) | CASS COUNTY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 0574Y1 - CASS COUNTY JOIN ($19,939.14) | CASS COUNTY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 0885Y1 - CASS COUNTY JOIN (819,939.14) | CASS COUNTY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 0897Y1 - CASS COUNTY JOIN ($19,939.14) | CASS COUNTY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 0922Y3 - CASS COUNTY JOIN (819,939.15) | CASS COUNTY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 1088Y - CASS COUNTY JOIN $53,441.66 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 1173N - HARVEY BRAKKEN $53,441.67 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 1185Y2 - CASS COUNTY JOIN ($19,939.15) | CASS COUNTY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
Land / Land Purchases $5,192,497.45
790-7930-429.71-31 5/2/2024 335496 1912 - DUVAL 7 $748,455.92 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 7209 - SCHMIDT AND SONS I $56,370.00 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 8678X - ALLEN & DAWN PRI $66.00 ALLEN AND DAWN V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/2/2024 335496 9744X - BETTE J DEEDE TRU $367.08 PTILLLP V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 0232 - HOLMEN 2 $812,435.00 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 0836 - RHEAULT 1 $812,435.00 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 1949 - HAMILTON $321,691.66 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 1956 - HAMILTON $321,691.67 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 5013 - MILTON ELLIS HOLM $812,435.00 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN
5/30/2024 | 336197 5036 - DALE L HAMILTON E $321,691.67 THE TITLE COMPANY V01701 | ND LAND PURCH-OUT OF TOWN

Land / Easements  $4,207,639.00

Report 59 Page 5 of 8



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 16 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

Summary Of Expenses

Monday, June 17, 2024

Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024
EXP-2024-05
Account Check Check Transaction Project Project
Number Date Number Vendor Name Amount Description Number Description
790-7931-429.33-05 | 5/30/2024 | 336201 Prosource Technologies, Inc $15,921.68 PROSOURCE TECHNOLOGIES V06201 | MCCJPA - MN ROE
5/30/2024 336201 SRF Consulting Group $12,473.45 SRF CONSULTING GROUP V06201 = MCCJPA - MN ROE
Other Services / Engineering Services $28,395.13
790-7931-429.33-25 ' 5/30/2024 336201 Larkin Hoffman Attorneys $21,508.90 LARKIN HOFFMAN V06201 | MCCJPA - MN ROE
5/30/2024 336201 OHNSTAD TWICHELL PC $100,078.34 OHNSTAD TWICHELL V06201 | MCCJPA - MN ROE
Other Services / Legal Services $121,587.24
790-7931-429.54-10 ‘ 5/30/2024 336201 ‘ The Hawley Herald $36.00 ‘ THE HAWLEY HERALD ‘ V06201 ‘ MCCJPA - MN ROE
Advertising / Legal Publications $36.00
790-7931-429.61-50 ‘ 5/30/2024 336201 ‘ FORUM COMMUNICATIONS $21.38 ‘ FORUM COMMUNICATIONS ‘ V06201 ‘ MCCJPA - MN ROE
General Supplies / Postage $21.38
790-7931-429.62-51 ‘ 5/30/2024 336201 ‘ RED RIVER VALLEY COOPE $114.41 ‘ RED RIVER VALLEY COOP ‘ V02301 ‘ MN LAND PURCHASES
Energy / Electricity $114.41
790-7931-429.67-11  5/30/2024 336201 1665 - ROOD $1,863.00  MORGAN BUTH & DAVID DOBIS V02301 | MN LAND PURCHASES
Relocation / Residential Buildings $1,863.00
790-7931-429.71-30 = 5/29/2024 12726 1650N - TODD A & JANEM B ($417,000.00) | RTRN LAND PMTS-SPLIT OIN V02301 = MN LAND PURCHASES
5/29/2024 12726 1815N - MOORHEAD CLAY C ($200.00) | RTRN LAND PMTS-SPLIT OIN V02301 | MN LAND PURCHASES
5/29/2024 12726 1829N - MOORHEAD CLAY C ($200.00) | RTRN LAND PMTS-SPLIT OIN V02301 = MN LAND PURCHASES
5/29/2024 12726 1836 - BLILIE 3 ($291,830.00) RTRN LAND PMTS-SPLIT OIN V02301 | MN LAND PURCHASES
5/29/2024 12726 1839 - CROWE 1 ($430,700.00) | RTRN LAND PMTS-SPLIT OIN V02301 = MN LAND PURCHASES
5/30/2024 336201 7215 - SCHMIDT AND SONS I $302,260.08 THE TITLE CO V02301 | MN LAND PURCHASES
Land / Land Purchases ($837,669.92)
790-7931-429.80-17 ' 5/30/2024 336201 CLAY COUNTY AUDITOR $9,042.00 CLAY COUNTY AUDITOR-TREAS = V02301 | MN LAND PURCHASES
5/30/2024 | 336201 WILKIN COUNTY AUDITOR $72.00 WILKIN COUNTY AUDITOR V02301 | MN LAND PURCHASES
Debt Service / Property Tax - FMDA $9,114.00
790-7940-429.33-06 = 5/16/2024 335890 BRAUN INTERTEC CORP $213.00 MATERIAL TESTING ‘ V00407 ‘ TASK ORDER #5
Other Services / Quality Testing $213.00

Report 59

Page 6 of 8



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 17 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

Summary Of Expenses

Monday, June 17, 2024

Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024
EXP-2024-05
Account Check Check Transaction Project Project
Number Date Number Vendor Name Amount Description Number Description
790-7950-429.33-05 | 5/23/2024 336081 HOUSTON-MOORE GROUP L $10,513.00 DIVERSION PROJECT V01633 | DESIGN & CONST. SUPPORT
5/30/2024 336267 MOORE ENGINEERING INC $17,503.35 REIMB MOORE ENGINEERING V08801 = RUSH RIVER-DRAIN EXPENSE
Other Services / Engineering Services $28,016.35
790-7950-429.33-06 ‘ 5/23/2024 ‘ 336035 ‘ BRAUN INTERTEC CORP $43,229.25 ‘ MATERIALS TESTING ‘ V00406 ‘ TASK ORDER #4
Other Services / Quality Testing $43,229.25
790-7950-429.41-05 ‘ 5/9/2024 ‘ 335702 ‘ Cass Rural Water $29.70 ‘ ACCT #18789 DIVERSION ‘ V05006 ‘ DIVERSION INLET UTILITY
Utility Services / Water and Sewer $29.70
790-7951-429.73-70 ‘ 5/23/2024 \ 336103 \ LTP Enterprises Inc. $13,919.00 ‘ DIVERSION PROJECT ‘ V12301 ‘ WP47C AGREEMENT
Infrastructure / Utilities $13,919.00
790-7952-429.33-05 ‘ 5/23/2024 ‘ 336081 ‘ HOUSTON-MOORE GROUP L $17,511.95 ‘DIVERSION PROJECT ‘ V01633 ‘ DESIGN & CONST. SUPPORT
Other Services / Engineering Services $17,511.95
790-7955-429.33-05 ‘ 5/23/2024 ‘ 336081 ‘ HOUSTON-MOORE GROUP L $3,591.75 ‘DIVERSION PROJECT ‘ V02827 ‘ IN TOWN LEVY MAINTENANCE
Other Services / Engineering Services $3,591.75
790-7990-429.33-05 5/2/2024 335496 MOORE ENGINEERING INC $4,292.50 MOORE ENGINEERING, INC V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
5/23/2024 336081 HOUSTON-MOORE GROUP L $94,991.28 DIVERSION PROJECT V01633 | DESIGN & CONST. SUPPORT
5/30/2024 336197 MOORE ENGINEERING INC $2,350.00 MOORE ENGINEERING, INC V01201 | Cass Joint Water ROE
Other Services / Engineering Services $101,633.78
790-7990-429.33-25 6/5/2024 1104 OHNSTAD TWICHELL PC $50,645.11 AFP Ohnstad Twichell P ‘ V00102 ‘ General & Admin. WIK
Other Services / Legal Services $50,645.11
790-7990-429.34-57 | 5/28/2024 12552 BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA $17,483.00 BND TRUSTEE FEE 5/24 V08502 = MONTHLY TRUSTEE FEE
5/21/2024 ES05240 BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA $2,041.08 CORRECT BND TRUSTEE FEE V08502 = MONTHLY TRUSTEE FEE
Technical Services / FMDA Trustee Fees BND $19,524.08
790-7998-555.90-81 = 5/24/2024 | ES05240 Diversion Admin Budget Transfe $0.00 ANNUAL ADMIN BDGT TRF-MAY ‘ VADMIN ‘ Diversion Administration
FMDA Admin. Budget Fund $0.00

790 Subtotal

$12,416,953.55

Report 59

Page 7 of 8



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 18 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY Monday, June 17, 2024
Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024 Summary of Expenses

EXP-2024-05
Account Check Check Transaction Project Project
Number Date Number Vendor Name Amount Description Number Description
Total Amount Invoiced this period: $12,524,200.20

$0.00 Less Paid Retainage

$12,524,200.20  Total Less Paid Retainage

Report 59 Page 8 of 8



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 19 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024

Monday, June 17, 2024

Cumulative Vendor Payments Since Inception (Paid Only)

Approved
Contract/Invoiced Outstanding
Vendor Name Amount Liquidated Encumbrance Purpose
LAND PURCHASE $387,505,032.97 $387,505,032.97 $0.00 ' Land Purchase
CH2M HILL ENGINEERS INC $153,344,991.12 $119,180,214.49 $34,164,776.63 | Project & Construction Management

HOUSTON-MOORE GROUP LLC

$94,554,195.48

$73,548,433.57

$21,005,761.91

Engineering Services

INDUSTRIAL BUILDERS INC $62,857,057.56 $62,857,057.56 $0.00 | 2nd St N Pump Station Project and 2nd St Floodwall, South of Pu
ARMY CORP OF ENGINEERS $53,183,800.00 $53,183,800.00 $0.00 | Local Share

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORIT $37,785,300.00 $37,785,300.00 $0.00 | Debt Service

RICHLAND-WILKIN JPA $35,000,000.00 $35,000,000.00 $0.00 | Economic Impact Relief Fund

OHNSTAD TWICHELL PC $23,294,980.20 $23,294,980.20 $0.00 | Legal Services

KEY CONTRACTING INC $20,315,278.41 $20,315,278.41 $0.00 | FM1413 - Oakcreek and Copperfield Court Levee

MEYER CONTRACTING $19,244,280.80 $19,244,280.80 $0.00 | WP-43CD and Gatewell - PVD & Surcharge Installation
INDUSTRIAL CONTRACT SERVICES INC $18,419,743.64 $18,419,743.64 $0.00 | 4th St Pump Station and 2nd Street Floodwall

ADVANCED ENGINEERING INC

$14,379,176.00

$12,588,424.04

$1,790,751.96

Lands Management and Public Outreach

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP $11,715,913.73 $11,715,913.73 $0.00 | Legal Services

WELLS FARGO $11,607,080.05 $11,607,080.05 $0.00 | Debt Service

DAKOTA UNDERGROUND $11,141,625.69 $11,141,625.69 $0.00 | Utility Relocation

LANDSCAPES UNLIMITED $11,007,612.78 $11,007,612.78 $0.00 | Golf Course Construction - Oxbow Country Club
OKEEFE, OBRIAN, LYSON & FOSS LTD $9,962,512.68 $9,962,512.68 $0.00 | FLDBUY - COF Flood Home Buyouts

CITY OF FARGO $7,863,647.73 $7,858,008.98 $5,638.75 | Utility Relocation, Accounting Svcs, Interest on Deficit Funds
MOORE ENGINEERING INC $7,814,729.35 $6,396,776.10 $1,417,953.25 | Engineering Services

ASHURST LLP $6,352,853.01 $6,352,853.01 $0.00 | PPP Legal Counsel

SRF CONSULTING GROUP $6,331,729.08 $3,279,493.82 $3,052,235.26 = Engineering Services

CASS RURAL WATER $6,286,446.51 $6,220,273.35 $66,173.16 | Utilities and Utility Relocation

NUSTAR PIPELINE OPERATING PARTNERSHIP $5,884,100.74 $5,867,251.62 $16,849.12 | Utility Relocation

HOUSTON ENGINEERING INC $5,597,480.73 $5,597,480.73 $0.00 | Engineering Services

ERNST & YOUNG $5,377,000.00 $5,017,370.30 $359,629.70 | P3 Financial Advisory Services

BRAUN INTERTEC CORP $4,774,098.26 $2,055,289.16 $2,718,809.10 | Materials Testing

CASS COUNTY GOVERNMENT

$4,583,462.89

$4,583,462.89

$0.00

Gravel on County Rd 17 Bypass

Report 60B

Page 1 of 6



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 20 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024

Monday, June 17, 2024

Cumulative Vendor Payments Since Inception (Paid Only)

Approved
Contract/Invoiced Outstanding
Vendor Name Amount Liquidated Encumbrance Purpose
PROSOURCE TECHNOLOGIES, INC $3,906,009.55 $3,438,374.43 $467,635.12 | Land Acquisition Services
RED RIVER VALLEY ALLIANCE LLC $3,776,558.86 $3,776,558.86 $0.00 | P3 Developer payments
CENTURYLINK COMMUNICATIONS $3,735,501.33 $3,605,328.31 $130,173.02 | Utility Relocation
RILEY BROS $3,656,841.67 $3,656,841.67 $0.00 | Construction - OHB Ring Levee & WP-28A
MAGELLAN PIPELINE $3,607,000.00 $2,852,375.85 $754,624.15 | Utility Relocation
RED RIVER VALLEY & WESTERN RAILROAD C $3,589,388.46 $3,589,388.46 $0.00 | Railroad Facilities and the Rail Property
BNSF RAILWAY CO $3,581,295.20 $3,581,295.20 $0.00 | Permits for In-Town Levee Projects
SCHMIDT AND SONS INC. $3,170,164.25 $2,920,822.83 $249,341.42 | Residential Demolition in Oxbow
CHS INC. $3,049,153.37 $3,049,153.37 $0.00 | Purchase Agreement (DB-1011)
PLENARY AMERICAS USA LTD $3,000,000.00 $3,000,000.00 $0.00  Stipend Payment for P3 RFP
CROWN APPRAISALS $2,851,230.00 $2,223,030.00 $628,200.00 | Flowage Easements Valuation and Appraisal Services
SELLIN BROS INC $2,814,909.59 $2,814,909.59 $0.00 | Riverwood Flood Risk Project - Construction
MINNESOTA DNR $2,636,755.60 $2,617,681.40 $19,074.20 | EIS Scoping and Permit Application
CASS COUNTY ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE $2,632,181.15 $2,182,689.77 $449,491.38 | Electrical Services
HDR ENGINEERING, INC. $2,574,791.12 $1,935,489.87 $639,301.25 | Engineering Services
PROGRAM ADVISOR SERVICES, LLC $2,510,982.87 $2,150,463.90 $360,518.97 | Program Consulting Services
OXBOW, CITY OF $2,383,317.16 $2,383,317.16 $0.00 | OXBOW MOU - LAND ADVANCE
LANDWEHR CONSTRUCTION INC $2,304,622.16 $2,304,622.16 $0.00 | In-Town and WP-43 Demolition Contracts
HOUGH INC $2,088,832.83 $2,088,832.83 $0.00 | Construction WP-42F.2 and Oxbow River Intake & Pumping Syst
CASS COUNTY JOINT WATER RESOURCE DI $2,051,172.83 $2,051,172.83 $0.00 | O/H/B Ring Levee, DPAC, Postage, Miscellaneous
EXCAVATING INC - FARGO $2,018,659.41 $2,018,659.41 $0.00 = Excavation and Utilities
ACONEX (NORTH AMERICA) INC $2,010,595.97 $1,547,273.06 $463,322.91 | Electronic Data Mgmt and Record Storage System
URS CORPORATION $1,805,670.90 $1,805,670.90 $0.00 | Cultural Resources Investigations
XCEL ENERGY-FARGO $1,702,121.19 $1,306,121.19 $396,000.00 | Utility Relocation
ULTEIG ENGINEERS INC $1,659,901.59 $1,491,659.09 $168,242.50 | Land Acquisition Services
REINER CONTRACTING INC $1,599,646.21 $1,599,646.21 $0.00 | El Zagal Flood Risk Management
WAGNER CONSTRUCTION INC. $1,476,462.45 $770,028.50 $706,433.95 | Utility Relocation

Report 60B

Page 2 of 6




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 21 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

Data Through Date:

Friday, May 31, 2024

Monday, June 17, 2024

Cumulative Vendor Payments Since Inception (Paid Only)

Approved
Contract/Invoiced Outstanding
Vendor Name Amount Liquidated Encumbrance Purpose
CASS COUNTY TREASURER $1,464,203.58 $1,464,203.58 $0.00 | Property Taxes
AECOM $1,401,419.14 $1,034,026.35 $367,392.79 | Cultural Resources Investigations
UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY $1,332,840.00 $546,145.00 $786,695.00 | Water Level Discharge Collection & Stage Gage Installation
AON RISK SERVICES CENTRAL INC $1,328,940.33 $1,250,003.83 $78,936.50 | Risk Advisory Services P3 Pre-Award
US BANK $1,205,546.13 $1,205,546.13 $0.00 | Loan Advance Debt Service Payments
CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIONS $1,082,548.57 $1,082,548.57 $0.00 | Utility Relocation
KPH, INC. $1,025,640.12 $1,025,640.12 $0.00 | WP-43D5 Construction
CITY OF HORACE $990,496.15 $990,496.15 $0.00 | Infrastructure Fund
MINNKOTA POWER COOPERATIVE $940,269.48 $565,269.48 $375,000.00 | Utility Relocation
CLERK OF DISTRICT COURT $939,044.32 $939,044.32 $0.00 A FLDBUY - COF Flood Home Buyouts
LARKIN HOFFMAN ATTORNEYS $923,298.01 $923,298.01 $0.00 | Legal Services
TERRACON CONSULTING ENGINEERS $887,718.41 $887,718.41 $0.00 | Materials Testing
SBA COMMUNICATIONS $851,648.91 $851,648.91 $0.00 | Utility Relocation
SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY L.P. $812,034.58 $812,034.58 $0.00 | Fiber Optic Relocation
COMPASS LAND CONSULTANTS, INC $804,820.00 $635,689.43 $169,130.57 | Property Appraisal Services
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTI $767,386.35 $767,386.35 $0.00 | WIFIA LOAN APPLCATION FEE
BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA $764,439.58 $764,439.58 $0.00 | Legal review fees
BORDER STATES PAVING, INC $762,980.64 $762,980.64 $0.00 | Street repairs
CC STEEL, LLC $755,550.09 $755,550.09 $0.00 | Lift Station Improvements
MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC $739,364.30 $739,364.30 $0.00 | Flood Mitigation - Royal Oaks Area - Construction
DAKOTA CARRIER NETWORK $727,348.58 $727,348.58 $0.00 | Utility Relocation
ERIK R JOHNSON & ASSOCIATES $686,572.23 $686,572.23 $0.00 | Legal Services
PATCHIN MESSNER VALUATION COUNSELORS $641,462.50 $490,383.75 $151,078.75 | Property Appraisal Services
METROPOLITAN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS $637,390.01 $637,390.01 $0.00 | Digital Aerial Photography
NEON LOON COMMUNICATIONS, LLC $635,958.00 $367,836.53 $268,121.47 | Communications Support
CLAY COUNTY AUDITOR $622,754.50 $622,754.50 $0.00 | Property Taxes - MN
NDSU BUSINESS OFFICE-BOX 6050 $606,145.00 $570,626.84 $35,518.16 | Ag Risk Study Services

Report 60B

Page 3 of 6




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 22 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY Monday, June 17, 2024

Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024 . . . .
Cumulative Vendor Payments Since Inception (Paid Only)

Approved
Contract/Invoiced Outstanding
Vendor Name Amount Liquidated Encumbrance Purpose
DUCKS UNLIMITED $587,180.00 $587,180.00 $0.00 | Wetland Mitigation Credits
AT&T $586,269.60 $586,269.60 $0.00 | Utility Relocation
LINNCO, INC. $534,003.11 $534,003.11 $0.00 | House Demo and Removal
MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS $531,980.41 $527,490.41 $4,490.00 | Utility Relocation
RED RIVER BASIN COMMISSION $501,000.00 $501,000.00 $0.00 | Retention Projects - Engineering Services
HOFFMAN & MCNAMARA CO. $491,334.67 $491,334.67 $0.00 | General Landscaping and Planting (WP-42G)
BUFFALO-RED RIVER WATERSHED DISTRICT $474,032.90 $474,032.90 $0.00 | Retention Projects - Engineering Services
RICK ELECTRIC INC $455,200.00 $455,200.00 $0.00 | Riverwood Flood Risk Project - Electrical
LTP ENTERPRISES INC. $452,519.00 $69,775.00 $382,744.00 | Test Holes and Test Well Drilling
RED RIVER VALLEY COOPERATIVE ASSOC $451,191.99 $451,191.99 $0.00 | Electricity - Home Buyouts
ROBERT TRENT JONES $440,431.73 $440,431.73 $0.00 | Oxbow MOU - Golf Course Consulting Agreement
WATTS AND ASSOCIATES, INC. $400,000.00 $384,638.59 $15,361.41 | Crop insurance product development services
BEAVER CREEK ARCHAEOLOGY $396,970.25 $369,370.25 $27,600.00 | Engineering Services
C THREE MEDIA, LLC $394,063.70 $354,123.41 $39,940.29 | Videography Services
MBA $380,636.36 $380,636.36 $0.00 | Golf course and pump house - Oxbow Country Club
MVM CONTRACTING $339,448.03 $339,448.03 $0.00 | Fiber Relocation
SWANSON HEALTH PRODUCTS, INC. $337,059.00 $337,059.00 $0.00 | FM1471 - Storm Lift Stations #55 and #56 - Drain 27
INTEGRA REALTY RESOURCES $320,750.00 $260,725.00 $60,025.00 | Property Appraisal Services
DFI BRIDGE CORPORATION $316,211.21 $316,211.21 $0.00 | Bridge Construction - Oxbow Country Club
FEDERAL STEEL SUPPLY, INC. $307,378.00 $307,378.00 $0.00 | OHB - 42 inch steel pipe
DIRT DYNAMICS $301,332.37 $301,332.37 $0.00 | HD18A1 - Oakcreek, Copperfield & Univerisy - Demo
GARY KILLEBREW $279,500.00 $279,500.00 $0.00 | Project Manager Services - Oxbow Country Club
TURMAN & LANG $277,139.55 $277,139.55 $0.00 | Legal Services
JR FERCHE INC. $277,004.58 $277,004.58 $0.00 | Water System Improvements
MOODYS INVESTORS SERVICE, INC. $274,375.00 $274,375.00 $0.00 | WIFIA loan fees
702 COMMUNICATIONS $266,892.07 $266,892.07 $0.00 | Utility Relocation
FORUM COMMUNICATIONS $248,935.13 $248,935.13 $0.00 | Advertising Services

Report 60B Page 4 of 6



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 23 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY Monday, June 17, 2024

Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024 . . . .
Cumulative Vendor Payments Since Inception (Paid Only)

Approved
Contract/Invoiced Outstanding
Vendor Name Amount Liquidated Encumbrance Purpose
PR FOR GOOD, INC $242,482.28 $242,482.28 $0.00 | Communications Support Services
FREDRIKSON & BYRON, PA $241,881.28 $241,881.28 $0.00 = Lobbying Services
PLEASANT TOWNSHIP $238,722.25 $238,722.25 $0.00 | Building Permit Application
NORTHERN IMPROVEMENT COMPANY $235,531.95 $235,531.95 $0.00 | CR-17 asphalt paving
MICHAEL H KLEIN $234,965.25 $90,471.10 $144,494.15 | Communications Support
DAWSON INSURANCE AGENCY $232,155.45 $232,155.45 $0.00 | Property Insurance - Home Buyouts
GRAY PANNELL & WOODWARD LLP $231,300.68 $231,300.68 $0.00 | Legal Services
APEX ENGINEERING GROUP INC $227,256.79 $227,256.79 $0.00 | Engineering
WILLIAM D. SCEPANIAK, INC. $226,235.21 $226,235.21 $0.00 ROADWAY RESHAPING & AGGREGATE SURFACING
GA GROUP, PC $204,229.32 $164,229.32 $40,000.00 = Government Relations
AMERICAN ENTERPRISES, INC. $200,281.00 $200,281.00 $0.00 = Construction/Demolition
CITY OF OXBOW MOU $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $0.00 = Oxbow Park Relocation MOU Amendment
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS, INC. $196,763.96 $196,763.96 $0.00 | Executive Coaching
SERKLAND LAW FIRM $189,803.71 $189,803.71 $0.00 | Legal services
MAPLETON, CITY OF $179,605.00 $87,870.22 $91,734.78 | Prelim Engineering Services
SPRINGSTED INCORPORATED $178,010.15 $178,010.15 $0.00 | Financial Advisor
KADRMAS LEE & JACKSON, INC. $176,164.00 $176,164.00 $0.00 | Engineering Services
LANDVEST, INC. $167,000.00 $0.00 $167,000.00 | Appraisal services
MUNICIPAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY $166,981.00 $166,981.00 $0.00 | Easement for Airport
SOIL BORINGS $166,232.50 $166,232.50 $0.00  Soil Borings
RED RIVER COMMUNICATIONS $160,943.20 $0.00 $160,943.20 | Fiber Relocation
KLJ ENGINEERING, LLC $156,242.25 $156,242.25 $0.00 | Lift Station Improvements
PFM PUBLIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT $146,460.00 $146,460.00 $0.00 | Financial Advisor
S&P GLOBAL RATINGS $145,625.00 $145,625.00 $0.00 | Ratings Evaluation Service
DAILY NEWS $143,075.16 $143,075.16 $0.00 | Advertising Services
CHAPMAN AND CUTLER $140,000.00 $140,000.00 $0.00 | Legal Services
EIDE BAILLY LLP $139,270.75 $120,220.75 $19,050.00 | Audit Services

Report 60B Page 5 of 6



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 24 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024

Cumulative Vendor Payments Since Inception (Paid Only)

Monday, June 17, 2024

Approved
Contract/Invoiced Outstanding
Vendor Name Amount Liquidated Encumbrance Purpose
QUANTUM SPATIAL, INC. $139,061.35 $139,061.35 $0.00 | Digital Aerial Photography
JT LAWN SERVICE LLC $137,044.00 $137,044.00 $0.00 | Mowing and weed control
FUGRO USA LAND, INC. $130,396.52 $130,396.52 $0.00 | Digital Aerial Photography
MARCO TECHNOLOGIES $125,554.72 $79,242.05 $46,312.67 | IT Services
SENTRY SECURITY, INC. $121,212.85 $121,212.85 $0.00 | Security Services
AFFINITEXT INC $118,630.00 $74,413.20 $44,216.80 | Document Management Services
ENVENTIS $115,685.62 $115,685.62 $0.00 | Utility Relocation
GE BOCK REAL ESTATE, LLC $112,590.00 $112,590.00 $0.00 | Property Appraisal Services
TINJUM APPRAISAL COMPANY, INC. $112,100.00 $112,100.00 $0.00 | Property Appraisal Services
OXBOW COUNTRY CLUB $110,391.68 $110,391.68 $0.00 | Golf Course - Oxbow
JORGE PAGAN $109,500.00 $109,500.00 $0.00 | Appraisal services
MAPLETON TOWNSHIP $108,030.00 $108,030.00 $0.00 | Lost tax revenue and attorney fees
DAVID CLARDY $105,215.05 $105,215.05 $0.00 | Home buyouts - easement
148 Vendors Report Totals:  $1,150,051,183.23 $1,076,544,459.98 $73,506,723.25

Report 60B

Page 6 of 6



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 25 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024

Parcel (OIN) Physical Location Summary

Monday, June 17, 2024

. PCT
Proj e?t / _ Acquired/  Cancelled  Acquired/  Remaining Cost To
Physical Location Parcels Sold OIN's (HC)  Cancelled OIN's Date
0 0% $0
UMA-W2 0 0% $0
BIOGEO 429 262 130 91% 37 $1,515,551
BIOGEO 299 261 1 88% 37 $743,866
HC 130 1 129 100% 0 $771,685
CHANNEL 708 501 206 100% 1 $98,977,759
ENV 1 0 0 0% 1 $0
HC 255 49 206 100% 0 $3,561,866
LAPO1 115 115 0 100% 0 $7,872,311
LAPO2 95 95 0 100% 0 $13,522,797
LAPO3 84 84 0 100% 0 $22,878,282
LEGACY 156 156 0 100% 0 $51,141,254
SE-1B 1 1 0 100% 0 $0
SheyMit 1 1 0 100% 0 $1,250
DOWNSTREAM 7 100% 0 $0
HC 7 100% 0 $0
Habitat Improveme 22 6 0 27% 16 $2,000
ENV 5 5 0 100% 0 $0
Habitat Shey 17 1 0 6% 16 $2,000
MOBILITY 123 0 1 1% 122 $0
DA_MOB37 MN 51 0 0 0% 51 $0
DA _MOB37 ND 19 0 0 0% 19 $0
DA MOB38TH 52 0 0 0% 52 $0
HC 1 0 1 100% 0 $0
FMDA Report 65 Page 1 of 3



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 26 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

Monday, June 17, 2024

Data Through Date: ~ Friday, May 31, 2024
Parcel (OIN) Physical Location Summary
PCT
Project / Acquired/  Cancelled  Acquired/  Remaining Cost To
Physical Location Parcels Sold OIN's (HC)  Cancelled OIN's Date
SEAILAND 507 447 41 96% 19 $96,305,429
DRAIN 27 41 41 0 100% 0 $22,657,154
HC 60 19 41 100% 0 $458,806
LEGACY 127 127 0 100% 0 $21,954,522
SE 129 10 10 0 100% 0 $4,383,360
SE-1 20 20 0 100% 0 $6,259,028
SE-1B 2 2 0 100% 0 $0
SE-2A 13 13 0 100% 0 $3,968,087
SE-2B 73 68 0 93% 5 $11,318,469
SE-3 12 12 0 100% 0 $1,009,802
SE-4 70 59 0 84% 11 $11,445,809
SE-5 24 21 0 88% 3 $1,406,309
SE-INLET 8 8 0 100% 0 $2,952,107
SE-RRCS 37 37 0 100% 0 $8,053,018
SE-WRCS 10 10 0 100% 0 $438,958
Sheyenne Mitigatio 3 1 0 33% 2 $1,750
SheyMit 1 0 33% 2 $1,750
WP36 100% $2,750
WRDAM 100% $2,750
WP38 1,032 338 377 69% 317 $95,591,687
HC 381 4 377 100% 0 $1,283,123
LEGACY 3 3 0 100% 0 $750
UMA 575 330 0 57% 245 $94,290,660
UMA-C 56 0 0 0% 56 $0
UMA-W 14 1 0 7% 13 $17,153
UMA-W2 3 0 0 0% 3 $0
WP40 18 8 10 100% 0 $48,923
DRAYTON 7 7 0 100% 0 $48,923
HC 10 0 10 100% 0 $0
LEGACY 1 1 0 100% 0 $0
WP42 66 49 4 80% 13 $37,850,061
HC 4 4 100% 0 $0
LEGACY 6 0 100% 0 $18,014,935
WP42 56 43 0 77% 13 $19,835,126
FMDA Report 65 Page 2 of 3



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 27 of 247
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

Data Through Date:  Friday, May 31, 2024

Parcel (OIN) Physical Location Summary

Monday, June 17, 2024

PCT

Project / Acquired/  Cancelled  Acquired/  Remaining Cost To

Physical Location Parcels Sold OIN's (HC)  Cancelled OIN's Date
WP43 268 121 147 100% 0 $79,807,670

Non-OIN Hard Land Cost 0 0 0 0% 0 $22,598,547
HC 148 1 147 100% 0 $500
LEGACY 6 6 0 100% 0 $3,589,519
WP43A 1 1 0 100% 0 $0
WP43B 11 11 0 100% 0 $1,942,138
WP43C 74 74 0 100% 0 $45,142,769
WP43D 14 14 0 100% 0 $5,271,226
WP43D5 5 0 100% 0 $1,175,055
WP43G 9 9 0 100% 0 $87,915

Totals 3,194 1,735 923 83% 536 $410,103,580

FMDA Report 65 Page 3 of 3



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 28 of 247

FM Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project

Lands Expense - Life To Date
As of May 31, 2024

Purchase Earnest Relocation Sale
Property Address Date Purchase Price Deposit Assistance Proceeds Total
Commercial Relocations - Fargo 16,099,989.70 - 16,300,462.10 (1,100.00) 32,399,351.80
Home Buyouts - Fargo 3,044,054.89 - 521,417.80 - 3,565,472.69
Home Buyouts - Moorhead 495,809.91 - 84,060.80 (8,440.00) 571,430.71

Home Buyouts - Oxbow

29,678,181.97

Home Buyouts - Hickson

1,031,674.37

Home Buyouts - Horace

7,604,598.67

Home Buyouts - Argusville

215,030.91

Easements - Fargo

504,716.00

Easements - Hickson

500.00

Easements - Oxbow

55,500.00

Easements - Diversion Inlet Control Structure

4,234,581.90

Easements - Piezometer

259,765.00

Easements - Minesota

1,542,370.79

Farmland Purchases

312,462,228.04

17,142,531.46

120,422.18

595,320.88

6,912.57

5,109,571.44

(368,167.87)

(19,216,329.99)

46,452,545.56

1,152,096.55

8,199,919.55

221,943.48

504,716.00

500.00

55,500.00

4,234,581.90

259,765.00

1,542,370.79

170,515,960.27



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 29 of 247

FM Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project
Lands Expense - Life To Date

As of May 31, 2024

Purchase Earnest Relocation Sale
Property Address Date Purchase Price Deposit Assistance Proceeds Total

Land Purchases 177,281,546.85 - 2,563,701.41 (9,356,287.99) 170,515,960.27
5515 174th St SE. Christine, ND Section 12-136N-49W, Richland County, ND 2/29/2024 962,175.56
Part of SW1/4 29-137-48 Clay County MN 2/8/2024 221,165.40
Part of the SW 1/4 SE1/4 34-137-48 Clay County MN 2/29/2024 210,070.00
SW 1/4 Sec 5-137N-48W Holy Cross Clay County MN 4/11/2024 225,877.76
Part of the South Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 29, Township 137 North, Range 48
West of the 5th Principal Meridian, Clay County, Minnesota 4/11/2024 391,183.71
31 137N 48W, Holy Cross Twp, Clay County, MN 5/2/2024 408,266.15
NE1\4 Section 12, Pleasant Township, Cass County, ND 5/2/2024 1,082,367.99
Government Lot One, of Section Thirteen, Township One Hundred Forty North of Range Forty-
nine West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, situated in the County of Clay and the State of
Minnesota 5/30/2024 302,260.08

377,229,002.15 - 39,880,699.23 (19,594,037.86) 397,515,663.52

Property Management Expense

Grand Total

6,321,263.65

403,836,927.17




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 30 of 247

FM Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project
In-Town Levee Work
as of May 31, 2024

Vcode # Vendor Name Descriptions Contract Amount Amount Paid
V02801 Industrial Builders WP42.A2 - 2nd Street North Pump Station $ 8,696,548.46 $ 8,696,548.46
V02802 Terracon Consulting WP-42 (In Town Levees) Materials Testing $ 884,070.41 $ 884,070.41
V02803 Consolidated Communications 2nd Street Utility Relocation $ 1,178,781.73 $ 1,178,781.73
V02804 702 Communications 2nd Street Utility Relocation $ 266,892.07 $ 266,892.07

WP-42A.1/A.3 - 4th St Pump Station & Gatewell and 2nd St
V02805 ICS Floodwall S $ 18,365,229.13 $  18,365,229.13
V02806 HMG WP42 - Services During Construction $ 6,513,429.90 $ 6,513,429.90
V02807 CCJWRD In-Town Levee Work $ 3,756,545.64 $ 3,756,545.64
V02808 City of Fargo Relocation of fiber optic along 2nd Street North $ 397,906.52 $ 397,906.52
V02809 AT&T 2nd Street Utility Relocation $ 586,269.60 $ 586,269.60
V02811 Xcel Energy 2nd Street & 4th Street Utility Relocations $ 769,791.73 $ 769,791.73
V02812 Industrial Builders WP-42F.1S - 2nd Street North Floodwall, South of Pump Station $ 16,720,591.15 $ 16,720,591.15
V02813 Landwehr Construction Park East Apartments Demolition $ 1,169,651.74 $ 1,169,651.74
V02814 Primoris Aevenia 2nd Street Utility Relocation $ 16,230.00 $ 16,230.00
V02815 Centurylink Communications 2nd Street Utility Relocation $ 2,660,937.92 $ 2,660,937.92
V02816 Landwehr Construction WP-42C.1 - In-Town Levees 2nd Street/Downtown Area Demo  $ 907,999.08 $ 907,999.08
V02817 Reiner Contracting, Inc WP-42H.2 - El Zagal Area Flood Risk Management $ 1,599,646.21 $ 1,599,646.21
V02818 Industrial Builders WP-421.1 - Mickelson Levee Extension $ 738,880.50 $ 738,880.50
V02819 Industrial Builders WP42F.1N - 2nd Street North $ 13,362,906.82 $  13,362,906.82
V02820 CH2M Hill WP42 - Construction Management Services $ 851,775.30 $ 851,775.30
V02821 Hough Incorporated WP42F.2 - 2nd Street South $ 1,639,524.33 $ 1,639,524.33
V02822 City of Fargo COF - 2016 O&M on Lifts $ 406,921.54 $ 406,921.54
V02823 Hoffman & McNamara WP-42G General Landscaping and Planting $ 491,334.67 $ 491,334.67
V02824 City of Fargo COF - In-Town Flood Protection Debt Payments $ 30,283,715.00 $ 30,283,715.00
V01703 Various In-Town Property Purchases $ 21,176,116.94 $  19,958,677.43
V02825 Industrial Builders WP-42E - 2nd Street South and Main Avenue Flood Mitigation $ 8,632,103.73 $ 8,632,103.73
V02826 City of Fargo In-Town Levee Maintenance $ 8,823.82 § 8,823.82
V054XX  City of Fargo In-Town Complementary Work - Reimbursements $ 39,289,243.78 $  39,289,243.78
$ $

181,371,867.72

180,154,428.21




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 31 of 247

Legacy Bond Fund Balance Report

As of 05/31/2024
Total Authorized

Current Allocation
Available funds remaining

Funds Requested

January
February
March
April

May

June

July
August
September
October
November
December
Total

Funds Received

May 2022

Jul 2022
Sep 2022
Dec 2022
Jan 2023
Apr 2023
Aug 2023
Nov 2023
Feb 2024
May 2024

Total

$ 435,500,000.00

$ 435,500,000.00
$ 169,759,165.27

2021 2022 2023 2024 Total
S - $ 2,942,906.60 S 9,981,188.76 S 6,088,699.53 S 19,012,794.89
$ - $ 456403617 S 8921,227.42 $ 9,838208.63 S  23,323,472.22
$ - $ 530289935 $ 17,730,94556 $ 14,687,498.12 S 37,721,343.03
$ - $ 147250437 $ 11,046323.21 $ - $ 12,518,827.58
$ - $ 1,450,140.38 $ 4,548883.57 $ - ¢ 5999,023.95
$ - $ 442386476 $ 14,466,204.50 $ - ¢  18,890,069.26
$ - $ 266399240 $ 397451598 $ - ¢ 6,638508.38
$  5059,974.19 $ 13,491,974.29 $ 13,633,750.92 $ - $  32,185,699.40
$  2,970,327.95 $ 8,406,666.33 S 965,586.18 $ - $  12,342,580.46
$  6,089,707.34 S 4,618,116.80 S 23,248333.49 $ - $  33,956,157.63
$  6,415461.09 S 11,768,061.46 S 8921,783.21 $ - $  27,105,305.76
$  6,854,966.95 S 17,496,559.97 S 11,695,525.26 $ - $  36,047,052.18
S 27,390,437.51 S 78,601,722.88 S 129,134,268.06 S 30,614,406.28 S 265,740,834.73
$  27,390,437.51 $  27,390,437.51
$ 12,809,842.12 $  12,809,842.12
$  7,346,509.51 $  7,346,509.51
$ 29,180,749.82 $  29,180,749.82
$  29,264,621.43 $  29,264,621.43
$ 18,902,416.18 $  18,902,416.18
$ 47,792,356.84 $  47,792,356.84
$ 18,573,853.08 $  18,573,853.08
$ 43,865641.96 S  43,865,641.96
$ 30,614,406.28 S  30,614,406.28
$ -
S 27,390,437.51 S 49,337,101.45 S 114,533,247.53 S 74,480,048.24 S 265,740,834.73




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 32 of 247

State Revolving Fund (SRF) Status Report

As of 05/31/2024
Total Authorized $ 51,634,000.00
Funds Received to Date $ 12,320,801.21
Available Balance Remaining $ 39,313,198.79

Funds Requested

Draw Request Number

Period Covered Amount Date Submitted
1 12-Aug through 17-Oct-2022 S 1,272,651.90 19-Dec-22
2 09-Dec through 16-Dec-2022 S 2,125,033.67 17-Jan-23
3 03-Feb through 10-Feb-2023 S 2,539,298.51 03-Apr-23
4 11-Feb through 30-Apr. 2023 S 1,600,121.65 25-Jul-23
5 11-July through 28-Sept. 2023 S 2,052,271.94 24-Oct-23
6 11-July through 28-Sept. 2023 S 2,731,423.54 07-Feb-24
7 1-Nov 2023 through 31-Jan. 2024 S 1,112,125.48 23-May-24

Total

$ 13,432,926.69

Funds Received

Draw Request Number

Period Covered Amount Date Received
1 12-Aug through 17-Oct-2022 $ 1,272,651.90 23-Dec-22
2 09-Dec through 16-Dec-2022 S 2,125,033.67 10-Feb-23
3 03-Feb through 10-Feb-2023 S 2,539,298.51 21-Apr-23
4 11-Feb through 30-Apr. 2023 S 1,600,121.65 21-Aug-23
5 11-July through 28-Sept. 2023 $ 2,052,271.94 08-Nov-23
6 11-July through 28-Sept. 2023 S 2,731,423.54 22-Feb-24

Total

$ 12,320,801.21




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 33 of 247

Finance Committee Bills from June 2024

Vendor Description
City of Fargo Reimburse complementary in-town flood projects S 1,341,182.99
City of Fargo Reimburse complementary in-town flood projects S 1,330,597.88
Dorsey & Whitney Legal services rendered through May 31, 2024 S 273,441.82
Cass County Joint Water Resource District Diversion bills — Request #121 CCJWRD S 224,559.85
Clay County Diversion bills — Request #42 MCCJPA S 180,827.56
Ohnstad Twichell, P.C. Legal services rendered through May 21, 2024 S 147,339.49
Ankura Consulting Consultant services rendered through May 31, 2024 S 134,382.50
Dorsey & Whitney Legal services rendered through May 31, 2024 S 57,531.00
Ankura Consulting Consultant services rendered through April 30, 2024 S 48,107.50
Rush River Water Resource District Reimburse engineering services related to MOU S 8,253.75
BNSF Railway Preliminary engineering services from 2023 S 5,052.60
City of Christine Reimburse legal services related to MOU S 3,412.50
Cass County Reimburse misc expenses from Diversion Authority office S 2,842.60

Total Bills Received through June 18, 2024

S 3,757,532.04




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 34 of 247

THE CITY OF FINANCE OFFICE
225 4™ Street North

a I 0 Fargo, ND 58102
Phone: (701) 241-1333

E-Mail: Finance@FargoND.gov
www.FarcoND.gov

FAR MORE

May 16, 2024

Metro Flood Diversion Board of Authority
PO Box 2806
Fargo, ND 58108-2806

Dear Metro Flood Diversion Board of Authority,
The City of Fargo is submitting request #32 for reimbursement invoices paid totaling $1,341,182.99. These
costs are for work on complementary in-town flood protection projects for costs paid in January through

April 2024.

Project Narrative, this request:

Project

Number Project Description Amount
| BR24CT WM Rep St RCN 205,147.75
FLDBUY  |Flood Buyouts - Property Acquisition Expense 23.25
FLDSPC  |Tax Payments on Flood Buyout Properties 15,114.06
FM15J  |Belmont Flood Risk Management Project -1,288.06
FM19B  |Royal Oaks Area - Flood Risk Management 2,186.25
FM19C  |woodcrest Drive Area - Flood Risk Management 8,467.85
FM21A  IRed River Erosion Protection & Bank Stabilization 7,924.16
FM24A  ISouth University Wall Rep 25,814.39
NR23A Storm Lift Rehab - #27 & 38 1,028,093.60
NR24A  Istorm Lift Rehab - #27 610.69
NR24B  |Storm Lift Rehab - #11 & 57 49,089.05
Total Expense for Period $1,341,182.99

If you have any questions relating to our request, please fee! free to contact us. Thank you.

Director of Finance, City of Fargo




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 35 of 247

omplementary In-Town Flood Protection Costs

City of Fargo, North Dakota

January 1, 2024 - April 30, 2024

Project Number
BR24C1
460-0000-206.20-00- Total
BR24C1
460-3530-510.73-58- Total
BR24C1
460-3530-510.73-61- Total
BR24C1

FLDBUY - Total

FM15J6 - Total

FM19B0 - Total

FM19CO - Total

460-3530-510.33-05 - Total
FM21A0- Total

FM24A0
FM24A0
FM24A0

FM24A0

460-3530-510.33-05 - Total

460-3530-510.54-10- Total

460-3530-510.33-05 - Total
NR23A0- Total

460-0000-206.20-00 - Total
NR23A2
NR23A2
460-3530-510.73-58 - Total

AP Project Description Account Number

WM REP ST RCN-woodcrest 46000002062000

WM REP ST RCN-woodcrest 46035305107358

WM REP ST RCN-woodcrest 46035305107361

WM REP ST RCN-woodcrest 46035305107366

WM REP ST RCN-woodcrest 46035305107369

FLOOD ACQUISITION

46035305103899

FLOOD SPECIALS PAYOFF  46035305208012

FLOOD SPECIALS PAYOFF  46035305208016

FLOOD MIT-Belmnt Prk/intk 46035305103305

FLOOD MIT-Belmnt Prk/intk 46035305107410

FLOOD MIT-Belmont Park
FLOOD MIT-Belmont Park
FLOOD MIT-Belmont Park

46035305103332
46035305103332
46035305103332

FLOOD MIT-Royal Oaks Dr 46035305103305

FLOOD MIT-Woodcrest  46035305103305

FLOOD MIT-RR Erosion SUnv 46035305103305

FLOOD MIT-S Univ wall rep 46035305103305
FLOOD MIT-S Univ wall rep 46035305103305
FLOOD MIT-S Univ wall rep 46035305103305
FLOOD MIT-S Univ wall rep 46035305103305
FLOOD MIT-S Univ wall rep 46035305103305

FLOOD MIT-S Univ wall rep 46035305105410

STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46035305103305

STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46000002062000

STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46035305107358
STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46035305107358

STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46035305107369
STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46035305107369

STRM LFT RHAB-#27

46035305103899

Description
Retainage and Retainage R

Flood Mitigation

Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous

Miscellaneous

RECORDING FEES

2023 TXS/2024 SPEC PAY

2023 TXS/2024 SPEC PAY

FEMA LOCAL SHARE

FEMA LOCAL SHARE

FLOOD MITIGATION
ACQUISITION & RELOCATION
FLOOD MITIGATION

ROYAL OAKS FLOOD MIT PROJ

WOODCREST FLOOD MIT PROJ

RED RIVER EROSION PROT

UNIV DR FLOODWALL REPAIR
UNIV DR FLOODWALL REPAIR
UNIV DR FLOODWALL REPAIR
UNIV DR FLOODWALL REPAIR
UNIV DR FLOODWALL REPAIR

FORUM COMMUNICATIONS

STORM SEWER LS #47848

Retainage and Retainage R

Lift Station #47
Storm Sewer

Change Order 1
Miscellaneous

RECORDING FEES

] /AP Transaction Amount | Payment Number ] AP Invoice Number

-10,797.25 335571
-10,797.25
190,020.00 335571
190,020.00
2,500.00 335571
2,500.00
3,500.00 335571

BR24C1 #1026 05/02/2024

BR24C1#1014 05/02/2024

BR24C1 #1020 05/02/2024

BR24C1#1018 05/02/2024

BR24C1#1019 05/02/2024

787488844714SFL 02/22/2024

WP02240001  02/13/2024

WP02240001  02/13/2024

1,053.03 334115
192.21 334584
192.21 335145

7,924.16|
17,933.20 333947
169.10 334832
4,518.30 334934
2,838.35 335392
109.20 335392

-52,557.25 334669
-52,557.25,
658,750.00 334669
350,130.00 334669
1,008,880.00
2,681.90 334669
39,583.00 334669

23.50 333676

ES14230007  02/05/2024

13448.03-6  02/22/2024
13448.03-7  03/14/2024
13448.03-8  04/11/2024

Payment Date

Vendor Name
MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC

MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC

MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC

MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC

MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC

SIMPLIFILE LC

City of Fargo

City of Fargo

City of Fargo

City of Fargo

SRF CONSULTING GROUP, INC

SRF CONSULTING GROUP, INC
SRF CONSULTING GROUP, INC

HOUSTON

HOUSTON

10201966  02/15/2024
10204487 03/28/2024
10204593 04/04/2024
10205656 04/25/2024
10205657 04/25/2024

02/28-03/14/24 04/05/2024

HOUSTON

KLJ ENGINEERING, LLC
KLJ ENGINEERING, LLC
KLJ ENGINEERING, LLC
KLJ ENGINEERING, LLC
KLJ ENGINEERING, LLC

P CARD BMO

NR23A2 #4 005 03/21/2024

NR23A2 #4 002 03/21/2024
NR23A2 #4 004 03/21/2024

NR23A2 #4001 03/21/2024
NR23A2 #4 003 03/21/2024

527680141141SFL 02/01/2024

HOUSTON

KEY CONTRACTING INC

KEY CONTRACTING INC
KEY CONTRACTING INC

KEY CONTRACTING INC
KEY CONTRACTING INC

SIMPLIFILE LC

|Awounl|ng Period Mc}P Accounting Period Ye1
2024

2024
2024

2024

3 2024
4 2024

2024
2024
2024
2024

FSIFSIFNETEN

2024
3 2024
3 2024
2024

Bookmarked Invoice

10

13
14
18

12
12

12
12

NR24AL

NR24A1

460-3530-510.

NR24A1

460-3530-510.54-10- Total
24A1 - Total

NR24BO

460-3530-510.33-05 - Total
0- Total

STRM LFT RHAB-#27

STRM LFT RHAB-#27

STRM LFT RHAB-#27

STRM LFT RHAB-#11 & 57

STRM LFT RHAB-#11 & 57

46035305103899

46035305103899

46035305105410

46035305103305

46035305106810

FEDEX73736443

RECORDING FEE

FORUM COMMUNICATIONS

STORM LS #11&#57

UPGRADE STORM WATER PUMP

89.35 1084
92.00 334583
204.85
405.84 1095
405.84
610.69
41,084.25 334657
41,084.25
41,084.25|
8,004.80 335303
,004.80
8,004.80

01/02-01/14/24 02/05/2024

527684469887SFL 03/14/2024

02/28-03/14/24 04/05/2024

69846 03/21/2024

041624 04/18/2024

P CARD BMO

SIMPLIFILE LC

P CARD BMO

HOUSTON ENGINEERING INC

XCEL ENERGY

1 2024
3 2024




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 36 of 247



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 37 of 247

City of Fargo, North Dakota
Schedule of Complementary In-Town Flood Protection Costs

May 1, 2024 - May 31, 2024

I Project Number I AP Project Description | Account Number | Description | AP Transaction Amount I Payment Number I AP Invoice Number I Payment Date I Vendor Name l:counting Period | AP Accounting Period Year I Bookmarked Invoice I
BR24C1 WM REP ST RCN-woodcrest 46000002062000 Retainage and Retainage R -15,064.97 336108 BR24C1 #3 046 05/23/2024 MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC 2024

BR24C1 WM REP ST RCN-woodcrest 46035305107358 Flood Mitigation 105,960.00 335955 BR24C1#2 020 05/16/2024 MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC 2024

BR24C1 WM REP ST RCN-woodcrest 46035305107358  Flood Mitigation 298,149.45 336108 BR24C1 #3029 05/23/2024 MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC 2024

BR24C1 WM REP ST RCN-woodcrest 46035305107363 Flood Mitigation 59,160.00 335955 BR24C1#2 021 05/16/2024 MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC 5 2024 4

BR24C1 WM REP ST RCN- 46035305107363 1,912.50 335955 BR24C1#2 023 05/16/2024 MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC 5 2024 4

BR24C1 WM REP ST RCN- 46035305107363 inage and Retainage R -4,223.63 335955 BR24C1#2 030 05/16/2024 MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC 5 2024 4

BR24C1 WM REP ST RCN-woodcrest 46035305107363 Flood Mitigation 3,150.00 336108 BR24C1 #3030 05/23/2024 MASTER CONSTRUCTION CO INC 5 2024 6

563.64 ES05240002 ES05240002  05/20/2024 City of Fargo

43,721.65 ES05240002 ES05240002  05/20/2024 City of Fargo

842.83 335826 13448.03-9  05/09/2024 SRF CONSULTING GROUP, INC
-600.00 304060 5/13/2020 05/14/2020 BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY 2024
228.00 335754 70484 05/09/2024 HOUSTON ENGINEERING INC
6,288.35 335754 70485 05/09/2024

HOUSTON ENGINEERING INC

6,901.19 335754 70488 05/09/2024 HOUSTON ENGINEERING INC

35,179.97 335754 70489 05/09/2024

HOUSTON ENGINEERING INC 2024

-39,876.60 336090 NR23A2 #5 040 05/23/2024 KEY CONTRACTING INC 2024

106,250.00 336090
533,500.00 336090

FM1535 FLOOD MIT-Belmnt Prk/intk 46035305103305 DA TO FUND ELIGIBLE EXPEN

460-3530-510.33-05 - Total 563.64.
FM15J5 FLOOD MIT-Belmnt Prk/intk 46035305107362 DA TO FUND ELIGIBLE EXPEN

460-3530-510.73-62 - Total 43,721.65
FM15J5 - Total 44,285.29
FM15J6 FLOOD MIT-Belmont Park  46035305103332 FLOOD MITIGATION: BELMONT

460-3530-510.33-32 - Total

FM15J6 - Total

FM16A1 FLOOD MIT-N Cass 20/129 46035305103899 LEASE APPLICATION FEE

460-3530-510.38-99 - Total -600.00
FM16A1 - Total -600.00
FM19B0 FLOOD MIT-Royal Oaks Dr 46035305103305 ROYAL OAKS FLOOD MITIGATI

460-3530-510.33-05 - Total 228.00
FM19B0 - Total 228.00
FM19CO FLOOD MIT-Woodcrest 46035305103305 WOODCREST FLOOD MITIGATIO

460-3530-510.33-05 - Total 6,288.35.
FM19CO - Total 6,288.35
FM21A0 FLOOD MIT-RR Erosion SUnv 46035305103305 RED RIVER EROSION PROT

460-3530-510.33-05 - Total 6,901.19
FM21A0 - Total 6,901.19
NR23A0 STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46035305103305 STORM LS #47 & 48

460-3530-510.33-05 - Total 35,179.97
NR23A0 - Total 35,179.97|
NR23A2 STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46000002062000 Retainage and Retainage R

460-0000-206.20-00 - Total -39,876.60
NR23A2 STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46035305107358 Lift Station #47

NR23A2 STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46035305107358 Lift Station #48

NR23A2 STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46035305107358 Storm Sewer

460-3530-510.73-58 - Total
NR23A2

NR24B0 - Total

STRM LFT RHAB DR 27 /38 S 46035305107369

STRM LFT RHAB-#11 & 57  46035305103305

Miscellaneous

STORM LS# 11 & 57

135,330.00 336090
775,080.00
22,452.00 336090

NR23A2 #5 001 05/23/2024
NR23A2 #5 002 05/23/2024
NR23A2 #5 004 05/23/2024

NR23A2 #5 003 05/23/2024

70840 05/30/2024

KEY CONTRACTING INC
KEY CONTRACTING INC
KEY CONTRACTING INC

KEY CONTRACTING INC

HOUSTON ENGINEERING INC

2024
2024 5
2024

2024

Jun 10, 2024

11:31:22 AM



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 38 of 247

C ) DORSEY

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP

MINNEAPOLIS OFFICE
612-340-2600

(Tax Identification No. 41-0223337)

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Metro Flood Diversion Authority June 5, 2024
4784 Amber Valley Pkwy Invoice Number 3981329
Suite 100

Fargo, ND 58104

Client-Matter No.: 491379-00004
Provide advice on potential construction litigation claims

For Legal Services Rendered Through May 31, 2024

INVOICE TOTAL

Total For Current Legal Fees $272,825.50
Total For Current Disbursement and Service Charges $616.32
Total Due This Invoice $273,441.82
Payment Methods
ACH/Wire (Preferred Method) Check Online Options
Beneficiary Bank U.S. Bank National Association Dorsey & Whitney LLP Contact our Billing team for first time access
800 Nicollet Mall P.O. Box 1680 credentials at onlinepayments@dorsey.com
Minneapolis, MN 55402 Minneapolis, MN 55480-1680
ABA Routing Number 091000022 Payment site:
Account Number 1047-8339-8282 Dorsey Login (e-billexpress.com)
Swift Code USBKUS44IMT

Please make reference to the invoice number — send remittance to remittance@dorsey.com

Service charges are based on rates established by Dorsey & Whitney. A schedule of those rates has been provided and is available
upon request. Disbursements and service charges, which either have not been received or processed, will appear on a later statement.

ALL INVOICES ARE DUE 30 DAYS FROM DATE OF INVOICE UNLESS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY AGREED BY DORSEY & WHITNEY

Questions regarding this invoice? Please contact your Dorsey attorney or Accounts Receivable @ ARhelpdesk@dorsey.com or 612-492-5278.

02543


https://www.e-billexpress.com/ebpp/Dorsey/Login/Index
mailto:remittance@dorsey.com
mailto:ARhelpdesk@dorsey.com

CASS'COU

GOVERMMENI

b

Cass County
Joint Water
Resource
District

Rodger Olson
Chairman
Leonard, North
Dakota

Ken Lougheed
Manager
Gardner, North Dakota

Keith Weston
Manager
Fargo, North Dakota

Jacob Gust
Manager
Fargo, North Dakota

Rick Steen

Manager
Fargo, North Dakota

Melissa Hinkemeyer
Director, Secretary

1201 Main Avenue West

427 Page 39 of 247

SENT VIA EMAIL

May 30, 2024

Diversion Authority

P.O. Box 2806

Fargo, ND 58108-2806

Greetings:

RE: Metro Flood Diversion Project

Enclosed please find copies of bills totaling $224,559.85
regarding the above referenced project.

At this time, we respectfully request 100% reimbursement per
the Joint Powers Agreement between the City of Fargo, Cass
County and Cass County Joint Water Resource District dated
June 1, 2015.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact us.
Thank you.

Sincerely,

CASS COUNTY JOINT WATER RESOURCE DISTRICT

Lellel Bao

West Fargo, ND 58078-1301  |eilei Bao

701-298-2381
FAX 701-298-2397
wrd@casscountynd.gov

casscountynd.gov

Treasurer

Enclosures


https://casscounty.sharepoint.com/sites/Archive/WRD/CassCountyJoint/Forms%20-%20including%20letterhead/wrd@casscountynd.gov
https://casscounty.sharepoint.com/sites/Archive/WRD/CassCountyJoint/Forms%20-%20including%20letterhead/casscountynd.gov

Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 40 of 247

METRO FLOOD DIVERSION RIGHT OF ENTRY/LAND ACQUISITION COST SHARE INVOICES 5/31/2024

Invoice Invoice Invoice Project

Paid Date No. No. Amount Vendor Description

-11,045.24 The Title Company Closing Proceeds - Thoen
-28,164.49 The Title Company Closing Proceeds - Ottis, Julie Revocable Trust Et al
4/15/2024 -180.00 Cass County Land Purchase
5/14/2024 5/3/2024 195910 247007 14,181.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Aaland Law Open Records Requests
5/14/2024 5/3/2024 195897 130007 21,064.01 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Diversion Right of Way Acquisition
5/14/2024 5/3/2024 195898 160007 780.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Channel Phase |
5/14/2024 5/3/2024 195899 160007 441.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Channel Phase Il
5/14/2024 5/3/2024 195900 160007 1,485.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Channel Phase IIl
5/14/2024 5/3/2024 195901 170007 15,013.62 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Upstream Mitigation Area
5/14/2024 5/3/2024 195902 187007 1,468.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Diversion - Southern Embankment
5/14/2024 5/3/2024 195903 197007 180.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Western Tie Back
5/14/2024 5/3/2024 195904 207007 540.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Wetland Mitigation Drain 27
5/14/2024 5/3/2024 195905 237007 585.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC FM Diverson - MLGC Dispute
5/10/2024 5/9/2024 22,372.00 Cass County Joint Water Resource District Larry Richard OIN 1916 Relocation Reimbursement
5/10/2024 5/10/2024 200.00 Metro Flood Diversion Authority Ryan Richard OIN 1088Y
5/10/2024 5/10/2024 100.00 Metro Flood Diversion Authority Joe Valen OIN 233Y1
5/10/2024 4/31/2024 3242 3775 9,525.07 ProSource Technologies LLC ROW Services and relocation services
5/10/2024 2/1/2024 5009 29,000.00 Crown Appraisals FM Diversion Project - OIN 2184, 2183 & 2046,2047 & 2046
5/10/2024 2/27/2024 5026 22,000.00 Crown Appraisals FM Diversion Project - OIN 2040, 2044, 20245
5/10/2024 5/10/2024 13,845.00 The Title Company - Flowage Easement Flowage Easement in NE 1/4SE1/4 31-136-48 Richland ND
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196208 187007 150.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC BIO/GEO Easements
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196209 207007 12,642.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Larry A. Brandt RLT (oin 9348) QT ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196210 207007 260.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Janet Wanzek Estate (OIN 8672 8673 8674 8675 9747) QT ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196211 207007 130.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Orten B. Perhus (OIN 747 751 5014 5015 5277) QT ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196212 207007 11,783.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Orten B. Brodshaug RLT (OIN 5008 1930 1932 1940 1941 8517 8518) QT ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196213 217007 260.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Charles F. Coster RE Trust (OIN 9736 9737) QT ED ACTION
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196214 227007 195.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Varriano, John & Cythina (OIN 1130) ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196215 227007 227.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Askegaard, Patrica (OIN 2051) ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196216 227007 2,239.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Emden Partners, LLP (OIN 836 232 56016) ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196217 227007 962.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Hamilton, D & Wittaker, R (OIN 1949 1956 5036) ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196218 227007 227.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Hertsgaard Family LLLP (OIN 2042) ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196219 227007 617.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Braaten, Riley (OIN 5032) ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196220 237007 455.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC KLF LLP (OIN 9347) Ed Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196221 237007 122.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Andrew Cossette, Maximillion Cossette, Brianna Aarestad (OIN 1075) Ed Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196222 237007 3,997.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Rick Bellemare & Ronald Bellemare (OIN 1080,1081) ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196223 237007 97.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Christenson, Brendan & Daniel (OIN 7002) ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196224 237007 227.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Brakken (OIN 1173N) ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196225 237007 9,067.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC 2023 Consolidated Ed Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196226 237007 422.50 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Turner, Scott & Vicki (OIN 5028) ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196227 247007 51.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Brungard, Kirk (OIN 8781) ED Action
5/29/2024 5/17/2024 196228 247007 51.00 Ohnstad Twichell, PC Compson, Terry ED Action
5/24/2024 5/7/2024 50.00 The Title Company-6 G Farms Draw #2 6 G Farms
5/24/2024 5/7/2024 200.00 The Title Company-Sauvageau Draws 1,2,3 and 4 Joseph Sasuvageau
5/24/2024 4/30/2024 5051 1,500.00 Crown Appraisals Land Sales List per E. Dodds
5/24/2024 5/1/2024 10058 400.00 Building & Grounds Management Debris Removal, Horace ND
5/24/2024 4/30/2024| 13783.00-48 28,544.98 SRFConsulting Group Project mgmt
5/31/2024 5/16/2024| 12300619968 15,727.50 HDR Engineering Inc TO2 Property Acquisition Services
5/24/2024 4/30/2024 3376 3775 3,309.60 ProSource Technologies LLC ROW Services and relocation services
5/30/2024 5/14/2024 1136126 136.31 Cass County Electric Cooperative Service to 4005 124 Ave S Home
5/30/2024 5/14/2024 1129748 5.60 Cass County Electric Cooperative Service to 4005 124 Ave S Heat
5/30/2024 5/14/2024 1160310 22.82 Cass County Electric Cooperative Service to 4005 124 Ave S Storage add
5/30/2024 5/14/2024 1122560 36.65 Cass County Electric Cooperative service to 1701 14 St S
5/30/2024 5/14/2024 1132241 48.92 Cass County Electric Cooperative Service to 5251 174 1/2 AV SE
5/24/2024 1/1/2024 17,000.00 L&L's Tree Service LLC OIN 7234 Tree Removal Agreement
Total 224,559.85
OXBOW-HICKSON-BAKKE RING LEVEE INVOICES

Invoice Invoice Invoice Purchase Project

Paid Date No. Order No. No. Amount Vendor Description

Total
Grand Total 224,559.85




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 41 of 247

COUNTY AUDITOR
LORI J. JOHNSON
Office Telephone (218) 299-5006

June 17, 2024
Diversion Authority
P.O. Box 2806
Fargo, ND 58108-2806
RE: Metro Flood Diversion Project
Greetings:
Attached to these email(s), please find a spreadsheet summary of invoices/expense and documentation for
invoices paid by Clay County for the FM Flood Diversion project. All requests were approved or authorized by
the Diversion Authority. Current invoice/expense reimbursement request total is as follows:
Metro Flood Diversion $180,827.56
We respectfully request 100% reimbursement as per the Joint Powers Agreement.
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

Lori J. Johnson
Clay County Auditor

Enclosures

Clay County Government Center
3510 12" Ave S

PO Box 280

Moorhead, MN 56560



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 42 of 247

FM Diversion MCCJPA invoices Processed
Invoice Invoice Date Reimb
Vendor Date Amount Invoice # Approved | Date Paid Check # Request
Clay County Auditor-Treasurer 2024 prop tax 15.017.2101 $2,470.00 1146604 5/10/24 | 5/15/24 119093 6/17/2024
Red River Valley Coop 5/2/24 |svc 13689 3rd st s $55.16 5/15/24 | 5/22/24 565311 6/17/2024
Red River Valley Coop 5/2/24 3348 180th ave s $54.71 5/15/24 | 5/22.24 565311 6/17/2024
Larkin Hoffman 5/3/24 |prof svc through 4/30/24 $4,582.00 838253 5/15/24 | 5/22.24 119260 6/17/2024
SRF Consulting Group 4/30/24 |prof svc through 4/30/24 $25,404.44 13820.00-43 | 5/21/24 | 5/29/24 565429 6/17/2024
The Hawley Herald 4/15/24 |jpa meeting 4/15/24 $36.00 5416 5/21/24 | 5/29/24 565431 6/17/2024
Ohnstad Twichell 5/9/24 |general 2024 $13,423.61 195993 5/21/24 | 5/29/24 565423 6/17/2024
Ohnstad Twichell 5/9/24 [eminent domain clay $19,872.32 195991 5/21/24 | 5/29/24 565423 6/17/2024
Ohnstad Twichell 5/9/24 [Southern embankment $23,992.14 195990 5/21/24 | 5/29/24 565423 6/17/2024
Ohnstad Twichell 5/9/24 |eminent domain wilkin $10,644.22 195992 5/21/24 | 5/29/24 565423 6/17/2024
Ohnstad Twichell 5/9/24 |Upstream mitigation $31,680.20 195989 5/21/24 | 5/29/24 565423 6/17/2024
Larkin Hoffman 5/3/24 |prof svc through 4/30/24 $192.00 838254 5/25/24 | 6/5/24 119486 6/17/2024
Larkin Hoffman 6/4/24 |prof svc through 5/31/24 $592.50 839716 6/12/24 | 6/19/24 TBD 6/17/2024
Forum Communications 5/31/24 |Certified mail postage $10.69 10069894 6/13/24 | 6/19/24 TBD 6/17/2024
SRF Consulting Group 5/31/24 |prof svc through 5/31/24 $22,139.17 13820.00-44 | 6/17/24 | 6/19/24 TBD 6/17/2024
The Hawley Herald 5/13/24 |jpa meeting 5/13 $36.00 5447 6/17/24 | 6/19/24 TBD 6/17/2024
Red River Valley Coop 6/4/24 (13689 3rd sts $55.16 6/17/24 | 6/19/24 TBD 6/17/2024
Red River Valley Coop 6/4/24 3348 180th ave s (house) $53.01 6/17/24 | 6/19/24 TBD 6/17/2024
ProSource Technologies 4/30/24 |prof svc through 4/30/24 $25,534.23 3375 5/22/24 565308 6/17/2024

$180,827.56




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 43 of 247

OHNSTAD TWICHELL, P.C.

Attorneys at Law
P.O. Box 458

West Fargo, ND 58078-0458

To:

JTS
CMM
SNW
LDA
KIS
TiL
LWC
pcp
KIM
SIH
TJF
BMK
AJR
LDS
Total Fees:

(701) 282-3249

Flood Diversion Board
P.O. Box 2806
Fargo, ND 58108-2806

15-1395 (JTS)

Invoice # 196537

Flood Diversion Board
Bond Counsel Work - PPP

Date: June 10, 2024

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED

Monthly Credit Card Processing Fee

Westlaw
NDRIN

Prof Service Fee Gwendolyn

UPS

Recording Fees
Total Expenses:

Grand Total

TS John T. Shockley, Partner, Supervising Attorney
CMM  Christopher M. McShane, Partner
ADC Andrew D. Cook, Partner

SNW  Sarah M. Wear, Partner

LDA Lukas D. Andrud, Partner

KIS Katie J. Schmidt, Partner
MWM  Marshall W. McCullough, Partner

TiL Tyler J. Leverington, Partner

LwC Lukas W. Croaker, Partner

BTB Brent T. Boeddeker, Partner

pcep David C. Piper, Partner

ABG Alexander B. Gruchala, Associate

JRS J.R. Strom, Associate

KiM Kathryn J. McNamara, Associate
JAM Jenna A. McPherson, Associate

SIH Stephen J. Hilfer, Associate

TIF Tiffany J. Findlay, Associate

MAN  Morgan A. Nyquist, Associate
BMK  Brittney M. Kelley, Associate

CAS  Carol A. Stillwell, Paralegal

AJR Andrea J. Roman, Paralegal

CRR Christie R. Rust, Paralegal

TWS Tim W. Steuber, Paralegal

MRH  Meghan R. Hockert, Paralegal

DLR Dena L. Ranum, Paralegal

ATW Amy T. White, Paralegal

LDS Lynne D. Spaeth, Paralegal

OHNSTAD TWICHELL, P.C.

WEST FARGO

, NORTH DAKOTA 58078

Hours
121.7
1.7
3.2
5.7
48.6
1.2
21.7
0.4
72.2
0.5
9.7
0.7
28.1
1.4
316.8

Rate
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$345.00
$325.00
$265.00
$310.00
$235.00
$225.00

Totals
$48,436.60
$676.60
$1,273.60
$2,268.60
$19,342.80
$477.60
$8,636.60
$159.20
$24,909.00
$162.50
$2,570.50
$217.00
$6,603.50
$315.00
$116,049.10
$9,643.53
$297.73
$5.00
$21,125.00
$47.13
$172.00
$31,290.39

$147,339.49

Rates
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$398.00
$365.00
$350.00
$345.00
$310.00
$325.00
$265.00
$280.00
$310.00
$235.00
$235.00
$225.00
$225.00
$225.00
$180.00
$205.00
$225.00

COST ADVANCES BY US FOR YOUR ACCOUNT, FOR WHICH WE HAVE NOT

BEEN BILLED, WILL APPEAR ON YOUR NEXT STATEMENT.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 44 of 247

15-1395 JTS Invoice # 196537

FILE NUMBER
151395-1
151395-2
1561395-4
1561395-5
151395-9
151395-12
151395-13
1561395-17
151395-19
151395-23
151395-24
1561395-27
151395-28
151395-30
TOTAL

Page 2 of 2

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RENDERED

Flood Diversion Board

MATTER DESCRIPTION
General Topics
Executive Director
Public Finance Issues
Consultant Contract Review/Development
Environmental Permitting Issues/NEPA
USACE Interface/Questions
Third Party Utility MOU's
EPA WIFIA Loan
USACE WIFIA
PRAM
P3 Implementation
UMA/Utilit Review
CCJWRD Temporary RIB 2024A
Dispute Review Board Matters

Bond Counsel Work - P3

INVOICE - TOTAL FEES
$51,022.70
$2,228.80
$2,080.60
$1,269.80

$771.80
$24,262.80
$714.50
$931.50
$2,359.10
$24,627.80
$1,432.80
$924.10
$3,422.80
$116,049.10

*exp only



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 45 of 247

ankura @

Ankura Consulting Group LLC
PO Box 74007043
Chicago, IL 60674-7043

Bill To:

John Shockley

Metro Flood Diversion Authority
c/o John Shockley

444 Sheyenne Street, Suite 102
Wells Fargo, ND 58078

INVOICE
Date Invoice Number
06/17/2024 Cl-115539
Payment Terms Due Date
Net 30 07/17/2024
FEIN NO.: 47-2435218
Project Information:
Project Name: P-013258 Metro Flood

Diversion Authority - Fargo-
Moorhead Flood Risk
Management Project

United States of America Project Number: P-013258
PO Number:
Professional Services rendered, see attached.
Net Amount: 134,382.50
Tax:
Total Invoice Amount: uUsD 134,382.50

For any questions regarding billing, wire or ACH payments, please contact accounting@ankura.com.

Remittance Information:

Electronic Payment Info
Wire Instructions

Account Name: Ankura Consulting Group LLC
Account Number: 226005697768

Bank of America

222 Broadway

New York, NY 10038

United States

ABA# 026009593

SWIFT: BOFAUS3N

ACH Instructions

Account Name: Ankura Consulting Group LLC
Account Number: 226005697768

Bank of America

1455 Market Street

San Francisco, CA 94109

United States

ABA# 054001204

SWIFT: BOFAUS3N

Please include the invoice number and/or Ankura project number to your remittance to ensure prompt application of funds.




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 46 of 247

C ) DORSEY

DORSEY & WHITNEY LLP

MINNEAPOLIS OFFICE
612-340-2600

(Tax Identification No. 41-0223337)

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Metro Flood Diversion Authority June 5, 2024
4784 Amber Valley Pkwy Invoice Number 3981330
Suite 100

Fargo, ND 58104

Client-Matter No.: 491379-00006
Employment advice

For Legal Services Rendered Through May 31, 2024

INVOICE TOTAL

Total For Current Legal Fees $57,531.00
Total Due This Invoice $57,531.00
Payment Methods
ACH/Wire (Preferred Method) Check Online Options
Beneficiary Bank U.S. Bank National Association Dorsey & Whitney LLP Contact our Billing team for first time access
800 Nicollet Mall P.O. Box 1680 credentials at onlinepayments@dorsey.com
Minneapolis, MN 55402 Minneapolis, MN 55480-1680
ABA Routing Number 091000022 Payment site:
Account Number 1047-8339-8282 Dorsey Login (e-billexpress.com)
Swift Code USBKUS44IMT

Please make reference to the invoice number — send remittance to remittance@dorsey.com

Service charges are based on rates established by Dorsey & Whitney. A schedule of those rates has been provided and is available
upon request. Disbursements and service charges, which either have not been received or processed, will appear on a later statement.

ALL INVOICES ARE DUE 30 DAYS FROM DATE OF INVOICE UNLESS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY AGREED BY DORSEY & WHITNEY

Questions regarding this invoice? Please contact your Dorsey attorney or Accounts Receivable @ ARhelpdesk@dorsey.com or 612-492-5278.

02543


https://www.e-billexpress.com/ebpp/Dorsey/Login/Index
mailto:remittance@dorsey.com
mailto:ARhelpdesk@dorsey.com

Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 47 of 247

ankura @

Ankura Consulting Group LLC
PO Box 74007043
Chicago, IL 60674-7043

Bill To:

John Shockley

Metro Flood Diversion Authority
c/o John Shockley

444 Sheyenne Street, Suite 102
Wells Fargo, ND 58078

INVOICE
Date Invoice Number
05/31/2024 Cl-114467
Payment Terms Due Date
Net 30 06/30/2024
FEIN NO.: 47-2435218
Project Information:
Project Name: P-013258 Metro Flood

Diversion Authority - Fargo-
Moorhead Flood Risk
Management Project

United States of America Project Number: P-013258
PO Number:
Professional Services rendered, see attached.
Net Amount: 48,107.50
Tax:
Total Invoice Amount: uSsD 48,107.50

For any questions regarding billing, wire or ACH payments, please contact accounting@ankura.com.

Remittance Information:

Electronic Payment Info
Wire Instructions

Account Name: Ankura Consulting Group LLC
Account Number: 226005697768

Bank of America

222 Broadway

New York, NY 10038

United States

ABA# 026009593

SWIFT: BOFAUS3N

ACH Instructions

Account Name: Ankura Consulting Group LLC
Account Number: 226005697768

Bank of America

1455 Market Street

San Francisco, CA 94109

United States

ABA# 054001204

SWIFT: BOFAUS3N

Please include the invoice number and/or Ankura project number to your remittance to ensure prompt application of funds.




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 48 of 247

CASS COUNTY

GOVERMNME

i

Rush River
Water Resource
District

William A. Hejl
Chairman
Amenia, North Dakota

Dick Sundberg
Manager
Harwood, North Dakota

Jacob Gust

Manager
Fargo, North Dakota

Melissa Hinkemeyer
Director, Secretary

1201 Main Avenue West

West Fargo, ND 58078-1301

701-298-2381
FAX 701-298-2397
wrd@casscountynd.gov
www.casscountynd.gov

SENT VIA EMAIL

May 23, 2024

Diversion Authority

P.O. Box 2806

Fargo, ND 58108-2806

Greetings:

RE: Metro Flood Diversion Project

Enclosed please find a copy of invoices totaling $8,253.75 regarding the
Metro Flood Diversion Project.

At this time, we respectfully request 100% reimbursement per the
Memorandum of Understanding between Metro Flood Diversion Authority and
Rush River Water Resource District dated December 21, 2020.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact us. Thank you.
Sincerely,

RUSH RIVER WATER RESOURCE DISTRICT

Leilei Bao

Treasurer

Enclosure



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 49 of 247

CUSTOMER NUMBER : 1011188

INVOICE NUMBER : 90261380
AMOUNT :$5,052.60
DATE :12/18/2023

METRO FLOOD DIVERSION
AUTHORITY

4784 AMBER VALLEY PKWY S
FARGO ND 58104

USA

CONTRACT NO: BF10017381

EFNIS &~

A —
HArLWVAY

INVOICE

MAKE CHECKS PAYABLE TO:
BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY
3115 SOLUTIONS CENTER
CHICAGO, ILLINOIS 60677-3001

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION:
VERONICA GONZALES
(817)352-0719
VERONICA.GONZALES@BNSF.COM

BNSF TIN NO.41-6034000

TO PAY BY WIRE/ACH:

BANK: NORTHERN TRUST-CHICAGO IL
SWIFT # CNORUS 44

BANK ABA # 071000152

BNSF ACCOUNT # 31099171

If paying by wire/ACH, please send the remit detail to cashapps@bnsf.com

** PLEASE SHOW ABOVE INVOICE NUMBER ON YOUR REMITTANCE TO ASSURE PROPER CREDIT TO YOUR ACCOUNT **

FARGO-MOORHEAD FLOOD DIVERSION PROJECT THIRD PARTY DESIGN REVIEW; VARIOUS LOCATIONS; 0220-0034.900;
0034-0009.100; 0026-0015.900. LS 9000, MP 00000.0 TO 09998.0.

WBS 7-0279-22

100% METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

PARTIAL#10

Total Costs: $5,052.60
Billable Pct : 100.00 %
Invoice Total : $5,052.60

This bill represents only charges posted to the identified WBS as of the last day of the month preceding the invoice date. Unless otherwise
explicitly stated, further billings may be issued, should additional costs be identified for this WBS or other WBS’ related to work at this

location.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 50 of 247

5/20/2024
City of Christine - SUMMARY OF INVOICING
Reimbursement Request #14
May 20, 2024
Vendor Invoice Date Invoice # Invoice Amount
Swanson & Warcup 2/29/2024 1888 $605.00
Swanson & Warcup 3/31/2024 1988 $27.50
Total Swanson & Warcup $632.50
Lies, Bullis & Hatting 2/21/2024 67569 $7,900-63
Lies, Bullis & Hatting 3/25/2024 67781 $160.00
Lies, Bullis & Hatting 4/23/2024 67998 $120.00
Total Lies, Bullis & Hatting $8,180:63
Moore Engineering, Inc. 3/26/2024 37711 $9,037.67
Moore Engineering, Inc. 4/8/2024 37878 $14,098.75
Total Moore Engineering, Inc. $23,136.42
Total Invoiced This Reimbursement Request $31;949:55

Q:\Projects\21000\21500\21568 ChristineND FloodControl\120-Funding\01-Funding-Permanent
(Rp)\

City of Christine Summary for MFDA xlsx

#14 5-21-24


aalberts
Text Box
$2,500.00

aalberts
Line

aalberts
Line

aalberts
Line

aalberts
Text Box
$26,548.92

aalberts
Text Box
$2,780.00

aalberts
Highlight

aalberts
Highlight

aalberts
Highlight


Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 51 of 247

INVOICE: INV010946

Date 06/05/2024

Invoice account 198

CITY OF FARGO

PO BOX 49
Fargo, ND
Description Quantity Unit price Amount
FM DIVERSION MISC 1.00 2,842.60 2,842.60
FM DIVERSION PAYROLL 1.00 94,926.18 94,926.18
Sales subtotal Total discount Total charges Net amount Sales tax Round- Currency Total
amount off
97,768.78 0.00 0.00 97,768.78 0.00 0.00 USD
97,768.78
Due date 07/05/2024
MAKE CHECK Invoice:INV010946 Name: CITY OF FARGO
PAYABLE TO:
Cass County Government Account #: 198
211 9t Street South Date: 06/05/2024
P.O Box 2806
Fargo, ND 58108-2806 Due date 07/05/2024

Total: 97,768.78


aalberts
Highlight

aalberts
Highlight


Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 52 of 247

METRO

FLOOD

DIVERSION
AUTHORITY

Diversion Board of
Authority Meeting

June 27, 2024

MOU and Agreement Actions for Consideration
John Shockley



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 53 of 247

METRO

MFDA MOUSs & Agreements (Action) e

AUTHORITY

MOU Parties  Project MOU or Agreement Cost and Summary

Minnkota Power | SWDCAI This is the first amendment to the MOU between Minnkota Power Cooperative, Inc. and the Metro Flood Diversion
Cooperative, Inc. Authority. The amendment revises the definition of “Approved Subcontractors” in Section 1.01 of the MOU. There is
& MFDA MOU no cost to the Authority from approval of this amendment to the MOU.

Amendment 1 The amended definitions changes some of the approved subcontractors as follows:

“Approved Subcontractors” means contractors approved by the Utility to be hired by the P3 Developer to complete work on the
Utility Relocation Project. Approved Subcontractors include only the following: Key Contracting, Inc., whose address is 245 7th
Ave NE, West Fargo, ND 58078; Brink Constructors, Inc., whose address is 2950 N Plaza Dr., Rapid City, SD 57702; and M.J.
Electric, LLC, whose address is P.O. Box 686, Iron Mountain, MI 49801-0686.”

Raymond SWDCAI The MOU addresses design, construction, operating and maintenance, future changes or additions, etc. in respect to
Township & any impacts that the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project will have on township
MFDA MOU roadways. Design, construction, and maintenance costs will be covered by the Developer through the Project

Agreement. Reimbursement includes the following: Construction costs and expenses up to $3,000 annually from
the effective date until project substantial completion; Post-construction costs and expenses up to $1,500 annually
after project substantial completion; a lost tax revenue payment of $4,360 (this will be divided into ten equal
payments and paid out annually over ten years); and a $30,000 payment for fire protection funds. This MOU was
approved by the MFDA Board in April 2023. However, the township requested the addition a gravel road mobility
improvement to offset the project impacts. Costs associated with the mobility improvement are to be determined.




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 54 of 247

METRO

MFDA MOUSs & Agreements (Action) e

AUTHORITY

MOU Parties  Project MOU or Agreement Cost and Summary

Southeast Water | SEAI & UMA The purpose of this Agreement is to ensure a coordinated, time-efficient, and cost-effective process for completing

Users District the Utility Relocation Project, for coordinating operations and maintenance activities after completion of the Utility

(SEWUD) & Relocation Project, and for the development of individual Task Orders issued in conjunction with, and subject to, the

MFDA MURA terms and conditions of the Agreement.

USACE, ND SHPO | UMA The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) is to relocate a historic log cabin within the Upstream

& MFDA Mitigation Area that would otherwise be impacted by the Project. The MOA outlines process and responsibilities to
both document and relocate the historic property.




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 55 of 247

FIRST AMENDMENT
TO THE
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This First Amendment to the Memorandum of Understanding is made and entered into
this _ day of May, 2024 (hereinafter referred to as the “Effective Date™), by and between the
Metro Flood Diversion Authority, a North Dakota political subdivision, whose post office
address is 4784 Amber Valley Pkwy S, Ste 100, Fargo, ND 58104-5022, and Minnkota Power
Cooperative, Inc., whose post office address is 5301 - 32° Avenue South, Grand Forks, ND
58201 (hereinafter referred to as the “Utility”"). Metro Flood Diversion Authority and Utility may
be collectively referred to herein as the “Parties.”

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the Memorandum of Understanding, dated May 18,
2021 (the “MOU”), regarding the diversion channel and associated infrastructure for the Fargo-
Moorhead Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project;

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the definition of “Approved Subcontractors” in
Section 1.01 of the MOU.

NOW, THEREFORE, for the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged and may not be challenged, the Parties
hereby agree as follows:

1. Amended Definition. The Partics agree that the definition of “Approved
Subcontractors” in Section 1.01 of the MOU is amended to read as follows;

“Approved Subcontractors” means contractors approved by the Utility to be hired
by the P3 Developer to complete work on the Utility Relocation Project. Approved
Subcontractors include only the following: Key Contracting, Inc., whose address is
245 7th Ave NE, West Fargo, ND 58078, Brink Constructors, Inc., whose address is
2950 N Plaza Dr., Rapid City, SD 57702; and M.J. Electric, LLC, whose address is
P.O. Box 686, Iron Mountain, MI 49801-0686.”

Signature Pages to Follow



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 56 of 247

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties executed this First Amendment to the
Memorandum of Understanding on the date first written above.

METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

By:
Its:

By:
Its:



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 57 of 247

MINNKOTA POWER COOPERATIVE

By: W ImeE LEMBEE
Its: EAGIA LRI PR AAGER

By:
Its:



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 58 of 247

Revised Execution Version

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BY AND BETWEEN
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY
AND

RAYMOND TOWNSHIP, NORTH DAKOTA

Dated as of , 2024
Relating to:

A Memorandum of Understanding outlining the respective roles and responsibilities of the

Parties in regard to the impacts resulting from construction of the Storm Water Diversion

Channel and Associated Infrastructure of the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area Flood
Risk Management Project.




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 59 of 247

TABLE OF CONTENTS
ARTICLE I. 1
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 1
SECTION 1.01  DEFINITIONS ....eetttettteeeteeetetesssase s eeetesesssasassaeetesesssasesseeteessssasasrreeteessssanersreeeeessssanns 1
ARTICLE II. 3
INTENT 3
] =0 o [N I 0 R N1 =V (TR 4
SECTION 2.02  DEVELOPER AND AUTHORITY CONTACT tttiiiieeeeeiieiireiireeessissirareeesesssssssrsssessessssnnins 4
ARTICLE III. 4
SWDCAI AND OPENING 4
SECTION 3.01  DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION. ... .utttvttteteesiesissreetreeessiisissseeetessssississsseeseessssmmsssseeeeesssnnn 4
SECTION 3.02  NEW GRAVEL ROADS .....eeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiittte et iessiieetresessiassabesetesssssasersrseesesssssssesssessesssssnnes 4
ARTICLE IV. 4
PROPERTY INTEREST ACQUISITION 4
SECTION 4.01  ACQUISITION 1iiiiiteieeiiteieessrteeessbereessbetsesssbeseessbaesesssbsssssssbsssssssbsssssssbasssssssbsssssssesesins 5
SECTION 4.02  TRANSFER OF INTEREST 1uvttttiiiiiiittrttttetessiisistseesesessiasisssesesessssimmessssesseesssmmsssseeeessssines 5
SECTION 4.03  VVEED CONTROL ..ecciiiitttttiteteesiesessreeesesesssassssseessessssiassssssssessssimsessssessessssimssssseeeeesssnnnns 5
SECTION 4.04  PLATTING 1 tuttttiiiie et ieieieettete e s te s b ee et e tesssasasbaetteeesssas s e beeeteeesssasbabeeeteeesssssssbrseeeeessssnes 5
ARTICLE V. 5
PRELIMINARY PLANNING AND ENGINEERING ACTIVITIES 5
SECTION 5.01  SITE TESTING 1evvtiteiiieiettreitetessseseseeesesesssasssssesssesssssasesssesesesssssasessrsestessssssssssseeseessssnies 5
SECTION 5.02  IMITIGATION .uvvviiiieeiieieeteeetetesssesesbeeesesesssasessseeeteeesssasssbeeeteeesssasrarseeseeesssasrbsreeeeessssnies 5
SECTION5.03  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEWS .. .oiitttiiiiiie e e ieeeiee it e ee s s ieseareeeteessssesraseessesssssessssssssesssssnns 5
SECTION5.04  UTILITY RELOCATION ..uvvviiiieeiiiietetitete et sesesseeereeesssssesssssesesssssasessssessesssssssssseessesssssnees 5
SECTION5.05  PERMITS AND APPROVALS ....cotiittteetteee e e teee ettt e eeeetaaetteeeteaesssassareeeeeeesssaseaseeeeeessannins 5
ARTICLE VI. 6
DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION 6
SECTION B.01  DESIGN. ciiiitttiriiiteeiieseteeetetesssese b aeesesesssassssbaeeteeesssasessreeeteeesssaserareeeteeesssasesbrseeeeessssnies 6
SECTION 6.02  CONSTRUCTION ..itettieittttetteteesiesestaeeeesesssasessseessesssssasessseeetesssssasesrresteessssmssrrreeseessssnnns 7
SECTION 6.03  CREATION OF DEAD-ENDS. ....coiiiiteiiiiie ettt ettt e e s s ettt e e e s s neebareeeneesnenans 7
SECTION 6.04  TRAFFIC MITIGATION ROUTES ... euteeittie ettt ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e s e s e eeeeeeenans 7
SECTION B.05  HAUL ROADS......coieei ittt e et e ettt e e e e e ee ettt eaesesas et eeeeeesenaseaareeeeeesenaans 7
SECTION 6.06  SIGNAGE AND LANE CLOSURES ....cciiitie i ettt ittt ettt te e e iaietateiaiaia i e ieia i e naiaiaia i et e naianenennnens 8
SECTION 6.07  CHANGES OR MODIFICATIONS 1. ieie i ettt ittt ettt ittt e e teta i e iatat et e iaie i e taiaiaianaiaiaseieneaeaenenenenans 8
SECTION 6.08  CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE ......cccutteetteteetieeeiieetteeesssasesseesesssssasesrsesseessssssesseeesesssssnens 8
SECTION 6.09  SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION . ...cetouutttttetetsiesesteeeresesssasessseetesssssasesreessesssssssesseeesesssssnens 8
SECTION B.10  OWNERSHIP ...vvveiete et ie sttt e te et te sttt e tesssasessseeeteeesssasessseeeteessssaserareeeteessssasersreeeeessssanes 9
SECTION 6.11  INSPECTION AND A CCESS ...ciiiitetettteeitetessseseiseeetesesssasetreeetesssssasereerteessssaserreeeeesssssnens 9
SECTION 6.12  EXTRA MATERIAL PILE ..ottt 9



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 60 of 247

ARTICLE VII. 9
MAINTENANCE 9
SECTION 7.01  NEW GRAVEL ROADS .....cciiiiiiiiiiciiiitete s s sesiteeiteeesssisiabesesesssssessbarssssesssssssssssessesssssnins 9
SECTION 7.02  MOBILITY IMPROVEMENTS ...otictttttttieestsiiitreretesesssssissssesesessssssssrssssesssssmmssssessesssssnns 10
SECTION 7.03  SWVUD C A ..ottt et e ettt e e e e e e e et e eeeeaes et eeeeeesssaseseraeeeeeesenanas 10
SECTION 7.04  SIGNAGE ....eeteeeiteee ettt e e et et e ettt e e eeese e eeeteestesa b eaeteeesstasasstaeeteeesssasasreeeeeeessnanns 10
SECTION 7.05  GARBAGE DUMPING .....uteitteeeit it tte e et e te ettt e e et e aa et e eesssasss e bareteeesssasesreeeeeessenanns 10
ARTICLE VIII. 10
FUTURE CHANGES OR ADDITIONS 10
SECTION 8.01  TOWNSHIP ROADS. .. .ettteetteee e ettt e e et e aee ettt e e e ssssaaetesessaasssabaeeteeesssasessrreeeeessenanns 10
SECTION 8.02  SWVD C A ..ttt ettt et e e ettt e e e e e e e et e eeeeeeass et reteeesssaaeeraeeeeeesenanns 10
SECTION 8.03  COORDINATION .ttettteettteetteeesssaeseseeeeeessssassssesesesssssasresetetesssassssreretesssssasesreeeseeesssanns 10
ARTICLE IX. 11
INSURANCE AND LIABILITY 11
SECTION 9.01  INSURANCE .....eeettteetteeeteieetteee s s tee et eteeesssas et etesssssseeaetesesssasssebeseeeeesssanasrseeeeeesssanns 11
SECTION 9.02  RELEASE OF LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY 1euutvtetiteeeieiieeeeieeeessssssereeesesssssssssseessesssssnnns 12
SECTION 9.03  EXCLUSIONS FROM INDEMNIFICATION ...uuutttetieeeeteseeeeeeeeeesssssssssesesessssssssssseeesesssssnnns 12
SECTION9.04  CONDUCT ON THIRD PARTY CLAIMS ...ttt e ettt et e e e teeerene e e s s seseereeeeeeesenans 13
SECTION 9.05  CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE ......vtetiteetieieeeeteee e et esseeeeeeeesssassssrareessssssssssrseeeeesssnanns 13
SECTION9.06  NO WAIVER OF LIMITATION ON LIABILITY 1rvvtitiiiiiiiiieiiieeesssisisreeeresssssnsssseessesssssnes 13
ARTICLE X. 13
TERM AND TERMINATION 13
SECTION 10.01  TERM tiiiiiiieiieeetee ettt et e e e e et ettt e e e e e se et eteeeseaaa e aeteeesesasasstareeeeesssanassreeeeeessenans 13
SECTION 10.02  TERMINATION . ..ctttettteeeteteeteeeeestee e eeeeessesasetseeeesesssassseseeesesssasssssereeeeesssasasreeeeeessssanns 13
ARTICLE XI. 14
THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 14
SECTION 11.01  DEVELOPER ...vveetetettteeeeeeteee e e tee ettt e e etesee et etesesase e aeeeeesssasssetaeetesesssaseerseeeeeesenanas 14
ARTICLE XII. 14
REIMBURSEMENT 14
SECTION 12.01 CONSTRUCTION COSTS AND EXPENSES. ....uvvvetiieeiiiiiiieeiteeessiesessreeesessssissessseessessssnnnns 14
SECTION 12.02 POST-CONSTRUCTION COSTS AND EXPENSES.......iiicetveiieieeeiieiirerieeeessissessseesseesssnnns 14
SECTION 12.03  EXTRAORDINARY EXPENSES. ... .uvetetiteeiieieeeetete e e tesee et e eeessassaeeeeeessssasirsereeessenanas 14
SECTION 12.04  LOST TAX REVENUE. .....ceettii ettt ettt et e e et e e ettt et e e e e e e ettt eeesesase e ereeeseeanaas 15
SECTION 12.05 FIRE PROTECTION FUNDS. ....cottittttettee e e teseeeeteeeeeteaae et e eeeeseseseaeeeesesssaseereeeeeessenaes 15
ARTICLE XII1I. 15
MISCELLANEOUS 15
SECTION 13.01  AMENDMENTS .. iiiti et ettt ettt ittt te i ettt et et et et et et et et et et et et et e e et et et et et et e te i et et et et e teteteretereterereeeaens 15
SECTION 13.02 SEVERABILITY AND SAVINGS CLAUSE .....coii it ettt ettt ie et nana e nanenenn 15
SECTION 13.03  FORCE MAIEURE ... .ooii ittt ettt ettt et et et et et et et et et et et et et et et ettt e e e e ranaas 15
SECTION 13.04 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES .. .coiiiie i ettt ettt et te et e ietetaieiaiaiananananaiaianaiasenanananenens 15



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 61 of 247

Y=o [ I 0 LT N[0 1 i =S 16
SECTION 13.06  GOVERNING LAW ....ocoitiiiiiiiicte ettt ettt ettt et st e s ebe st e e etae e snbe e e sree e e 16
SECTION 13.07 CONFLICT WITH MOU REGARDING OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROJECT WORK........ 16
SECTION 13.08 FEDERAL LOBBYING RESTRICTIONS ...cccviiiitieiitieeiteeeitreestreesiteeesrteesseesstneesnreeessneesnns 16
SECTION 13.09 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION ......ciititeiiieiitieeitreesreeestreessreesnteesssressnsessssnessseeesseessnns 17
SECTION 13.10 CIVIL RIGHTS OBLIGATIONS ....ccotiiiitieeiteeiiteeesteeesteeestreestreessteeessbessbeeessaessseeesseeesnns 17
SECTION 13.11  LITIGATION; VENUE .....ciiiitiiiitiee ittt e ittt stteesiteeestve e steeestaeesttessbeeesnbessnbeesntaeesnbeeesseeennns 17
SECTION 13.12 ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES .....uvtiitieiteeeitteeeiteeeeteeestesesteeesteessntessssresssessstasesnresssseeesnns 18
SIGNATURE PAGES ..o e e e, S-1 THROUGH S-2

EXHIBIT A—PROJECT LIMITS

EXHIBIT B — MINIMUM DESIGN STANDARDS

EXHIBIT C — AUTHORITY INVOICING REQUIREMENTS
EXHIBIT D — CUL-DE-SAC DESIGN

EXHIBIT E—PROJECT IMPACTS MAP

EXHIBIT F — FEDERAL CERTIFICATION FORMS
EXHIBIT G — MILESTONE ONE LIMITS MAP



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 62 of 247

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (hereinafter the “MOU”) is made
and entered into this day of , 2024, by and between the METRO FLOOD
DIVERSION AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) and RAYMOND TOWNSHIP, NORTH
DAKOTA (the “Township”).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the faithful performance of each Party of the
mutual covenants and agreements herein set forth, it is mutually agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

Section 1.01  DEerINITIONS.  All capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined
herein shall have the meanings given to them in this MOU and as defined in this Section unless a
different meaning clearly applies from the context.

“Compensation Event” means as defined in the Project Agreement.

“Comprehensive Project” means the project commonly known as the Fargo-Moorhead
Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project, which includes the SWDCAI.

“Design Documents” means all drawings (including plans, profiles, cross-sections,
notes, elevations, typical sections, details, and diagrams), specifications, reports, studies,
working drawings, shop drawings, calculations, electronic files, records, and submittals
necessary for, or related to, the design of the SWDCALI.

“Developer” means Red River Valley Alliance, LLC, a limited liability company formed
under the laws of the State of Delaware that entered the Project Agreement with the Authority to
design, finance, build, operate, and maintain the SWDCAI. References to the Developer
throughout this MOU include references to other entities engaged by the Developer to complete
such work.

“Diversion Inlet Structure” means the hydraulic control structures being constructed by
USACE at the confluence of County Road 16 and County Road 17.

“Force Majeure Flood Event” means (i) until Project Substantial Completion, an
officially declared federal flood disaster occurring in the Fargo-Moorhead metropolitan area; and
(i1) on or after Project Substantial Completion, more than 45,000 cfs is permitted to flow through
the Diversion Inlet Structure.

“Indemnified Party” means a party identified by the Project Agreement as such.

“Insurance Policies” means the insurance policies the Authority is required to carry or
ensure are carried by the Developer.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 63 of 247

“Intellectual Property” means any and all patents, trademarks, service marks, copyright,
database rights, moral rights, rights in a design, know-how, confidential information and all or
any other intellectual or industrial property rights whether or not registered or capable of
registration and whether subsisting in the United States or any part of the world together with all
or any goodwill relating or attached thereto which is created, brought in existence, acquired,
used, or intended to be used by the Authority for the purposes of carrying out the work or
otherwise for the purposes of this MOU.

“Losses” means any loss, damage, injury, liability, obligation, costs, response cost,
expense, fee, charge, judgment, penalty, or fine. Losses include injury to or death of Persons,
damage or loss of property, and harm or damage to natural resources.

“MAI” means mitigation and associated infrastructure.

“Material Change or Modification” means a change or modification affecting the
operation or performance of a New Gravel Roadway.

“Milestone One Limits” means the portion of the SWDCAI from the new Drain 14 inlet
structure (including the Drain 14 inlet facilities) to the Red River, including the SWDCAI outlet
(i.e., between the Indicative Design Station 0+00 and approximately 920+00 as shown on
Exhibit A attached hereto).

“Mobility Improvement” means a gravel improvement to an ancillary unimproved road
to facilitate increased mobility due to realignments caused by construction of the SWDCALI.

“New Gravel Road” means a gravel road or field access that will be opened and
constructed to provide access to a Parcel Without Access.

“Parcel Without Access” means a parcel of land that, as a result of the construction of
the SWDCAI, will be left without an access point or whose access will be severed, excluding
property that can be accessed by adjoining parcels with a matching owner.

“Party” means the Authority or the Township, as the context may require, and their
respective legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns, and wherever a reference in
this MOU is made to any Parties hereto, “Parties” means the Authority and the Township,
collectively, and their respective legal representatives, successors, and permitted assigns.

“Person” means an individual, a general or limited partnership, a joint venture, a
corporation, a limited liability company, a trust, an unincorporated organization, or a
governmental authority.

“Project Agreement” means the contract to design, build, finance, operate, and maintain
the SWDCAI that the Authority entered with the Developer.

“Project Data” means

@ Design Documents; and



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 64 of 247

(b) Any other information, documents, or data required or brought into existence or
used in relation to the work or this MOU,;

in each case, that is used by or on behalf of the Authority in connection with the provision of the
work or the performance of the Authority’s obligations under this MOU.

“Project Limits” means the approximate right-of-way for the SWDCAI, as currently
projected in Exhibit A.

“Project Substantial Completion” means the completion of all substantial completion
conditions as outlined in the Project Agreement for the substantial completion of the SWDCALI.

“Released for Construction Documents” means all drawings, specifications, revisions
thereto, and any other items necessary to construct the work, signed and sealed by the Engineer
of Record.

“Relief Event” means as defined in the Project Agreement.

“Routine Maintenance” means re-striping, snow plowing, and ice and snow control
(e.g., application of salts, chlorides, or sand).

“SEAI” means the southern embankment and associated infrastructure portion of the
Comprehensive Project, to be procured by USACE.

“Storm Water Diversion Channel and Associated Infrastructure” or “SWDCAI”
means the approximately thirty (30) mile, 20,000 cubic feet per second (cfs) during a 100-year
event channel and associated features, including the outlet, river and drain inlets, road bridges,
railroad bridges, aqueducts, and recreational features, to be constructed as part of the
Comprehensive Project.

“Substantial Completion” means a New Gravel Road or Mobility Improvement is
functional to its intended use.

“Third Party Claims” means any and all claims, disputes, disagreements, causes of
action, demands, suits, actions, investigations or administrative proceedings brought by a Person
that is not an Indemnified Party, including the Township, with respect to damages, injuries,
liabilities, obligations, losses, costs, penalties, fines, or expenses (including attorneys’ fees and
expenses) sustained or incurred by such Person.

“Traffic Mitigation Route” means existing roads that may be used as detour routes
during construction of the SWDCAM.

ARTICLE II.
INTENT



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 65 of 247

Section 2.01  INTENT. The Authority, in conjunction with the United States Army
Corps of Engineers (“USACE”), is designing, constructing, operating, and maintaining the
Comprehensive Project. One element of the Comprehensive Project is the SWDCAI, which the
Authority will deliver through a public-private partnership with the Developer. The Authority
transferred the majority of the obligations set forth in this MOU to the Developer through the
entrance of the Project Agreement. If an obligation is not transferred to the Developer, the
Authority will undertake such obligation itself or assign the same to a third party. References to
the Authority throughout this MOU include references to other entities engaged by the Authority,
including the Developer, to complete such work. Regardless of whether the Authority assigns
any of the work described in this MOU, it will remain liable for the obligations assigned by this
MOU.

Section 2.02  DEVELOPER AND AUTHORITY CONTACT. Following the selection of the
Developer, an Authority appointed and Developer selected contact within the agency and prime
contractor (“Point of Contact”) will be assigned to the Township Representative. The intended
purpose of this Point of Contact is to allow the Township Representative to provide information
to the Authority and the Developer regarding Township-related activities that may be occurring
on property near the Project Limits that may have an impact on the Developer’s work, as well as
to allow the Township Representative to inform the Authority and the Developer of conflicts or
concerns the Township may have. The Authority will work with the Township to remedy any
such conflicts or concerns.

ARTICLE IILI.
SWDCAI AND OPENING

Section 3.01  DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION. The Authority is responsible for designing
and constructing the SWDCAI. Once the Authority has prepared plans and specifications for the
SWDCALI, the Authority will open New Gravel Roads as set forth in this Article.

Section 3.02  NEw GRAVEL ROADS.

@ The Authority will seek authorization to establish a New Gravel Road from 35th
Street Southeast to landlocked parcel number 938.

(b) In the event the Authority’s design creates any additional Parcels Without Access,
the Authority will be responsible for establishing a New Gravel Road to provide access to those
parcels as well.

(© A New Gravel Road will be constructed as a Two-Lane Township Gravel Section
Road in accordance with the standards attached hereto as Exhibit B.

(d) The Authority will open New Gravel Roads through platting.

ARTICLE IV.
PROPERTY INTEREST ACQUISITION



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 66 of 247

Section 4.01  AcqQuisITION. The Authority will, at its sole cost and expense, obtain all
easements, rights-of-way, or other interests in real property necessary for the opening of New
Gravel Roads and the Mobility Improvements.

Section 4.02  TRANSFER OF INTEREST. For those portions of New Gravel Roads and
Mobility Improvements outside of the Project Limits and acquired by the Authority, the
Authority will convey to the Township, at the time set forth herein, the necessary right-of-way
and/or easement interests needed to operate and maintain the New Gravel Roads and Mobility
Improvements. The Authority will maintain ownership of those portions of New Gravel Roads
and Mobility Improvements located within the Project Limits.

Section 4.03  WEED CONTROL. On property in which the Authority has obtained an
interest for the development of the Comprehensive Project, the Authority will designate
personnel to monitor and maintain control of weeds in accordance with all applicable noxious
weed control ordinances.

Section 4.04  PLATTING. The Authority intends to plat the Project Limits. Cass
County, pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 24-05-09, will declare, by resolution, those portions of
Township roads, as determined by the Project Limits, that will be impacted by construction to be
part of the Cass County highway system. The section line road rights-of-way that the Authority
anticipates will be impacted by the construction are included in the Project Limits Map, attached
as Exhibit E.

ARTICLE V.
PRELIMINARY PLANNING AND ENGINEERING ACTIVITIES

Section 5.01  SITE TESTING. The Authority will perform all preliminary engineering
activities for New Gravel Roads and Mobility Improvements, including: (a) technical studies and
analyses; (b) geotechnical, seismic, flooding, and biological investigations; (c) right-of-way
mapping, surveying, and appraisals; (d) utility subsurface investigations and mapping; (e)
hazardous materials investigations; and (f) archeological, paleontological, and cultural
investigations.

Section 5.02  MITIGATION. The Authority is responsible, at its sole cost and expense,
for the remediation and removal of all hazardous materials unearthed as a result of the
construction of the SWDCAI, New Gravel Roads, and the Mobility Improvements.

Section 5.03  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEWS. The Authority will coordinate with USACE
to ensure that all work described in this MOU complies with applicable environmental laws and
regulations and receives all necessary environmental clearances.

Section 5.04  UTILITY RELOCATION. The Authority is responsible for coordinating
and/or performing utility relocations and will be responsible for costs incurred for these
relocations.

Section 5.05  PERMITS AND APPROVALS. The Authority will secure any necessary
permits and/or approvals for construction of the SWDCAI from the State of North Dakota and is



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 67 of 247

responsible for carrying out any requirements of those permits and/or approvals, including
environmental requirements. From the Township, the Authority will apply for and secure
conditional use permits for recreational features of the SWDCAI as required under the
Township’s ordinances. Currently, there are no recreational features included in the Authority’s

technical requirements for the SWDCAI. The current features of the SWDCAI include the
following:

@) Diversion channel,

(b) Low flow channel;

(c) Diversion channel outlet;

(d) Maintenance roads and trails;

(e Drainage inlets;

)] Agqueducts;

(9) Project access points;

() Excavated material berms;

Q) Diversion channel line of protection;

{)) Local drainage;

(K) Highway crossings;

() Railroad crossings; and

(m)  Utility crossings.
In the event recreational features are added to the SWDCAI, the Authority will apply for and
secure a conditional use permit from the Township for their construction. Except as otherwise
specifically set forth herein, the Authority is not required to obtain any other permits from the

Township.

ARTICLE VI.
DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

Section 6.01  DEsSIGN. The Authority will submit all designs for New Gravel Roads
and the Mobility Improvements to the County for review and approval in accordance with the
terms of the memorandum of understanding entered between the County and the Authority for
the SWDCAI. Any designs resulting from this MOU will be the property of the Authority. The
provisions of this section do not preclude the Township from hiring its own engineer (the
“Township Engineer”) to be consulted during the design phase. If the Township desires to have



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 68 of 247

the Township Engineer consulted, it will notify the Authority Representative, who will
coordinate with the Township Engineer on design reviews. The Township is authorized to
submit any engineering expenses incurred for design to the Authority for reimbursement
pursuant to Article XII.

Section 6.02  CONSTRUCTION.

@) The Authority will be responsible for constructing New Gravel Roads, the
Mobility Improvements, and any other physical alterations necessary for construction, operation,
and maintenance of the SWDCA.

(b) Construction of a New Gravel Road will be in accordance with the plat and will
be constructed as a Two-Lane Gravel Section road in accordance with the standards attached
hereto as Exhibit B.

(©) The Authority will construct the following Mobility Improvements:

1) Improve 166th Avenue Southeast from 34th Street Southeast to 35th Street
Southeast in accordance with the specifications included in Exhibit B attached hereto.

2 Improve 34th Street Southeast from 166th Avenue Southeast to 38th Street
Northwest in accordance with the specifications included in Exhibit B attached hereto.

Section 6.03  CREATION OF DEAD-ENDS. At each location where construction of the
SWDCAI creates a dead-end of a section line road, the Authority will construct a cul-de-sac of
material consistent with the material of the remaining section line road and according to the
design attached hereto as Exhibit D. The cul-de-sac may be constructed outside the Project
Limits or inside the Project Limits, as the design for the SWDCAI allows in the discretion of the
Authority, with the preference being that it is constructed outside the Project Limits.

Section 6.04  TRAFFIC MITIGATION RouTes. The Authority will utilize Traffic
Mitigation Routes to maintain adequate mobility and construction access along the SWDCAI
during construction. Once the Authority has identified Traffic Mitigation Routes, it will inform
the Township. The use of Traffic Mitigation Routes may or may not entail upgrading an existing
earthen or dirt road to a gravel road. During the time that traffic is detoured on a Traffic
Mitigation Route, the Authority will maintain the Traffic Mitigation Route in a condition that is
smooth and free from holes, ruts, ridges, bumps, and standing water. The Township will be
responsible for Routine Maintenance on Traffic Mitigation Routes. Once the detour along the
Traffic Mitigation Route is terminated, the Authority will either remove the road for construction
of the SWDCAI or will restore the detour route to a condition that is equivalent to that which
existed prior to its use.

Section 6.05 HAuL RoADS. Prior to beginning construction, the Authority will
identify existing roads that it may utilize as haul roads and inform the Township. The Authority
will comply with seasonable and other load restrictions on existing public roads. The Authority
will use its best efforts to utilize County roads, in lieu of Township roads, as haul routes and will
work with the County Engineer in doing so. The Authority will operate and maintain the



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 69 of 247

condition of these roads during construction and make any necessary adjustments to the existing
public roads to accommodate the vehicles hauling construction material. The Township will
provide Routine Maintenance on haul routes. In the event the Township believes maintenance is
not being performed or is being underperformed, it will notify the Point of Contact, and the
Authority will coordinate maintenance, which may include, if agreed upon, the Township
performing the maintenance and receiving reimbursement from the Authority. By completion of
the Milestone One Limits, the Authority will have restored those roads used as haul roads to a
condition equivalent to that which existed prior to their use. Any changes to haul routes will be
forwarded to the Township for review and comment.

Section 6.06  SIGNAGE AND LANE CLOSURES. The Authority will be responsible for
traffic flow impacted by its construction and will place and maintain appropriate signage during
construction of New Gravel Roads, the Mobility Improvements, and the SWDCALI, as necessary.
The Authority will maintain traffic control devices in like new condition and located in positions
required by the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. Additionally, the Authority will
provide advanced notification to the Township and the public of road closures, lane closures,
and/or traffic switches.

Section 6.07  CHANGES OR MODIFICATIONS. Any material changes or modifications to
the location of a New Gravel Road will be subject to approval following the procedure outlined
in Article 111 for opening a New Gravel Road. Any changes or modifications to the locations of
the Mobility Improvements will be subject to written approval by the Township. Any Material
Changes or Modifications to the Released for Construction Documents of a New Gravel Road or
Mobility Improvement will also be subject to review and approval by the County in accordance
with the terms of the memorandum of understanding entered between the County and the
Authority for the SWDCAL. If the Township hired a Township Engineer to be engaged during
design review, as described in Section 6.01, the Authority Representative will also consult with
the Township Engineer for any Material Change or Modification to the Released for
Construction Documents of a New Gravel Road or a Mobility Improvement.

Section 6.08  CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE. To facilitate scheduling for construction
work of New Gravel Roads and the Mobility Improvements, the Authority will provide the
Township Representative a proposed construction schedule for New Gravel Roads and Mobility
Improvements, as well as a map of designated haul routes. The Point of Contact will provide
schedule updates to the Township Representative as they become available.

Section 6.09 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION. The Authority will provide the Township
Representative, the County Engineer, and the Township Engineer, if applicable, with written
notice of any anticipated Substantial Completion of a New Gravel Road or Mobility
Improvement: (i) no later than sixty (60) calendar days and (ii) no later than fifteen (15) Business
Days prior to the anticipated date for Substantial Completion. No later than ten (10) Business
Days prior to the anticipated date for Substantial Completion, the County Engineer, and the
Township Engineer, if applicable, and the Authority will conduct a final inspection of the New
Gravel Road or Mobility Improvement to determine whether the structure meets the
requirements as provided in this MOU. If the County Engineer or the Township Engineer finds
the construction is insufficient, whether due to it being incomplete or non-compliant with the
requirements as provided in this MOU, as applicable, the County Engineer or the Township



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 70 of 247

Engineer will notify the Authority of such fact and the Authority will correct such deficiency in
the construction work and re-notify for inspection.

Section 6.10  OWNERSHIP.

@) Upon substantial completion of the Milestone One Limits, the Authority will
transfer ownership and control of New Gravel Roads and Mobility Improvements outside of the
Project Limits to the Township (“Turnover”). The Authority will maintain ownership and
control of New Gravel Roads and Mobility Improvements within the Project Limits.

(b) The Authority will warrant that the work on New Gravel Roads and Mobility
Improvements is complete and conforms to good industry practice and that all materials and
equipment furnished as a part of the work are of good quality and free of defects in materials and
workmanship. This warranty will be effective for a period of one (1) year beginning on the date
of Project Substantial Completion.

Section 6.11  INSPECTION AND ACCESS. The Township will have the right to inspect
the construction work to be performed hereunder at any time during its progress and to make
final inspection upon notification of anticipated Substantial Completion. The Authority will
permit and facilitate reasonable access for the Township for the reasonable inspection of the New
Gravel Roads and the Mobility Improvements and shall cooperate fully with Township
inspection personnel. Inspections may only be made upon reasonable notice to the Authority and
during business hours, and the Township must comply with the Authority’s site safety
requirements. In an emergency, the Township may access the site as needed and provide notice
as soon as reasonably possible to the Authority. The presence or absence of a Township
inspector does not relieve the Authority from any requirement in this MOU, nor is any inspector
authorized to issue instructions to the Developer or change any term or condition of this MOU.

Section 6.12 EXTRA MATERIAL PILE. By Project Substantial Completion, the
Authority will have stockpiled approximately twenty-five thousand (25,000) cubic yards of
excavated material near the County Road 22 crossing of the SWDCAI. The Township will have
the opportunity to utilize these materials, in the discretion of the Authority. If the Township
desires to utilize these materials, it must contact the Authority for authorization. The Township
may request access to the extra material pile no more than fifteen (15) times. The Township will
be responsible for all costs associated with removal of the excavated materials from the deposit
site.

ARTICLE VII.
MAINTENANCE

Section 7.01  NEw GRAVEL ROADS. Between completion of a New Gravel Road and
Turnover, the Authority will perform maintenance, aside from Routine Maintenance, on the New
Gravel Road, whether inside or outside the Project Limits, in good condition. At all times
following Turnover of a New Gravel Road, the Township, at its sole cost and expense, will
maintain the New Gravel Road located outside of the Project Limits and the Authority, at its sole
cost and expense, will perform maintenance, aside from Routine Maintenance, on all portions of
the New Gravel Road located within the Project Limits. The Township will be responsible for



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 71 of 247

Routine Maintenance of a New Gravel Road at all times, whether located inside or outside the
Project Limits.

Section 7.02  MOBILITY IMPROVEMENTS. Between completion of a Mobility
Improvement and Turnover, the Authority will perform maintenance, aside from Routine
Maintenance, on the Mobility Improvements, whether located inside or outside the Project
Limits, in good condition. At all times following Turnover of a Mobility Improvement, the
Township, at its sole cost and expense, will maintain the Mobility Improvement located outside
of the Project Limits, and the Authority, at its sole cost and expense, will perform maintenance,
aside from Routine Maintenance, on all portions of the Mobility Improvement located within the
Project Limits. The Township will be responsible for Routine Maintenance of a Mobility
Improvement at all times, whether located inside or outside the Project Limits.

Section 7.03  SWDCAI. The Township will have no responsibilities for maintenance
associated with the SWDCAL.

Section 7.04  SIGNAGE. If the Authority installs any permanent signage outside of the
Project Limits during the work outlined in the MOU, the Township may repair or replace the
signage, as necessary, and submit an invoice to the Authority, in accordance with Exhibit C
attached hereto, for the expense of such repair or replacement.

Section 7.05  GARBAGE DUMPING. In the event the dumping of garbage on roads that
have been dead ended due to the construction of the SWDCAI becomes an issue, the Township
has the authority to clean up the dumped garbage and submit the same for reimbursement from
the Authority pursuant to Article XII.

ARTICLE VIILI.
FUTURE CHANGES OR ADDITIONS

Section 8.01  TOwNsHIP ROADS. In the event the Township desires to add a crossing
of the SWDCALI, the Township must secure written approval from the Authority. Low water
crossings of the SWDCAI will neither be considered nor allowed by the Authority.

Section 8.02 SWDCAI.

@ The Authority retains the ability, at its sole cost and expense, to adjust or alter the
SWDCAI to the extent such may be accomplished without adversely affecting, changing, or
altering any open section lines.

(b) If it becomes necessary or desirable to discontinue, close, or open a section line to
accommodate the SWDCAI project, the cost of such work, including any incidental costs made
necessary by any such changes, will be the expense of the Authority.

Section 8.03  COORDINATION. In the event the Authority desires to discontinue, close,

or reopen a section line to accommodate future changes or additions of the SWDCAI, the
Authority and the Township will work in Good Faith, with the understanding that time is of the

10



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 72 of 247

essence, to agree to terms regarding the accommodation of a future change or addition of the
SWDCAI through an addendum to this MOU.

ARTICLE IX.
INSURANCE AND LIABILITY

Section 9.01  INSURANCE.

@ The Authority will procure and maintain the following insurance coverage until
Turnover of all New Gravel Roads and Mobility Improvements:

1) Commercial General Liability Insurance including coverage for premises
and operations, bodily injury (including death), personal injury, property damage
(including loss of use), product and completed operations, explosion, collapse and
underground, and contractual liability of limits of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and
$2,000,000 annual aggregate. The Township is to be named as additional insured on a
primary, non-contributory basis.

(2) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance including
coverage for, but not limited to, the statutory liability under the State of North Dakota’s
workers’ compensation laws and employer’s liability with limits of at least $500,000
each accident, $500,000 by disease policy limit, and $500,000 by disease each employee.

3) Claims Made Project Specific Errors & Omissions (Professional Liability)
Insurance in connection with design and construction with a minimum combined total
period of ten (10) years for design, construction, and extended reporting with limits of at
least $2,000,000 per claim and in the aggregate.

(4)  All Risk Insurance in completed value form including coverage for
permanent and/or temporary works executed and in the course of execution, materials,
supplies, equipment, and other goods of at least $10,000,000.

(b) The Authority will procure and maintain the following insurance coverage after
Substantial Completion of all New Gravel Roadways and Mobility Improvements throughout the
warranty term provided in Section 6.11(b) of this MOU:

1) Commercial General Liability Insurance including coverage for premises
and operations, bodily injury (including death), personal injury, property damage
(including loss of use), product and completed operations, explosion, collapse and
underground, and contractual liability of limits of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and
$2,000,000 annual aggregate. The Township is to be named as additional insured on a
primary, non-contributory basis.

(2) Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance including
coverage for, but not limited to statutory liability under the State of North Dakota’s
workers’ compensation laws and employer’s liability with limits of at least $500,000
each accident, $500,000 by disease policy limit, and $500,000 by disease each employee.

11



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 73 of 247

Section 9.02 RELEASE OF LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY.

@ Except as set forth in the following Section, to the fullest extent permitted by
Applicable Law, the Authority will require that the Developer release, defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless the Township on demand and from and against any and all liability for Losses
arising from Third Party Claims, in each case, to the extent such Losses arise out of, or as a
consequence of, any breach of the MOU by the Developer or any negligence of the Developer.
Additionally, the Authority will retain responsibility of the following key decisions and matters
relating to the scope of the SWDCAI and the Comprehensive Project and the interaction of the
SWDCAI with the SEAI and MAI (“Authority-Retained Responsibilities™):

1) The decision to undertake the SWDCAI and the Comprehensive Project;

2 The decision to deliver the Comprehensive Project through a split
procurement model with the Authority procuring the SWDCAI and USACE procuring
the SEAI and the MALI;

3) The decision as to the location and alignment of the Project Limits;

(4)  The decision as to the form of the flood management system and the level
of flood protection to be delivered through the SWDCAI and the Comprehensive Project;

(5) The design, construction, operation, and maintenance of the SEAI and the
MAI; and

(6) From time to time, the decision as to whether or not to operate the control
structure on the Red River, the control structure on the Wild Rice River, or the Diversion

Inlet Structure.

Section 9.03  EXCLUSIONS FROM INDEMNIFICATION. The Authority will not require the
Developer to be responsible or to be obliged to release, defend, indemnify, or hold harmless the
Township with respect to any liability or Losses to the extent that the same arise as a direct result
of:

@ The Authority-Retained Responsibilities;

(b) A Compensation Event or Relief Event;

(© The presence of Hazardous Materials for which the Authority is responsible under
the terms of the Project Agreement;

(d) The fraud, negligence, recklessness, bad faith, or willful misconduct of the
Township;

(e) Any Losses suffered by the Township under a contract with a third party;

12



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 74 of 247

()] Any breach of the MOU by the Authority; or

(9) Any Losses suffered by the Township with respect to use of the Project Data, or
any Intellectual Property related to the Project Data, other than any use specifically for the
SWDCAL.

Section 9.04 CONDUCT ON THIRD PARTY CLAIMS.

@) Where the Township is entitled to make a claim under this MOU against the
Developer in relation to a Third Party Claim, the Township shall give notice of the relevant
claim to the Developer promptly, setting out the full particulars of the claim.

(b) Subject to the rights of the insurers under the Insurance Policies, the Developer
may at its own expense, and with the assistance and cooperation of the Township, conduct and
control the Third Party Claim including its settlement and the Township shall not, to the extent
that the Developer has elected to conduct and control the relevant Third Party Claim, take any
action to settle or prosecute the Third Party Claim.

(© The Developer shall, if it wishes to have conduct and control of any Third Party
Claim, reimburse the Township for any cost or liability arising out of the conduct and control of
the Third Party Claim by the Developer within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving an invoice
from the Township with respect to such costs.

(d) The Township shall at all times take all reasonable steps to minimize and mitigate
any loss for which the Township is entitled to bring a claim against the Developer pursuant to
this MOU.

Section 9.05  CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to commencing construction work
under this MOU, the Authority will furnish to the Township Representative certificates of
insurance evidencing the coverages, endorsements, and amendments described herein. The
Authority will notify the Township in writing at least five (5) Business Days prior to any
cancellation, non-renewal, substitution, or material alteration of insurance.

Section 9.06 No WAIVER OF LIMITATION ON LIABILITY. The indemnity and hold
harmless provisions herein shall not be deemed as a waiver by the Authority of the limits of
liability set forth in N.D.C.C. § 32-12.1-03, as amended from time to time, or a waiver of any
available immunities or defenses.

ARTICLE X.
TERM AND TERMINATION

Section 10.01 Term. This MOU will continue in full force and effect for ten (10) years
following the Effective Date and will automatically renew for successive 1-year terms unless a
Party gives a 1-year advanced written notice of a desire to not renew to the other Party.

Section 10.02 TERMINATION. The Parties must mutually agree, in writing, to terminate
this MOU.

13



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 75 of 247

ARTICLE XI.
THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

Section 11.01 DeveLorer. The Authority and the Township specifically agree,
acknowledge, and covenant that portions of the Township’s property or right-of-way will be used
by the Developer in order to construct, operate, and maintain the SWDCAI. As a result, the
Authority and the Township agree and acknowledge that, at any time during which one or more
of the Parties is in breach or default of its respective obligations arising out of or related to this
MOU, the Developer may enforce the terms and conditions of this MOU including, without
limitation, by securing a court order directing the Party to perform its obligations under the
MOU. In addition to the foregoing, the Developer shall have all other rights available to it at law
or in equity, and all of the rights and remedies provided hereunder are deemed cumulative and
not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law or otherwise available to the Developer.
The Developer, however, will have no rights to utilize the Township’s property or right-of-way
beyond what is available to the general public or what has been granted to the Authority by this
MOU.

ARTICLE XIlI.
REIMBURSEMENT

Section 12.01 CONSTRUCTION COSTS AND EXPENSES. Between the Effective Date and
Project Substantial Completion, the Township may seek reimbursement from the Authority for
any costs and expenses incurred as a result of work provided under this MOU, in an amount up
to $3,000.00 annually. The first annual period shall run from the Effective Date until the date
preceding the first anniversary of the Effective Date. Annual periods thereafter shall run from
the anniversary of the Effective Date until the earlier of: (i) the date preceding the next
anniversary of the Effective Date or (ii) Project Substantial Completion. The Township will
submit an invoice for such costs and expenses in accordance with the procedure outlined in
Exhibit C attached hereto or as otherwise instructed by the Point of Contact.

Section 12.02 PoST-CONSTRUCTION COSTS AND EXPENSES. Following Project
Substantial Completion, in addition to any reimbursable costs and expenses set forth herein, the
Township may seek reimbursement from the Authority for any costs or expenses incurred in
relation to the Comprehensive Project in an amount up to $1,500.00 annually. The first annual
period shall run from the date of Project Substantial Completion until the date preceding the first
anniversary of the date of Project Substantial Completion. Annual periods thereafter shall run
from the anniversary of the date of Project Substantial Completion until the date preceding the
next anniversary of the date of Project Substantial Completion. The Township will submit an
invoice for such costs and expenses in accordance with the procedure outlined in Exhibit C
attached hereto or as otherwise instructed by the Point of Contact.

Section 12.03 EXTRAORDINARY  EXPENSES. In addition to the allowable
reimbursements set forth in Sections 12.01 and 12.02, the Township may seek reimbursement
from the Authority for extraordinary expenses if prior to incurring the expense, the Township
receives written authorization from the Authority. The Authority will not unreasonably withhold
approval of these requests.

14



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 76 of 247

Section 12.04 LosT Tax ReEVENUE. Due to the construction of the SWDCAI and
ownership thereof by the Authority, the Authority recognizes that the Township will experience
a loss of revenue from ad valorem taxes. The Authority estimates that one thousand five
hundred eighty-four (1,584) acres in the Township will be owned by the Authority for the
SWDCAI. For the 2020 general tax levy, the billed ad valorem tax per aggregate acre was
$2.75. In order to assist the Township in recouping some of this loss of revenue, the Authority
will remit funds to the Township annually for a period of ten (10) years, each year remitting the
amount of lost revenue from the above-mentioned one thousand five hundred eighty-four (1,584)
acres at $2.75 per acre for a total of $4,360.00 (the “Lost Tax Revenue Payment”). The
Authority will make its first Lost Tax Revenue Payment to the Township within sixty (60)
calendar days following the Effective Date and on or before July 1 of each year during the
remainder of the 10-year period described herein.

Section 12.05 FIRE PROTECTION FUNDS. Due to the potential increase in funds that the
Township may be required to expend on fire protection as a result of construction of the
SWDCAI, the Authority will, within sixty (60) calendar days following the Effective Date, remit
$30,000.00 to the Township to be utilized for future fire protection.

ARTICLE XIII.
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 13.01 AMENDMENTS. This MOU may be amended only by written instrument
duly executed by the Parties or their respective successors or assigns, except to the extent
expressly provided otherwise in this MOU.

Section 13.02 SEVERABILITY AND SAVINGS CLAUSE. Each provision, section, sentence,
clause, phrase, and word of this MOU is intended to be severable. If any provision, section,
sentence, clause, phrase, or word hereof is held by a court with jurisdiction to be illegal or
invalid for any reason whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity will not affect the validity of the
remainder of this MOU.

Section 13.03 FORCE MAJEURE. Neither the Authority nor the Township will be liable
to the other during any period in which its performance is delayed or prevented, in whole or in
part, by any of the following circumstances: war, civil war, invasion, violent act of foreign
enemy, or armed conflict; nuclear, chemical, or biological contamination; ionizing radiation;
Force Majeure Flood Event; or any act of terrorism. If such a circumstance occurs, the Party
claiming the delay must undertake reasonable action to notify the other Party of the same.

Section 13.04 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES. Each of the Authority and the
Township hereby designates the following individual as its initial authorized representative,
respectively, to administer this MOU on its respective behalf:

€)) Authority Representative:  Kris Bakkegard, Director of Engineering

(b) Township Representative: ~ Barry Bowman, Clerk of Board of Supervisors

15



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 77 of 247

Section 13.05 NOTICE.

@ All notices under the MOU will be in writing and: (i) delivered personally; (ii)
sent by certified mail, return receipt requested; (iii) sent by a recognized overnight mail or
courier service, with delivery receipt requested; or (iv) sent by facsimile or email communication
followed by a hard copy and with receipt confirmed by telephone or return receipt (in the case of
email communication), to the following addresses.

(b) All notices to the Authority will be marked as regarding the SWDCAI and will be
delivered to the following address or as otherwise directed by the Authority Representative:

Jacobs
4784 Amber Valley Parkway South, Suite 200
Fargo, North Dakota 58104

and

Director of Engineering
4784 Amber Valley Parkway South, Suite 100
Fargo, North Dakota 58104

(© All notices to the Township will be marked as regarding the SWDCAI and will be
delivered to the following address or as otherwise directed by the Township Representative:

3261 166th Avenue SE
Harwood, North Dakota 58042-9742

Section 13.06 GOVERNING LAw. This MOU will be governed and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of North Dakota.

Section 13.07 CoONFLICT WITH MOU REGARDING OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROJECT
WORK. Nothing in this MOU is intended to supersede, amend, or otherwise modify any other
memorandum of understanding or agreement entered by and between the Authority and the
Township for work regarding other aspects of the Comprehensive Project.

Section 13.08 FEDERAL LOBBYING RESTRICTIONS. Recipients of federal financial
assistance may not pay any person for influencing or attempting to influence any officer or
employee of a federal agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a member of Congress with respect to the award, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of a federal grant, loan, or contract. These requirements are
implemented for the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) in 40 CFR Part
34, which also describes types of activities, such as legislative liaison activities and professional
and technical services, which are not subject to this prohibition. On or prior to the Effective
Date, the Township will complete and submit to the Authority the certification and disclosure
forms in Appendix A and Appendix B to 40 CFR Part 23, which are attached within Exhibit F to
this MOU. In the event the Authority solicits assistance from the Township to complete an
element of the Comprehensive Project and funds made available to the Authority by the Water

16



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 78 of 247

Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act are utilized to finance such element, the Township
will also require all subcontractors and suppliers of any tier awarded a subcontract over $100,000
to similarly complete and submit the certification and disclosure forms pursuant to the process
set forth in 40 CFR 34.110.

Section 13.09 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION. In the event the Authority solicits
assistance from the Township to complete an element of the Comprehensive Project and funds
made available to the Authority by the Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act are
utilized to finance such element, the Township certifies it will not knowingly enter into a
contract with anyone who is ineligible under 40 CFR Part 32 to participate in the Comprehensive
Project. Suspension and debarment information can be accessed at http://www.sam.gov. The
Township represents and warrants that it has or will include a term or conditions requiring
compliance with this provision in all of its subcontracts under this MOU. On or prior to the
Effective Date, the Township will complete and submit to the Authority the federal certification
form regarding debarment and suspension, which is attached within Exhibit F to this MOU.

Section 13.10 CiviL RIGHTS OBLIGATIONS. In the event the Authority solicits
assistance from the Township to complete an element of the Comprehensive Project and funds
made available to the Authority by the Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act are
utilized to finance such element, the Township will comply with the following, federal non-
discrimination requirements:

@ Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination based on
race, color, and national origin, including limited English proficiency (LEP).

(b) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination
against persons with disabilities.

(©) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, which prohibits age discrimination.

(d) Section 13 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972,
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex.

(e) 40 CFR Part 7, as it relates to the foregoing.
()] Executive Order No. 11246.

On or prior to the Effective Date, the Township will complete and submit to the Authority the
federal certification form regarding civil rights, which is attached within Exhibit F to this MOU.

Section 13.11 LITIGATION; VENUE. All litigation between the Parties arising out of or
pertaining to this MOU or its breach will be filed, heard, and decided in the State District Court
of Cass County, North Dakota, which will have exclusive jurisdiction and venue. If there is
litigation, regardless of the outcome, each Party will be responsible for its own attorney’s fees.

17



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 79 of 247

Section 13.12 ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this
MOU may be executed by electronic signature, which shall be considered an original signature
for all purposes and shall have the same force and effect as an original signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this MOU to be duly
executed on the dates indicated below.

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank.)

18



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 80 of 247

Signature Page for Metro Flood Diversion Authority

The Governing Body of the Metro Flood Diversion Authority approved this MOU on the

of , 2024,
By:
By:
By:

ATTEST:

By:

METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

.Michelle (Shelly) A. Carlson, Chair

Robert Wilson, Co-Deputy Executive Director

Michael Redlinger, Co-Deputy Executive Director

Dawn Lindblom, Secretary

S-1



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 81 of 247

Signature Page for Raymond Township, North Dakota

s+
The Governing Body of Raymond Township, North Dakota, approved this MOU on the 2=
of Z‘_’ch ,2024.

RAYM(\)ND TOWNSHIP, NORTH DAKOTA

[\

By: /\)/W :

Dav\i{ivGust, Chdil{) B

ATTEST:

By: «ﬁcu/% frero—0

Barry Bowman, Clerk/Treasurer

S-2



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 82 of 247

EXHIBIT A
PROJECT LIMITS

a j '
! | | GEOR
. |

} \K i WISER

| )

! |

! '|

II \ . :
| [
|

I

1

Y 1/ |

-

|

|

|

%
% 1
Argusville \-oRAIN-30 r"? |
| ® KR A’!‘%’ |
BERLIN II ARS VP(%\\ ||
| ‘ A & |
| | \ |
;
I ‘ |
! Rush-}l?i\er \ \,
| ! : l
i ! '| |
H ________
1 ‘ | - | B
l _________ s 1 4 b A (O I (8 %__- :—-
_________ gl e y
| o o
» | \ n
0
! \ :
e : ‘ OAKPOR
'Q&SD'R‘W - \ A
(?Owisr'smy\’f":(\ J "
~%
1 =2
| @ =
e T G S —
i Al 4 !
Sd ) [~ |
l 5% Far 1 =,
i' I I I 5 S - =
. Nad ) e, . B :
_________ . II
) g —

ST
=
e

.
|
\ | i v M ea
| _sarne PRS- AW i
i MAPLET L T e
i ' |
|
i
1
1
1
II =
|
!
4
KURTZ
9
@<L
S
&
"zo,%%\
%
GENERAL LAYOUT N i
FM AREA DIVERSION PROJECT . N : 2 i ( \
v —
= Mies; FM AREA
ORI O RS, DL UL PRSP e a Diversion
P SA0D B ATONGI o v.ummm.f::“" N HFS0d e ol o WA 88 b ; i

A-1



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 83 of 247

EXHIBIT B
MINIMUM DESIGN STANDARDS

Two-Lane Township Gravel Section Road

Minimum Design Standards for New or Reconstruction of Existing Infrastructure

Typical Design Right of Roadway Turn M|n|r_num Access Bike/Ped
Section Speed V\_/ay Width Lanes Se_:ctlon Controls | Facilities
Width Thickness

Two-Lane
) . U
Township 55 mph 66 feet 24 feet NoO 4 inches /s m_|Ie N_ot
Gravel gravel spacing | Applicable
Section

Reinforced Culvert

1. NDDOT Design Manual, Chapter IV

2. NDDOT Design Manual, Chapter V

3. NDDOT Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction

4. AASHTO LRFD Bridge Design Specifications

5. AASHTO LRFD Bridge Construction Specifications

6. Cass County Comprehensive Highway Plan

For cases where AASHTO specifications conflict with NDDOT standards and policies, the
NDDOT standards and policies take precedence.

Mobility Improvements

Minimum Design Standards for Mobility Improvements

Right of

Minimum

Typical Design Way Roadway Turn Section Access | Bike/Ped

Section Speed Width Width Lanes Thickness Controls | Facilities
Township 15-20 Not 4 inches Yamile Not

Gravel 40 mph | 66 feet feet* Applicable | gravel spacing | Applicable

*Roadway with may be reduced to match existing width to avoid drainage issues or to stay
within ROW limits.




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 84 of 247

EXHIBIT C
AUTHORITY INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

€)) The Township will remit hard copy invoices to the Authority at the Authority’s
main office, and the invoices will be processed by the Authority for the following month. The
Township will also submit copies of the invoices to the Authority electronically at
APInvoicesFMDiv@jacobs.com, copied to bakkegardk@fmdiversion.gov. Each invoice should
include the identification of the Township, a description of the activity included in the invoice,
and the address where payment should be remitted. The Township may (i) initially pay for work
included in an invoice and then seek reimbursement from the Authority for the payment or (ii)
submit invoices directly to the Authority for initial payment. In either instance, the Authority
will remit payment to the Township.

(b) After the Authority receives a Township invoice, the Authority will either process
the invoice for payment or give the Township specific reasons, in writing, within fifteen (15)
calendar days, why part or all of the Authority’s payment is being withheld and what actions the
Township must take to receive the withheld payment.

(© In the event of disputed billing, only the disputed portion will be withheld from
payment and the Authority will pay the undisputed portion. The Authority will exercise
reasonableness in disputing any bill or portion thereof. Interest will accrue on any disputed
portion of the billing determined to be due and owing to the Township.

(d) Payment does not imply acceptance of services or that the invoice is accurate. In
the event an error is identified within three (3) months of receipt of payment, the Township must
credit any payment error from any payment that is due or that may become due to the Township
under this MOU.

(e) The Authority will be charged interest at the rate of one-half percent (1/2%) per
month, or the maximum amount permitted by North Dakota law if a lesser amount, on all past-
due amounts thirty (30) days after receipt of invoice. Payments will first be credited to interest
and then to principal.

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank.)

C-1



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 85 of 247

EXHIBITD
CUL-DE-SAC DESIGN

20m
[60 ft]

G-
T - TYPE
L 6m |
[20 f]
R=6m[20ft}-//—
g€ |
©& "

STANDARD TURNING AREA

D-1



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 86 of 247

EXHIBIT E

PROJECT IMPACTS MAP

T T L —— ] : Y g
8. 3 2 | =™ a v w ] ¥ | é 32
6° : 4 T141N R 50W §  T141N R 40w Harwood
= -\;\-¢,\—-— - 30 THASTs § B s o . s s e . s e o i . . . . s s e . s - TETHAVE:! wv—‘—-l_._.m-
\\ | | T140N R 50W | | . T140N R 50W
X . 4 ] I . ,
ot a6 | _O5- ! o4 93 i 02 / I 01 ' 06
| | Lower Rush River nlet % | :
N H z | z z
soner e« ey e oy { @ g_‘ g ;
R 2 & f
f \'\\!\ | I
12 07 |' 08 l\\og 10 ‘ 11‘ i 12 ( 07
i l \‘\\A i ' - | 5
________ | R s A ;‘_  32ND ST SE W = — —"_1?\:; - i M S SINDAVEN- = f e e Z =
z ~— - e ! ' '
i ; I |
& H i 18~
13 5 [ 17 16 | 13 |
. : I | | k.
R ’:_{11". £ - g A&
fowe = =33ROSTSE ~ A ) | l \\ r ‘
Harmony | o/ | o 2 N @L i \\.\ “ g
. B = S 31 o ‘ S
24 19 f 20 Maple RlverAqueduct\ 23 A \""\i\\"!g
; - , , | PV | g
b o e e ATE ST-SE e = e = — e S 2 : oy o
7~ £ ‘-r
o 3 el Raymond Township:North Inlet , 3’
“4e) { B85 ! 29 ! 28 “ i é h:
b
| ' £ .
b :»— ------- Ir e 3STHST SE—— % =} -—wmavt-uw—-—'-—--—].-._._
= onh
) I | ',é : Raymond Townshlp South Inlet
3/ 31 1 32 | 33 | 34 35 | 36
" Mapleton ] . ' [ “ |
, | | i
R T8
of Bl 55*--_’15’_ o o Drain 14B Inlet e B
_ Durbin Mapleton —— %
Legend
@ Aqueduct @ Township Road Closures === Township - Trai\Grass === County Road - Gravel
*- Inlet Structures Towns'hip Road Can Township - Unimproved e County Road - Paved
[ Drain Crossings Re"?'n Dpen === Township - Dirt = State or US Highway
~ @ Mobility Improvements
- Channel/SE Crossings it " wmm Township - Gravel = Interstate
r nc oagwa %
[ ] channel o Imprweg;en¥s Y ——— Township - Paved Township Boundary
—+— Railroad

Any reliance upon this map is at user's own nsk. AE2S does not warrant the map or its features are either spatially or temporally accurate or fit for a particular use.
All parcel acreages and legal descriptions shown hereon are based on County GIS dats. Final acreages and legal descriptions to be determined by boundary survey.
Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane North Dakota South FIPS 3302 Feet | Produced By:hrecords - AE2S, Inc. |

C:\Data\Projects\GIS Projects\FM Area Diversion\012 Lands Program\Property Acquisition\Project Wid e\Overall LA Maps\MOU byTownship 8 x11.mxd

0 0325 085

Mies

Locator MapBot 1 scale

Raymond

FM Area Diversion
Map Date: 4/11/2024 FM AREA

DIVERSION

S



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 87 of 247

EXHIBIT F
FEDERAL CERTIFICATION FORMS

CERTIFICATION REGARDING FEDERAL LOBBYING
The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into
of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement,
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in any
award documents for any of its subcontractors at all tiers (including subcontracts,
subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subcontractors shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into a contract with the Authority. By executing this certificate the undersigned
agrees and acknowledges that he/she has been duly authorized to execute this certificate.

Company/
Entity Name:

Signed:

Its:

Date:

PLEASE RETURN TO:
Metro Flood Diversion Authority
P.O. Box 2806

Fargo, ND 58108-2806



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 88 of 247

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION,
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and

Suspension, 13 CFR Part 145. The regulations were published as Part VII of the May 26, 1988 Federal
Register (pages 19160-19211).

)

)

®3)

Date: By:

(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON PAGE 2)

The official representative of the party contracting with the Metro Flood Diversion Authority
certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local)
transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
(2)(b) of this certification; and

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public
transactions, including contracts (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

(e) Are not presently debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from
performing work for the State of North Dakota, the State of Minnesota, the Metro Flood
Diversion Authority or any of its Member Entities.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective primary participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

The Official signing this certificate has been and is duly authorized to sign this certificate on behalf
of the entity or entities which intend to enter into a contract with the Metro Flood Diversion
Authority.

Official Business Name

Name and Title of Authorized
Representative

PLEASE RETURN TO:

Metro Flood Diversion Authority

P.O. Box 2806 Signature of Authorized Representative
Fargo, ND 58108-2806



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 89 of 247

10.

INSTRUCTIONSFORCERTIFICATION

By signing and submitting this certification, the prospective contracting party is providing the
certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective contracting party shall submit
an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the Metro Flood Diversion Authority’s (the
“Authority”) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the
prospective contracting party to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such
person from entering into contracts with the Authority.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when the Authority determined to enter into a contract with the prospective contracting party. In
order to qualify for participation in the U.S. EPA WIFIA program the Authority is required to
obtain this certification. If it is later determined that the prospective contracting party knowingly
rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to both the Authority
and the Federal Government, the Authority may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective contracting party shall provide immediate written notice to the Authority to which
this Certificate is submitted if at any time the prospective contracting party learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the
Authority for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations (13 CFR Part 145).

99 ¢

The prospective contracting party agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the Authority.

The prospective contracting party further agrees by submitting this certification that it will require a
“Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower
Tier Covered Transactions,” from all sub-contractors without modification, in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A contracting party in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A contracting party may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
ineligibility of its principals.

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge
and information of a contracting party is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed
by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a contracting party in
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the Authority may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

F-3



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 90 of 247

ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE - CIVIL RIGHTS CERTIFICATE

TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964, SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973,
THE AGE DISCRIMINATION ACT OF 1975, SECTION 13 OF THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION
CONTROL ACT AMENDMENTS OF 1972, 40 CFR PART 7, AND EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. 11246

The undersigned provides this assurance for the purpose of entering into a contract with the Metro Flood
Diversion Authority (Authority) related to the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area Flood Risk
Management Project (Project), which is receiving federal financial assistance. Specifically, the US EPA
WIFIA Program requires this assurance of all contractors and subcontractors providing services for the
Project.

The undersigned assures that it will comply with:

1.Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis
of race, color, or national origin including limited English proficiency (LEP);

2.Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits discrimination against
persons with disabilities;

3.The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, which prohibits age discrimination;

4.Section 13 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972, which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex;

5.40 CFR Part 7, as it relates to the foregoing; and
6.Executive Order No. 11246.

The undersigned understands that this Assurance is binding on the undersigned, its successors,
transferees, and assignees at any time during which federal financial assistance is provided to the Project.
The undersigned will ensure that all contractors, subcontractors, or others with whom it arranges to
provide services or benefits are not discriminating in violation of items 1-6. Otherwise, the contracts for
services can be terminated for cause and the undersigned can be declared ineligible to contract for the
Project.

By signing this form, the undersigned is agreeing to the above provisions and that he/she is duly
authorized to execute this form.

Signature of Authorized Official Title
Print Name Name of Institution or Agency
Date Street

City, State, Zip Code

PLEASE RETURN TO:

Metro Flood Diversion Authority Office Email Address
P.O. Box 2806

Fargo, ND 58108-2806

F-4



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 91 of 247

EXHIBIT G
MILESTONE ONE LIMITS MAP

EXISTING ROADS & RAILROADS
FM METRO DIVERSION
CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

G-1



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 92 of 247

Execution Version

MASTER UTILITY RELOCATION AGREEMENT

By and Between
METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY
and

SOUTHEAST WATER USERS DISTRICT

Dated as of June 27, 2024
Relating to:

Utility Relocation in the Southern Embankment and Associated Infrastructure and the
Upstream Mitigation Area
for the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan
Area Flood Risk Management Project

This instrument was drafted by:
Ohnstad Twichell, P.C.

John T. Shockley

P.O. Box 458

West Fargo, North Dakota 58078



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 93 of 247

Execution Version

TABLE OF CONTENTS
ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 2
] = g [ N A 1 R I 1= = [N o0 LT 2
SECTION 1.02  TERMS GENERALLY ..vveiititeetieeeeteetteeessieeessaeeetesssssassssseesesssssssssessesesssssssrssesesesssnasnrnees 8
SECTION 1.03  SURVIVAL OF TERMS .eeititeiiieeetteetteeessteessaeeeteessssaesaseeetesssassssssstesesssssssssreresesssnssnrsees 8
ARTICLE II. PURPOSE OF MASTER UTILITY RELOCATION AGREEMENT 9
=0 o [N I 1 R U] ==l 1] =R 9
SECTION 2.02 COORDINATION BETWEEN ENGINEERS ......cctttiiiiiiitieiiereesiessiieeeresessssssssresesesesssnssssseees 9
SECTION 2.03  COORDINATION WITH USARCE .....coi oottt ettt et e e e e s 9
ARTICLE III. REAL PROPERTY INTERESTS 9
= g [0 IR 1 R | N /= OO 9
SECTION 3.02  ACQUISITION OF PRIOR PROPERTY INTERESTS ..vviiiiitiieeiitiieessitereessitieessssrasesssaranessnnns 9
SECTION 3.03  UNDISCLOSED PRIOR PROPERTY INTERESTS ...eoiiiettvriieteeeiisinreeeeesesssssssresesesesssnssssseees 9
SECTION 3.04 DISCOVERY OF UNDISCLOSED PRIOR PROPERTY INTERESTS ..vvvvviieeiiiiirreeireeessinssnnnens 9
SECTION 3.05 COOPERATION IN PLATTING....cctttttiieeiisieeierittteeessieeitarreeeesssssssbsseessessssssssreseessessssnnes 10
SECTION 3.06  UTILITY PROPERTY INTERESTS ..tttittteetiiiietereetteesssissssseeetessssinsssssessessssimmsssssesseessssnes 10
SECTION 3.07 CO-EXISTING PROPERTY INTERESTS ...iiouteteeeteeetsieeieeeeeeeessssssiseseessesssssssesseesseessssnnns 10
ARTICLE IV. RESPONSIBILITY FOR UNDISCLOSED PRIOR PROPERTY INTERESTS ...ccceeeververveuenne 10
SECTION 4.01  UTILITY RESPONSIBILITY ceeettieetttetttee et s teeeeseeeteessssasessseeesesssssssessseeesesssssasssseessesssssnnns 10
SECTION 4.02 REQUESTS FOR RELIEF .....uviiiiiitiiec i iteie e s stte e e s sbtes s s sibtes s s sabaaesssabasesssabaasessnbansssssransssins 10
ARTICLE V. RIGHT OF SITE ACCESS 11
SECTION5.01  RIGHT OF SITE ACCESS ..ittieiiiiiettriiiteesssiietsssteteesssississssestessssisssssssssessssissssseessessssines 11
SECTION5.02 NON-REVOCABLE RIGHT OF THE METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY ..vvvveeeeennns 11
SECTION5.03 NO NOTICE REQUIRED .....uviiiiiitiiee s sttie e s sttteessttteessbtesessbaasessabassesssbasasssbassssssransssins 11
SECTION5.04  DELAY FOR SAFETY PURPOSES .....cettittttieeeteteteeeseteseieeetesssssasisseeesesssssassseeeeeessssnnns 11
SECTION5.05 FAILURE TO ALLOW ACCESS, ENTRY, AND INSPECTION ...ccotteetirieeeeeeeeeeeeireeeeeeeeeenns 11
ARTICLE VI. REQUIRED REPORTS 11
SECTION 6.01  REQUIRED REPORTS ...uuiiiiitiiiiiiteieesitereessbeesessbessssssbesssssbassssssbesssssssssssssssssssssssensesins 11
SECTION B.02  DEADLINES ... eettteettieeeeeettteeeestae et tteeesssaae e eeeteeesssaa e ereeteessssassereeeteeesssasasrreeeeeessnanns 11
SECTION 6.03  FAILURE TO TIMELY PRODUCE .....eettieitiieeeee e e e ettt e e e e e seeeteeeeeeesseseseenseneeeesennnas 11
ARTICLE VII. PERFORMANCE AND CONSTRUCTION 12
SECTION 7.01  UTILITY ADIJUSTMENT DESIGN WORK ... ..utttiiitieiiiieiiiriiiteeessiseirereeesesssssssneseessesssssnnes 12
SECTION 7.02  UTILITY ADJUSTMENT CONSTRUCTION WORK ...oootiriiieeeeieieetireeeee e e s e seeiereeeneeensnnans 12
SECTION 7.03  ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY OUTSIDE THE PROJECT FOOTPRINT ....ccvvvvivreiereeeennians 12
SECTION 7.04  TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ...uutttittteeetsieeereeeteessssssessseeesessssssesssseesesssssssessseesesssssnnes 12
SECTION 7.05 COORDINATION FOR UTILITY ADJUSTMENT IN THE UMA ...ovviieiiieieieeeeeveviinianns 13
SECTION 7.06  PROPOSALS AND PLANS ...uututttutttatutssasssatssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssrnnes 13
SECTION 7.07 REQUIREMENT OF APPROVAL ....cutttiittieiitieeitte e sttt e siteesteesstaessteeestaeesnseesstaeesnteeessneesnns 14
SECTION 7.08  SHOP DRAWING AND SAMPLE SUBMITTALS ...uvutututurerersressssrnrererssessnerssessrsssssrsssssmennne 14
SECTION 7.09  ADJUSTMENTS TO THE PROJECT .vviitieiiiieeierieeteeessseeisseeeeesesssseessseeesesssssssessssesseessssnens 14
SECTION 7.10  ADJUSTMENTS TO THE UTILITY ADJUSTMENT WORK ....coieiiiieeitiriieieeeseieeeireeeeeesssnnns 14



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 94 of 247

Execution Version

SECTION 7.11  INSPECTION ..ot titeeee e eeee e eeee e e eee e e e e ee e e et e e e ae e e e e ee e eeeeaateeeessasneeeesanneeesannneeeeaneeeeans 15
SECTION 7.12  UTILITY COMPLETION ...ettttetttteetttettteeessteeaeseeteessssassssseeeseessssssssseeesesssssasseseessesssssnnns 15
SECTION 7.13  THIRD PARTY CONTRACTORS .. .ttttttteeetsieeteseeteeessssssiseseeesesssssssssssesesesssssssesssessesssssnnns 15
SECTION 7.14  INVOICING REQUIREMENTS .. .ciiiitiiiittieiitieeitieesitesestteestesssbasssabesssraessatessbassssbesssrasesnns 15
ARTICLE VIII. PAYMENT OF COSTS 15
SECTION 8.01  NECESSITY TO KEEP COSTS LLOW. ..iiiiiiiiiiieeiet ettt ettt e e e s e seeeraeneeeesenans 15
SECTION 8.02  PAYMENT OF COSTS: wuttttttteeettieetrreeeteesssssaessseeteessssaaassrteseessssaessrrretessssssserrreesesssennnns 15
SECTION 8.03  REPORTING OF COSTS ..veittieeiiieeteteetteessssseesseeteesssssasssstesesssssassssseeesesssssssesseessesssssnnns 16
SECTION 8.04  REJECTION OF COSTS wutttttteeeitieeitereeeteesssieaesssesteessssasssssessesssssssssrseesesssssssesrsessesssssnnns 16
SECTION 8.05 APPEAL OF A DECISION TO REJECT COSTS turiiiiieiiiiiiiriiiiieeessiiireriresessssssisseseessesssssnns 16
SECTION 8.06 PAYMENT OF ACCEPTED COSTS uuuiiitiiiiiiiiiiriieteesssiiiissseeesessssissrsssessessssimissssesseesssnnn 16
SECTION 8.07  BETTERMENT S ciiiiiiiietttrtttteeetsiiessrtettessssiaesssssestessssimissseestessssimrssesstessssimirsseeseeessnn 16
ARTICLE IX. FUTURE RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 16
SECTION 9.01  USE WITHIN THE PROJECT PROPERTY ....iuttttiteteeeieieeieeeeeeeeesssasessseeesesssssssesseeesesssssnnns 16
SECTION 9.02  USE OF EXISTING EASEMENT ...euvtteittee et sttt e e et e tee et eeeeesssaetereeeeeessssasensrnereeeesssnnas 18
SECTION 9.03  RECORD KEEPING ...uuuvttettteeetsieeeeeetteeessteee ettt eeesssasissseeetesssssasssseeetesssssasessseeeeesssssanns 18
SECTION 9.04  FUTURE PERMITS .oeiiittieetietieee e teeeee sttt e s steeeesateteessteeeessseeeessasseeessanseeessasseeessarnereeans 18
SECTION 9.05 DAMAGE TO THE UTILITY . vottiiiteieesieteieeeseteeeesieteeeessatseesssasseeessesseeesseseeessaseeesserneesssns 18
ARTICLE X. DISPUTES WITH CONTRACTORS AND OTHER THIRD PARTIES 19
SECTION 10.01  COORDINATION . ...cttutttettteeessteeeeseetteessssasaseeesesssssaasretetesssssassrsrreetesssssassrreeeseessssanns 19

ARTICLE XI. DISPUTES AMONG THE UTILITY AND THE METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY

19

SECTION 11.01  INTENT AND PROCEDURE........cctttiiiiteiic e stiie e sttt e sbte e s st e e s st ae e s s sbae s s s sabaneessabaeee s e 19
SECTION 11.02 PROCEDURE TO COMMENCE DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS .......ocviieiiriieesirieeeens 19
SECTION 11.03  TIME TO CORRECT ..uttttiiiieeiiiiittteeite e e s s sestateeeseesssssaababesssesssssssbasasssesssssssbbeseessesssessnes 19
] = g [0 NI B 0 L S 1V 1= ] -y o [ N 19
] =o g [0 NI B 0 L T = A [T ] =] = 0] = = 20
SECTION 11.06 LITIGATION IF DISPUTE NOT RESOLVED....cuuiiiieiiiiiitiiiiiiee e s e siitirieese e e s e sssbeseesseeesesnans 20
SECTION 11.07  LEGAL FEES ... teiii ittt ettt sttt s st e e e s st e e e s sab e e e e s st e e e e s sabaeeessbbenesans 20
SECTION 11.08  WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL ...vvtiiiitiiee i iteiee s steee e s sttee e s sbaeesssabaessssabasessssbeesssssbansssssranssssns 20
ARTICLE XII. USE OF EMINENT DOMAIN 20
SECTION 12.01  EMINENT DOMAIN ©..utttiiiiiiiii ittt sttt e e e e s s st b et e s e s s s s sabbabasseesessssbbeseeeeesesesanes 20
SECTION 12.02  NULLIFICATION BY EMINENT DOMAIN. ....tttiiiiieiiiiiiitiiie e sirerie e e e s s sivrereesee e e s sans 20
SECTION 12.03  NULLIFICATION AFTER COSTS INCURRED.........cciiiittttiiieeeeeeseiterieeee e e s s sssbeseeeseeesesanns 20
ARTICLE XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 21
] =t w10 R T 0 A N[ o T = 21
SECTION 13.02  ASSIGNMENT ... .tutiiiitiieeiireieessrereessbereessbereesssbeseesssbesessssbesaesssbassessbessssssbensssssrsensssns 22
SECTION 13.03  WORKERS’ COMPENSATION ....uvtviiiieeiiiiitterieeteessssiisssesssesssssssrssesssesssssssssssssssessssssnns 22
] =0 o [0 NI R 0 L S 1N E 0= 7Y N o 22
SECTION 13.05  LIABILITY LIMITATIONS ...cotiiitttiiiiee e e sttt et e e e s s sebaateesesessseasbasasssessssssssbesesssesssssises 22
SECTION 13.06 RELATIONSHIPS CREATED .....ccuvvviiiieeeiiiitierieiteesssssitaseessesssssssssssesssesssssssssssesssesssssins 22
SECTION 13.07  GOVERNING LAW ....eveiiiiiriiii ittt sttt e e sttt e e s s bt e s s s sab e s s s sabae s e s ssbenaesssbansesssransssans 22
SECTION 13.08  CONFLICT cuttiieiitiiiesiteieessttteeesstbeeeesssbeesssssbeseesssbaseessabesessssbesssssabessssssbenessssbansssssraenssans 23



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 95 of 247

Execution Version

SECTION 13.09  SEVERABILITY oictiiitiiitiiitiiits et e steestesstessteesstessbessbessbesstesssesssesssesastssssesssesssesssessnsesnnes 23
SECTION 13.10  MODIFICATIONS. .. uetiitiiiitieeettee ittt e stbeeseteeeeteeesbesesateessbeesbeeesbesesseesssbessbeeesabesesseeesnns 23
SECTION 13.11  BINDING EFFECT ...tiiiitiiiitie ittt e ittt sttt e etee e ette st e e sate e ette e st e e sabeeesbaessabessnbeeesabesenseeenans 23
SECTION 13.12  REPRESENTATION ...ecitiiiitieeitiee ittt estteesiteeestseesteeesaseessbessstseesbeeesssessnsessnsesessesessesennns 23
SECTION 13.13  HEADINGS .....citii ittt ittt ettt ettt ettt s et e et e e st e e st e e s abe e e be e e snbe e e sbeeesabeesnbaeesnbeeenteeennns 23
SECTION 13.14  COUNTERPARTS ....tttiittt ittt e ittt e iteeestteesibeeasteeesabeeesaaeessbeesteeesbeeesssessnsessbeeessbeesnseeesnns 23
SECTION 13.15 REPRESENTATION OF AUTHORITY ..utiiiitiiiitie e it e sireesreessteeesteeesrreesnbesstaeesnreeesnneesnns 23
SECTION 13,16  FEES ..iiitiiiitii ettt ettt ettt s et e et e e st e e st e e st e e et ee e s abe e e sbteesabeesnbaeesabeeenbeeenens 23
SECTION 13.17 ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES......ccititiiittieitieeitteeiteeesreesteeasteeesibesssssessssessssesesresssseesssns 23
SECTION 13.18 FEDERAL LOBBYING RESTRICTIONS......vviiiiieiteeeitieeereeeeteeesreeesseeesasessnreeesnsesesseeesnns 24
SECTION 13.19 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION .....ccviiiiteeeitieeireeesireesreeesteeesresssssessssessssessssesssseessnns 24
SECTION 13.20 DAVIS-BACON ACT AND OTHER LABOR LAWS.......ccoiiiiiieciiiee et 24
SECTION 13.21  CIVIL RIGHTS OBLIGATIONS.....ccttte ittt iiteeeitteesteeestteesreesstressbeeessaeesnsesestaeesreeesseeesnns 24
SECTION 13.22  CERTIFICATION ....uttieittiieitte e ettt e steeestteesebeeesteeesnbeeesaaeessbeesbeeesnbeeesssessnsessbeeessreeesseeesnns 25
SECTION 13.23  TERMINATION ...ccttiitiiiteiitte it eiteesteesteesteestaesstessbessbeebessbessbssssesasseesteesseesbessssesnsesnsesnnes 25
SECTION 13.24  RAPID CLOSURE VALVES. .....oiiiitiiiitieiiteecetie e stee e stteeste s etae e sbes s staessnbessbasesnbesssreeenens 25
SIGNATURE PAGES ... e e e S-1,S-2

EXHIBIT A - PRIOR PROPERTY INTERESTS

EXHIBIT B - MAP OF UPSTREAM MITIGATION AREA
ExHIBIT C - MFR-023

EXHIBIT D - FEDERAL CERTIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT E - AUTHORITY INVOICING REQUIREMENTS



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 96 of 247

Execution Version

MASTER UTILITY RELOCATION AGREEMENT

THIS MASTER UTILITY RELOCATION AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made
and entered into this 27th day of June, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the Metro
Flood Diversion Authority, a North Dakota political subdivision, whose post office address is 4784
Amber Valley Parkway South, Suite 100, Fargo, ND 58104 (the “Authority”), and Southeast Water
Users District, whose post office address P.O. Box 10, Mandator, ND 58058 (the “Utility”)
(collectively, the Authority and the Utility are referred to as the “Parties”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, construction of the locally preferred plan for the Fargo-Moorhead
Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project (the “Comprehensive Project”) in the Fargo,
North Dakota, and Moorhead, Minnesota, Metropolitan Area was authorized by Section 7002(2)
of the Water Resources Reform and Development Act of 2014, Public Law 113-121; and

WHEREAS, the Authority, the City of Fargo, North Dakota, and the City of Moorhead,
Minnesota, are the Non-Federal Sponsors (“NFS”) for the Comprehensive Project and entered into
a Project Partnership Agreement (“PPA”) on July 11, 2016, and amended as of March 19, 2019,
with the United States Army Corps of Engineers (“USACE”) for the construction, operation, and
maintenance of the Comprehensive Project; and

WHEREAS, the PPA sets forth a split delivery method for the Comprehensive Project,
establishing the respective responsibilities of both the NFS and the USACE; and

WHEREAS, the Authority was created to undertake and fulfill the NFS’ obligations under
the PPA; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the PPA, the NFS will be responsible for completing the
Upstream Mitigation Area (“UMA”), the area where the Authority is required to obtain property
rights as mitigation for the temporary storage of floodwaters during Comprehensive Project
operations, and for completing all mitigation features that are not the responsibility of the USACE;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article Il of the PPA, the NFS shall be responsible for all real
property interests and relocations required for construction, operation, and maintenance of the
Comprehensive Project; and

WHEREAS, the Utility has real property interests (hereinafter referred to as “Prior
Property Interests”) within the area generally described in Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, it will be necessary for the Prior Property Interests to be relocated, protected,
removed, or adjusted (hereinafter referred to as the “Utility Relocation Project”) by either the
Authority or Utility in coordination with construction of the Comprehensive Project; and



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 97 of 247

Execution Version

WHEREAS, the Authority and the Utility desire to set forth in writing their mutual
understandings and to define the terms and conditions and each Party’s rights and obligations in
connection with the Utility Relocation Project; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement is only intended to bind the Parties in regard to the portion
of the Comprehensive Project south of the Storm Water Diversion Channel and Associated
Infrastructure (“SWDCAI”) and shall have no implications for, or having binding power in regard
to the Parties” work, efforts, or relations in the SWDCAI, which is governed by a separate
agreement between the Parties.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties
hereby state as follows:

ARTICLE I.
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

Section 1.01  DerINITIONS. All capitalized and bolded terms used and not otherwise
defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in this Agreement and as defined in this
Section unless a different meaning clearly applies from the context.

“Age Discrimination Act of 1975” means the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C.
Sections 6101-6107).

“Agreement” means this Master Utility Relocation Agreement.

“Authority” means the Metro Flood Diversion Authority, a North Dakota political
subdivision created by the Joint Powers Agreement, dated June 1, 2016.

“Best Efforts” means acting in Good Faith and in accordance with generally accepted
commercial practices and using reasonable due diligence to undertake all action contemplated by
this Agreement, in accordance with applicable federal and state laws, regulations, and rules;
however, the obligation to use Best Efforts does not mean a duty to take action that would be in
violation of applicable federal or state law.

“Business Day(s)” means any day that is not a Saturday, a Sunday, or a public holiday
under the laws of North Dakota.

“Cass County” means Cass County, North Dakota.
“Cass County Joint Water Resource District” or “CCJWRD” means the Cass County
Joint Water Resource District, a political subdivision of the State of North Dakota, its

successors, and assigns.

“CFR” means the Code of Federal Regulations.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 98 of 247

Execution Version

“Civil Rights Act of 1964” means the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub.L. 88-352, 78 Stat.
241, enacted July 2, 1964).

“Clay County” means Clay County, Minnesota.

“Certificate of Comprehensive Project Substantial Completion” means a written
certificate issued by the Director of Engineering indicating that the Comprehensive Project has
been completed and no elements remain to be completed.

“Comprehensive Project” means the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area Flood Risk
Management Project authorized by Section 7002(2) of the Water Resources Reform and
Development Act of 2014, as generally described in the Final Feasibility Report and
Environmental Impact Statement, Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area Flood Risk
Management, dated July 2011 and approved in accordance with the Chief’s Report, as amended
by the Supplemental Environmental Assessment, Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area Flood Risk
Management Project, dated September 2013 and approved by the U.S. Army Engineer, St. Paul,
on September 19, 2013, and as amended by the Second Supplemental Environmental Assessment,
dated August 27, 2018 (2018 SEA), and the Engineering Documentation Report, Fargo-Moorhead
Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project, ND and MN, Modifications Through
February 20109.

“Congress” means the Congress of the United States of America.

“Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act” means the Contract Work Hours
and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701 et seq.).

“Copeland (Anti-Kickback) Act” means the Copeland Act (18 U.S.C. 874 and 40 U.S.C.
3145).

“Costs” means all costs, expenses, and fees of whatever nature and kind, excluding internal
costs that would have been incurred by the Utility regardless of the existence of the
Comprehensive Project.

“Davis-Bacon Act” means the Davis-Bacon Act of 1931 (40 U.S.C. 3141 et seq.).

“Diversion Inlet Structure” means the hydraulic control structure to control the flow of
water entering the SWDCAI north of the SEAI as detailed in the documented entitled the “FMM
Diversion Inlet Structure Red River of the North River Basin Fargo, ND.”

“Dilworth” means Dilworth, Minnesota.

“Director of Engineering” means the individual or his/her designee who is officially
appointed by the Executive Director as the Director of Engineering for the Authority.

“Effective Date” means the date on which both Parties have executed this Agreement.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 99 of 247

Execution Version

“Executive Director” means the chief administrative officer of the Metro Flood
Diversion Authority.

“Executive Order No. 11246” means Executive Order No. 11246, dated September 24,
1965.

“Fargo” or “City of Fargo” means Fargo, North Dakota.

“Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area” means Fargo, North Dakota, Moorhead,
Minnesota, and surrounding communities; it is further defined by the United States Census Bureau
as comprising all of Cass County, North Dakota, and Clay County, Minnesota, which includes
the cities of Dilworth, Minnesota, West Fargo, North Dakota, and numerous other towns and
developments from which commuters travel daily for work, education, and regular activities.

“Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project” has the same
definition as “Comprehensive Project.”

“Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area Southern Embankment — MFR-023, Utility
Guidelines and References” or “MFR-023” means the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area
Southern Embankment — MFR-023, Utility Guidelines and References drafted by the USACE
for the relocation of components in the SEAL.

“Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972” means the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972 (Pub.L. 92-500, 86 Stat. 816, enacted
October 18, 1972).

“Final Design Submittal” means the design submittal described in Article VII of this
Agreement.

“Final Feasibility Report and Environmental Impact Statement” or “FEIS” means the
Final Feasibility Report and Environmental Impact Statement, Fargo-Moorhead
Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project, dated July 2011 and approved by the
Chief of Engineers on December 19, 2011, as amended by the Supplemental Environmental
Assessment, Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project, dated
September 2013 and approved by the District Engineer, St. Paul District on September 19, 2013,
as amended by the Final Supplemental Environmental Assessment #2, Modifications to the Fargo-
Moorhead Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project, dated February 2019,
approved by the District Engineer, St. Paul District on February 28, 2019, and which may be
further amended by future supplemental environmental assessments.

“Frontier” or “City of Frontier” means Frontier, North Dakota.

“Good Faith” means observance of reasonable commercial standards of fair dealing in a
given trade of business.

“Harwood” or “City of Harwood” means Harwood, North Dakota.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 100 of 247

Execution Version

“Horace” or the “City of Horace” means Horace, North Dakota.

“Joint Powers Agreement” or “JPA” means the Joint Powers Agreement, dated as of
June 1, 2016, by and between the Member Entities, as amended from time to time, which created
and continued the Authority.

“Master Utility Relocation Agreement” or “Agreement” means this Master Utility
Relocation Agreement by and between the Authority and Utility.

“Member Entities” shall mean Moorhead, Fargo, Clay County, Cass County, and
CCJWRD.

“Metro Flood Diversion Authority” has the same definition as “Authority.”
“Minnesota” means the State of Minnesota.
“Moorhead” or “City of Moorhead” means Moorhead, Minnesota.

“Non-Federal Project Costs” means the local cost share of the total cost of the
Comprehensive Project not provided by the U.S. Government.

“Non-Federal Sponsors” or “NFS” means the entities providing the Non-Federal
Project Costs for the Comprehensive Project, which includes the City of Fargo, the City of
Moorhead, and the Authority created pursuant to the JPA.

“North Dakota” means the State of North Dakota.
“Parties” means the entities to this Agreement, specifically the Authority and the Utility.

“Post Construction Submittal” means the design submittal described in Article VII of
this Agreement.

“PPA” means the Project Partnership Agreement executed by and between the
Department of the Army and the City of Fargo, North Dakota, the City of Moorhead,
Minnesota and the Metro Flood Diversion Authority for construction of the Fargo-Moorhead
Metropolitan Area Flood Risk Management Project, dated July 11, 2016.

“Preliminary Design Submittal” means the design submittal described in Section 7.06(a)
of this Agreement.

“Prior Property Interest(s)” means any property interest(s) owned by the Utility that the
Authority deems necessary to Relocate.

“Project” means the design, construction, finance, operations, and maintenance of the
SEAI and the UMA.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 101 of 247

Execution Version

“Project Footprint” means the physical area within which the SEAI and the UMA wiill
be contained.

“Project Property” means real property acquired for the Project, including, but not
limited to, land, rights-of-way, easements, licenses, and leases.

“Protected Area” means generally the area north of the SEAI including the communities
of Moorhead, Minnesota, Frontier, North Dakota, Horace, North Dakota, Fargo, North
Dakota, West Fargo, North Dakota, Reile’s Acres, North Dakota, and Harwood, North
Dakota.

“Red River” means the Red River of the North.

“Red River Structure” means the hydraulic control structure to be procured by USACE,
and located within the SEAI, designed to control and/or meter the flow of the Red River through
the Protected Area.

“Reile’s Acres” or “City of Reile’s Acres” means Reile’s Acres, North Dakota.

“Rehabilitation Act of 1973” means the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub.L. 93-112, 87
Stat. 355, enacted September 26, 1973).

“Relocate” or “Relocated” or “Relocation” means providing a functionally equivalent
facility to the owner of a utility, cemetery, highway, railroad (excluding railroad bridges and
approaches thereto required for construction of the Comprehensive Project), or public facility
when such action is authorized in accordance with applicable legal principles of just compensation;
or providing a functionally equivalent facility when such action is specifically provided for, and is
identified as a Relocation in the authorizing legislation for the Project or any report referenced
therein. Providing a functionally equivalent facility may take the form of alteration, lowering,
rising, or replacement and attendant demolition of the affected facility or part thereof.

“Richland County” means Richland County, North Dakota.

“Shop Drawings and Samples” means shop drawings, laying drawings, erection
drawings, fabrication drawings, product information, catalog information, samples, mock-ups,
plans, test procedures and results, descriptions of services, descriptions of specific means and
methods, and related documentation.

“Site” means the physical location at which any Utility Adjustment Construction Work
is being done, has been done, or will be done as part of the Utility Relocation Project.

“Southern Embankment and Associated Infrastructure” or “SEAI” consisting of the
Diversion Inlet Structure, Wild Rice and Red River Structures, associated road raises, and
earthen dam embankment reaches.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 102 of 247

Execution Version

“Substantial Completion Date of the Comprehensive Project” means the date on which
the Director of Engineering issues a Certificate of Comprehensive Project Substantial
Completion.

“Supplemental Plan” means a plan submitted for approval pursuant to Article 111, in the
event that Undisclosed Prior Property Interests are identified after one (1) or more plans have
already been approved pursuant to Article I11.

“SWDCAI” means the approximately thirty (30) mile, twenty thousand (20,000) cubic
feet per second (cfs) channel and associated features, including the outlet, river and drain inlets,
road bridges, railroad bridges, aqueducts, and recreational features, to be constructed as part of the
Comprehensive Project.

“Task Order” means a document executed by the Authority and Utility, including any
amendments thereto, stating the scope of services, times for performance of services,
compensation, and any other relevant information for a specific project.

“Undisclosed Prior Property Interests” means Prior Property Interests not disclosed
in Section 3.02 of this Agreement.

“United States Army Corps of Engineers” or “USACE” means the United States Army
Corps of Engineers.

“Upstream Mitigation Area” or “UMA” means the area where the Authority is required
to obtain property rights as mitigation for the temporary storage of floodwaters during
Comprehensive Project operations, as shown in Exhibit B.

“U.S. EPA” means the United States Environmental Protection Agency.

“Utility” means Southeast Water Users District.

"Utility Adjustment' means each Relocation (temporary or permanent), abandonment,
protection in place, removal (of previously abandoned utilities as well as of newly abandoned
utilities), replacement, reinstallation, or modification of existing utilities necessary to
accommodate construction, operation, maintenance, or use of the Project. The Ultility
Adjustment Work for each crossing of the Project right-of-way by a utility that crosses the
Project right-of-way more than once will be considered a separate Utility Adjustment. For any
utility installed longitudinally within the Project right-of-way, the Utility Adjustment Work for
each continuous segment of that utility located within the Project right-of-way will be considered
a separate Utility Adjustment.

“Utility Adjustment Completion” means that the Utility Adjustment Construction
Work for a Utility Adjustment is sufficiently complete in the opinion of the Authority and the
Utility.

“Utility Adjustment Construction Work” means all Utility Adjustment Work related
to construction.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 103 of 247

Execution Version

“Utility Adjustment Work” means all efforts and Costs necessary to accomplish the
required Utility Adjustments, including all coordination, Utility Adjustment Design Work,
design review, permitting, Utility Adjustment Construction Work, inspection, and maintenance
of records, whether provided by the Authority or by the Utility.

“Utility Relocation Project” means the process of acquiring Project Property,
Relocating any Prior Property Interests, and all other steps necessary, as determined by the
Authority, to prepare the Project Property for construction of the Project.

“Water Resources Reform and Development Act” means the Water Resources Reform
and Development Act of 2014, Public Law 113-121.

“West Fargo” means West Fargo, North Dakota.

“Wild Rice River” means the river of the same name located in the State of North
Dakota.

“Wild Rice River Structure” means the hydraulic control structure for the Wild Rice
River located southeast of the City of Horace, North Dakota.

“Wilkin County” means Wilkin County, Minnesota.

Section 1.02  TERMS GENERALLY. The definition of terms herein shall apply equally to
the singular and plural forms of the terms defined. Whenever the context may require, any pronoun
shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine, and neuter forms. The words “include,”
“includes,” and “including” shall be deemed to be followed by the phrase “without limitation.”
The word “will” shall be construed to have the same meaning and effect as the word ““shall.” Unless
the context requires otherwise (a) any definition of or reference to any agreement, instrument, or
other document herein shall be construed as referring to such agreement, instrument, or other
document as from time to time amended, supplemented, or otherwise modified (subject to any
restrictions on such amendments, supplements, or modifications set forth herein), (b) any reference
herein to any person shall be construed to include any person’s permitted successors and assigns,
(c) the words “‘herein,” “hereof,” and “hereunder,” and words of similar import, shall be construed
to refer to this Agreement in its entirety and not to any particular provision hereof, and (d) all
references herein to articles, sections, exhibits, and schedules shall be construed to refer to articles
and sections of, and exhibits and schedules to, this Agreement.

Section 1.03  SURVIVAL OF TERMS. The terms of this Agreement shall survive through
the Substantial Completion Date of the Comprehensive Project and for successive ten-year
terms until one of the Parties hereto terminates this Agreement as provided for herein. The
provisions of Section 3.06 (“Utility Property Interests”), Section 3.07 (“Co-Existing Property
Interests”), 13.05 (“Liability Limitations”), Section 13.24 (“Rapid Closure Valves”), Article VIII
(“Payment of Costs”), and Article IX (“Future Rights and Responsibilities™), shall survive the
termination of this Agreement and bind the Parties for as long as the Utility has property on, over,
or across the Project Property.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 104 of 247

Execution Version

ARTICLE II.
PURPOSE OF MASTER UTILITY RELOCATION AGREEMENT

Section 2.01  PURPOSE. The purpose of this Agreement is to ensure a coordinated, time-
efficient, and cost-effective process for completing the Utility Relocation Project, for
coordinating operations and maintenance activities after completion of the Utility Relocation
Project, and for the development of individual Task Orders issued in conjunction with, and
subject to, the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

Section 2.02  COORDINATION BETWEEN ENGINEERS. The Authority and Utility are
likely to employ the use of professional engineers in the analysis, design, and completion of
designs, plans, and completion of work. Engineers employed by the Parties shall maintain open
lines of communication, coordinate, and collaborate with engineers employed by other parties
described herein.

Section 2.03  COORDINATION WITH USACE. The Utility shall not communicate directly
with the USACE regarding any aspect of the Comprehensive Project or any other subject-matter
referenced in, related to, or arising from this Agreement, without the prior written authorization
of the Authority, except as required by Section 9.01(a) of this Agreement. The Authority shall
keep the Utility reasonably informed about its communications with the USACE regarding the
Project, Relocation of the Utility’s infrastructure, and the Project Property.

ARTICLE IILI.
REAL PROPERTY INTERESTS

Section 3.01  INTENT. It is the intent of the Parties hereto that all Prior Property
Interests shall be documented in Exhibit A to this Agreement.

Section 3.02  ACQUISITION OF PRIOR PROPERTY INTERESTS. The Prior Property
Interests to be Relocated pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement include, but are
not limited to, the Prior Property Interests documented in Exhibit A.

Section 3.03  UNDISCLOSED PRIOR PROPERTY INTERESTS. If the Authority, for any
reason, determines Undisclosed Prior Property Interests should be Relocated, such Relocation
shall occur pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

Section 3.04  DISCOVERY OF UNDISCLOSED PRIOR PROPERTY INTERESTS. Undisclosed
Prior Property Interests identified for Relocation prior to the request for submission of the first
submittal required by Article VII shall be Relocated through the same process as if the
Undisclosed Prior Property Interests were disclosed herein. A separate accounting and
recording of costs shall be maintained for Undisclosed Prior Property Interests and Prior
Property Interests disclosed herein. Should Undisclosed Prior Property Interests be identified
after the submission of one (1) or more submittals pursuant to Article VI, the Utility shall, within
sixty (60) calendar days of discovering an Undisclosed Prior Property Interest to be Relocated
if discovered by the Utility or within sixty (60) calendar days of written notification from the
Authority identifying the Undisclosed Prior Property Interests to be Relocated if discovered
by the Authority, submit a Supplemental Plan meeting the requirements of Article VII for the

9



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 105 of 247

Execution Version

Relocation of Undisclosed Prior Property Interests. Each Party shall have the same rights and
responsibilities as they would have if the Supplemental Plan were included in previously
approved plans, as detailed in Article V11, unless explicitly provided otherwise herein. The Utility
shall endeavor to submit a Supplemental Plan for approval within sixty (60) days. Should the
Utility fail to submit a Supplemental Plan by the applicable deadline, and such failure results in
the unreasonable delay of Utility Adjustment Construction Work, the Parties shall follow the
dispute resolution process pursuant to Article XI of this Agreement.

Section 3.05  COOPERATION IN PLATTING. The Authority intends to plat right-of-way
acquired for Project purposes. Utility shall reasonably cooperate with said platting efforts if
requested to do so by the Authority.

Section 3.06  UTILITY PROPERTY INTERESTS. The Utility owns easements and rights-of-
way in, on, over, and across the Project Property. The easements and rights-of-way shall continue
in force and effect after the Effective Date and shall survive termination of this Agreement, except
as explicitly provided otherwise by written agreement, though the Utility’s rights under these
property interests are subject to Article IX.

Section 3.07  CoO-EXISTING PROPERTY INTERESTS. The Authority, via its Member
Entities, is required to obtain property rights, in the form of a flowage easement, from property
where additional flood water is temporarily stored when the Comprehensive Project operates.
The Parties agree and acknowledge that the storage of additional flood water will flood the
property where the Utility owns easements and rights-of-way. The Utility authorizes the
Authority, via its Member Entities, to temporarily store additional flood water in, on, over, and
across its easements across Project Property.

ARTICLE IV.
RESPONSIBILITY FOR UNDISCLOSED PRIOR PROPERTY INTERESTS

Section 4.01  UTILITY RESPONSIBILITY. The Utility shall initially bear the costs of
Relocating all Undisclosed Prior Property Interests.

Section 4.02  REQUESTS FOR RELIEF.

a. Within thirty (30) calendar days of Utility Adjustment Completion, the Utility
may file a written request for relief with the Authority to request payment or partial
payment for costs of the Relocating Undisclosed Prior Property Interests. This
request for relief shall be a separate document from the reports required by Article
VI but shall be submitted to the Authority in conjunction with the reports required
by Article VI1I. All requests for relief shall include an itemized list of costs, the total
amount requested, and justification for Utility’s failure to identify the Undisclosed
Prior Property Interest. Requests for relief may be approved, approved in part
and denied in part, or denied.

b. The Authority recognizes that many of Utility’s services lines were installed prior
to 1980, at which time the use of GPS was not available. Utility believes that it has

10



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 106 of 247

Execution Version

disclosed all pertinent Prior Property Interests, but the locations are based on old
maps and handwritten field notes rather than current technology. As a result, the
Parties agree and acknowledge that exact locations may be difficult to determine.

ARTICLE V.
RIGHT OF SITE ACCESS

Section 5.01  RIGHT OF SITE ACCESs. To ensure the Authority is able to proceed with
construction of the Project in a timely and efficient manner, as well as to properly monitor and
ensure completion of the Utility Relocation Project, the Authority shall have a right-of-way in,
on, over, and across any and all Sites, as well as the right to access, enter, and inspect any Site.

Section 5.02  NON-REVOCABLE RIGHT OF THE METRO FLOOD DIVERSION AUTHORITY.
Nothing herein shall be construed as limiting or providing for the termination of the rights
described herein as it pertains to the Authority.

Section 5.03  No NoTICcE REQUIRED. No notice shall be required for the Authority to
exercise the rights described in this Article.

Section 5.04  DELAY FOR SAFETY PURPOSES. If the Authority attempts to exercise the
rights described in this Article, but doing so would pose a safety hazard, the Party shall be kept
from accessing, entering, or inspecting the Site in question only for as long as is reasonably
required to make the Site safety for access, entry, and inspection, as determined by the Party
desiring to access, enter, and inspect the Site.

Section 5.05  FAILURE TO ALLOW ACCESS, ENTRY, AND INSPECTION. Should any Party
having authority to access, enter, and inspect a Site be denied access for more than twenty-four
(24) hours, other than when the same Party deems such a delay appropriate under Section 5.04,
and such failure results in the unreasonable delay of Utility Adjustment Construction Work, the
Parties shall follow the dispute resolution process pursuant to Article XI of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI.
REQUIRED REPORTS

Section 6.01  REQUIRED REPORTS. The Utility shall prepare any reports, analysis, plans,
cost estimates, or other information and materials within the scope identified in a Task Order
pertaining to the utility infrastructure, the Utility Relocation Project, or the Project, as requested
by the Authority.

Section 6.02  DEeADLINES. All reports, analysis, plans, cost estimates, and other
information and materials requested by the Authority shall be provided before the expiration of a
reasonable deadline determined by the Authority and/or identified in a Task Order pertaining to
the utility infrastructure, the Utility Relocation Project, or the Project.

Section 6.03  FAILURE TO TIMELY PRODUCE. Should the Utility fail to produce any
reports, analysis, plans, cost estimates, or other information and materials requested of them by

11



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 107 of 247

Execution Version

the Authority, and such failure results in the unreasonable delay of Utility Adjustment
Construction Work, the Parties shall follow the dispute resolution process pursuant to Article
X1 of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VII.
PERFORMANCE AND CONSTRUCTION

Section 7.01  UTILITY ADJUSTMENT DESIGN WORK. The Utility shall be responsible for
the completion of all Utility Adjustment Design Work. The Utility shall complete all Utility
Adjustment Design Work prior to a reasonable deadline identified in a Task Order pertaining
to the utility infrastructure, the Utility Relocation Project, or the Project, provided to the Utility
by the Authority.

Section 7.02  UTILITY ADJUSTMENT CONSTRUCTION WORK. The Utility Adjustment
Construction Work shall be as follows:

a. The Utility shall be responsible for the completion of all Utility Adjustment
Construction Work. The Utility shall complete all Utility Adjustment
Construction Work prior to a reasonable deadline provided to the Utility by the
Authority.

b. If a portion of the Utility Adjustment Construction Work is outside of the
Project Property, the Utility shall be responsible for that portion of the Utility
Adjustment Construction Work. The Utility shall meet the requirements of
federal law in regard to any Work contracted out to third parties, for which the
Authority will reimburse the Utility.

Section 7.03  ADDITIONAL RIGHT-OF-WAY OUTSIDE THE PROJECT FOOTPRINT. Should
the Utility require additional right-of-way to complete the Utility Relocation Project, the Utility
shall notify the Authority of said needs as soon as reasonably possible after discovering the need.
The Authority shall use its Best Efforts to acquire the necessary right-of-way but shall not be
responsible for any damages related to time delays associated with the acquisition of additional
right-of-way needed to accommodate betterments. In the event the Utility Relocation Project
directly or indirectly causes the Utility to acquire additional property interests, the Utility shall
consult with the Authority prior to determining the price at which they will offer to purchase said
property interests. The Utility will only offer to purchase additional property interests at a price
consented to by the Authority.

Section 7.04  TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS. The Utility Relocation Project must be
designed in accordance with the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan (“FMM”) Area Southern
Embankment — MFR-023, Utility Guidelines for the Southern Embankment and References
(“MFR-023"), which is hereby incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit C to this
Agreement. The requirements set forth in MFR-023 shall only apply to Utility Adjustment
Work within the SEAI. All Utility Adjustment Work in the UMA shall be conducted in
accordance with Section 7.05 of this Agreement.

12



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 108 of 247

Execution Version

Section 7.05  COORDINATION FOR UTILITY ADJUSTMENT IN THE UMA. All Utility
Adjustment Work in the UMA shall be designed, constructed, and completed in accordance with
federal, state, and local regulations and guidelines. In the event Utility Adjustment Work shall
be completed in the UMA, the Utility will work in conjunction with the Authority, in Good Faith,
to design and submit a Utility Adjustment plan for the Authority to review, comment and
approve.

Section 7.06  PROPOSALS AND PLANS. Anytime following execution of this Agreement,
the Utility will submit to the Authority, for each Utility Adjustment, a Preliminary Design
Submittal, a Final Design Submittal, and a Post Construction Submittal for review, comment,
and approval by the Authority as defined and at the specific timelines specified in MFR-023 or
as agreed between the Utility and the Authority, as applicable pursuant to the preceding section.

() Preliminary Design Submittal. The Utility shall complete a Preliminary Design
Submittal to a minimum of approximately thirty-five percent (35%) level of design
completion and define the basis of design for all aspects of each Utility
Adjustment of the Utility Relocation Project. The Preliminary Design
Submittal shall include calculations demonstrating that the proposed configuration
meets and satisfies the technical requirements contained herein. The Preliminary
Design Submittal shall also provide sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance
with all design and construction requirements as described in MFR-023. The
Preliminary Design Submittal shall include, at a minimum, sketches and/or
relocation plans, text defining the general proposed plan, and a scoping estimate of
construction costs.

(b) Final Design Submittal. The Utility shall complete a Final Design Submittal
including, but not limited to, fully developed design and relocation plan, drawings,
specifications, and all other supporting information, design documentation, etc. The
Final Design Submittal shall also contain complete applicable technical
specifications. In addition to the aforementioned information, the Final Design
Submittal shall include fully developed design and relocation plans, drawings,
specifications, design documentation, and all other supporting information, design
documentation, and a final estimate of construction costs. The Final Design
Submittal shall be utilized to develop individual Task Orders for consideration
and approval by the Authority prior to completion of the Utility Adjustment
Work.

(c) Post Construction Submittal. The Utility, in coordination with the NFS shall
complete and provide a Post Construction Submittal. The Utility acknowledges
and agrees that Post Construction Submittals shall be conducted in accordance
with the MFR-023 or as agreed upon by the Utility and the Authority. The Post
Construction Submittal shall include, but is not limited to:

1. Acceptance testing documentation and inspection records, including standard
proctor and field moisture density results.

2. Pipe inspection schedule and maintenance plan for future recurring inspections.
13



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 109 of 247

Execution Version

3. As-Built Drawings: Submit As-Built drawings for the complete utility line
relocation showing complete detail, including trench dimensions, pipe profile,
pipe alignment, valve locations, connection box locations, manholes and all
other pertinent as-built information.

4. As-Built Surveys.

(d) Review. The Authority shall complete a full review of each submittal and provide
comments and/or approval.

1. The Authority’s review of submittals shall be restricted to a determination of
whether the submittal complies with the specifications and requirements set
forth in this Agreement.

2. The Authority shall complete a full review and provide comments on
submittals within twenty (20) Business Days of the date on which the
Authority receives a full and complete submittal. Should the Authority
determine that a submittal is not in compliance with the terms and specifications
provided in this Agreement, and the Utility resubmits a previously submitted
submittal, the Authority shall review the submittal and respond within ten (10)
Business Days. The Authority’s review of the re-submittal shall be limited to
the portions of the initial submittal deemed insufficient as well as any other
portions of the submittal which have been amended or added since the initial
submission. In the event that the Authority does not provide comments within
the period prescribed by this Agreement, the Utility shall provide written
notice of the failure to respond. If the Authority does not respond within five
(5) Business Days of receiving written notification, the submittal shall be
deemed approved.

Section 7.07 REQUIREMENT OF APPROVAL. No Utility Adjustment Construction
Work may begin until the Authority approves the Final Design Submittal.

Section 7.08  SHOP DRAWING AND SAMPLE SUBMITTALS. The Utility shall submit Shop
Drawings and Samples that detail the Utility Adjustment Construction Work to be performed
by the Utility on the Utility Relocation Project within the Project Footprint. The Authority
shall review the Shop Drawings and Samples in accordance with the procedure and timelines in
Section 7.06 for the review of submittals.

Section 7.09  ADJUSTMENTS TO THE PROJECT. Should the planned route of the SEAI
change in a material manner, the Utility and the Authority shall immediately interface to adjust
plans for the Utility Relocation Project, as necessary.

Section 7.10  ADJUSTMENTS TO THE UTILITY ADJUSTMENT WORK. Any changes or
modifications to the Construction Documents Submittal during construction that materially
affect the performance or construction of the Utility Adjustment Work will be subject to written
approval by the Authority. The Utility will submit the proposed changes or modifications to the

14



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 110 of 247

Execution Version

Authority for review and approval. The Authority shall review the submittals in accordance with
procedure and timelines in Section 7.06. Authority lines not required to be moved prior to the
adjustment of Post Construction Submittal, which need to be Relocated after changes are made
to Post Construction Submittal shall not be treated as Undisclosed Prior Property Interests for
purposes of assigning responsibility for costs.

Section 7.11  INsSPECTION. The Utility shall be responsible for inspection of all Utility
Adjustment Construction Work.

Section 7.12  UTILITY CoMPLETION. Within ten (10) Business Days of the anticipated
date for Utility Adjustment Completion, the Utility and the Authority will schedule a final
inspection, whereby the Utility shall be responsible for holding an inspection of the Utility’s
portion of Utility Adjustment Construction Work to determine whether the Utility Adjustment
meets the Post Construction Submittal and any material changes or modifications made per
Section 7.09 and 7.10. If the Authority finds the construction is not in conformance with the Post
Construction Submittal or any approved material changes or modifications, the Authority will
notify the Utility of such fact and the Utility will correct such nonconformance in the construction
work and re-notify for inspection. Once the Authority finds the Utility Adjustment has reached
Utility Adjustment Completion, the Authority will provide a certificate of Utility Adjustment
Completion.

Section 7.13  THIRD PARTY CONTRACTORS. Should the Utility engage any third-party
contractor to fulfill, contribute to, or otherwise act in regard to an obligation assigned to Utility in
this Agreement, the Utility shall abide by all restrictions and requirements provided for in Article
XI1I and as provided in the federal lobbying restrictions which is attached as Exhibit D to this
Agreement.

Section 7.14  INVOICING REQUIREMENTS. All invoices provided to the Authority
pursuant to or arising from this Agreement shall comply with invoicing requirements provided in
the Authority invoicing requirements which is attached as Exhibit E to this Agreement.

ARTICLE VIILI.
PAYMENT OF COSTS

Section 8.01  NECESSITY TO KEep CosTs Low. The Utility and the Authority each
recognize the need to minimize the cost of the Utility Relocation Project, while seeking to
maintain the same quality of service to the Utility’s customer. The Utility and the Authority shall
be diligent in keeping costs as low as reasonably possible.

Section 8.02  PAYMENT OF COSTS.

(a) The Authority shall pay all Costs it incurs regarding the Project, Utility
Adjustment, Utility Adjustment Work, and the Utility Relocation Project.

(b) The Authority shall reimburse the Utility for all reasonable Costs the Utility has
incurred since January 1, 2021, including those incurred in reviewing and

15



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 111 of 247

Execution Version

negotiating this Agreement, and all reasonable Costs the Utility will incur in
carrying out, dealing with, and responding to matters directly related to the Utility
Adjustment, Utility Adjustment Work, and Utility Relocation Project. Costs
incurred by the Utility and payable or reimbursable by the Authority include those
incurred for right-of-way acquisition, design work, engineering, construction,
inspection, and monitoring (including inspecting and monitoring Utility
Adjustment, Utility Adjustment Work, and the Utility Relocation Project),
legal advice, administration, and insurance that would not have been necessary,
obtained, or incurred absent the Project. The Utility’s field personnel shall be
billed at a rate of $75 per hour and its administrator and supervisor time shall be
billed at $90 per hour; both sums are inclusive of wages, overhead, mileage, etc.
No additional sums or fees shall be billed for field personnel or administrator,
supervisor time, or otherwise except as specifically provided otherwise herein or
pursuant to a Task Order.

Section 8.03  REPORTING OF CosTs. The Utility shall submit detailed itemized reports
of the costs and expenses of the Utility Relocation Project to the Authority for review, subject
to invoicing requirements set forth in Exhibit E to this Agreement.

Section 8.04  REJECTION OF CosSTS. The Authority may reject reported costs and
expenses to the extent that it deems any specific costs or expenses are unreasonable. Notice of
rejection of any costs or expenses must be provided to the Utility in writing.

Section 8.05  APPEAL OF A DECISION TO REJECT CosTs. The Utility may appeal a
decision rejecting any cost by providing the Authority written notice of the appeal and
justification for its expenses within twenty (20) calendar days of its receipt of the rejection notice.

Section 8.06  PAYMENT OF AcCEPTED CosTs. Within thirty (30) calendar days of the
determination of the Authority’s full liability to the Utility, the Authority shall issue full payment
of the amount owed to the Utility pursuant to the invoice in question. Any failure to make payment
owed to the Utility when due under this Agreement shall have interest added to the amount owed
at the annual rate of six percent (6%) or the maximum amount permitted by North Dakota law if a
lesser amount. Interest shall not be paid for any time period during which the reasonableness of a
Cost is disputed.

Section 8.07  BETTERMENTS. In no situation shall any Party other than the Utility be
responsible for costs and expenses of betterments installed during the Utility Relocation Project.

ARTICLE IX.
FUTURE RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 9.01  USE WITHIN THE PROJECT PROPERTY. The Utility’s use of property rights
it may hold within the Project Property is subject to the following restrictions and obligations:

a. Coordination with USACE. Notwithstanding anything in Section 2.03, if the Utility
deems it necessary to perform any work on Utility property located within or on

16



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 112 of 247

Execution Version

the Project Property, beyond operation and maintenance, it shall first consult with
the USACE.

b. Maintenance of Utility Property. Following completion of the Utility Relocation
Project, the Utility shall be responsible for all maintenance of Utility property and
associated infrastructure. The NFS and Utility shall be responsible for preparing
an operation and maintenance agreement that sets forth the roles and responsibility
of each Party. The Utility shall be responsible for preparing a maintenance plan
for all utilities located within the work limits of the SEAI and/or UMA. The Utility
acknowledges and agrees that all maintenance of the Utility property and associated
infrastructure shall be conducted in accordance with the MFR-023 or as agreed
upon by the Utility and the Authority.

C. Post Construction Access. Following completion of the Utility Relocation Project,
the Utility shall provide the Authority with seven (7) calendar days’ written notice
of any maintenance it intends to do within the Project Footprint; provided,
however, that the Utility shall provide the Authority with one (1) hour’s verbal
and emailed notice of any maintenance required due to a water pipeline leak.

d. Approval for Ground Disturbing Maintenance, Repairs, or Installation of New
Service Lines. The Utility must submit and obtain approval for any and all plans
for maintenance, repair, or installation of new service lines, that require the ground
within the Project Footprint to be disturbed, from the Authority. Approval shall
not be unreasonably withheld by the Authority. To the extent the Utility and the
Authority agree in writing, certain ground disturbing maintenance may be
exempted from the approved requirements of this Section.

e. Clean Up. The Utility shall ensure that after any maintenance or repairs to Utility
property, the ground within the Project Footprint is returned to the state in which
it existed prior to the maintenance or repair that caused the ground within the
Project Footprint to be disturbed.

f. Metro Flood Diversion Authority Access. In the event that Utility property
malfunctions, destructs, or otherwise begins to cause on-going damage to the SEAI
and/or the UMA, the Authority shall have the authority to access the damage-
causing Utility property within the Project Property and take any action necessary
to stop on-going damage to the SEAI. Before exercising this right, the Authority
shall, if time and circumstances allow, attempt to notify the Utility of the problem
and coordinate a response with the Utility. If the Authority exercises the access
right given in this Section, it shall promptly submit to the Utility a report explaining
the action taken.

g. Access. The Authority shall have unrestricted access in, over, and across the right-
of-way.
17



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 113 of 247

Execution Version

h. Damage to the SEAI or UMA. Should Utility property malfunction, deconstruct,
or otherwise cause damage to the SEAI and/or the UMA, the Utility shall take
immediate action to stop on-going damage to the SEAI and/or the UMA and will
consult with the Authority on how to repair all damage that occurs.

i Abandonment. Should the Utility abandon or remove a utility line within the
easement and fail to replace the line within three (3) years of removal, the Utility
shall forfeit and extinguish said easement.

Section 9.02  UsEe oF EXISTING EASEMENT. In the event Utility property is Relocated
within the Utility’s currently existing easement or right-of-way, the Utility shall be bound to
exercise its rights under said easement, subject to the requirements and obligations contained in
this Article. The requirements of this Article shall survive so long as the Utility has property
located within the Project Footprint.

Section 9.03  RecORD KEEPING. The Utility shall maintain or cause to be maintained
(by way of contract and enforcement of such contract) a complete set of records detailing all costs
it incurs in the Utility Relocation Project, in accordance with the recordkeeping and audit
requirements of this Agreement and the laws of North Dakota.

Section 9.04  FuTure PERMITS. Should the Utility file a formal permit application with
the Authority, pertaining to the Utility line Relocated pursuant to this Agreement, with the
Authority after the Effective Date, the Authority shall grant, at no cost to the Utility, the permit
application so long as the permit application meets all reasonable requirements listed in the
instructions to said permit application and the proposed crossing would not unreasonably risk harm
to the SEAI or the UMA or interfere with other facilities already contained within the Project
Footprint, as determined by the Authority. In addition to the permit application granted by the
Authority, the Utility shall be responsible for obtaining all other permits necessary and required
by the USACE. Should an existing Utility line be modified in the future, or should the Utility
need to install a new service line, the Authority, in its sole discretion, shall determine whether the
modification is allowable under a previously existing permit or whether the modification is
significant enough in its nature or effect to require the Utility to apply for a new permit, which the
Authority shall grant so long as the permit application meets all reasonable requirement listed in
the instructions to said permit application and the modification or addition would not risk harm to
the SEAI or the UMA or interfere with other facilities already contained within the Project
Property, as determined by the Authority.

Section 9.05 DAMAGE TO THE UTILITY. Should any part of the Project malfunction,
deconstruct, or otherwise cause damage to property owned by the Utility, including damage caused
by Utility’s lines being under water, the Authority shall take reasonable action to stop ongoing
damage to the Utility’s property as soon as reasonably possible and, after consulting with the
Utility, repair all damage resulting from said malfunction or deconstruction or other cause.

18



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 114 of 247

Execution Version

ARTICLE X.
DISPUTES WITH CONTRACTORS AND OTHER THIRD PARTIES

Section 10.01 COORDINATION. The Parties shall coordinate with respect to any dispute
with third parties. Such coordination shall include any potential or ongoing litigation.

ARTICLE XI.
DISPUTES AMONG THE UTILITY AND THE METRO FLOOD DIVERSION
AUTHORITY

Section 11.01 INTENT AND PROCEDURE. The Utility and the Authority shall use their
Best Efforts to ensure that the provisions of this Agreement are fulfilled. The Parties agree to act
in Good Faith to undertake resolution of disputes in an equitable and timely manner and in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. If disputes cannot be resolved informally by
the Parties or under other, situation-specific dispute resolution mechanisms contained herein, the
following procedure shall be used.

Section 11.02 PROCEDURE TO COMMENCE DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS. The Parties
agree that in the event of an alleged breach of any of the terms of this Agreement, the Parties
making such allegation shall, except as provided in Section 13.01 (Notices) of this Agreement,
provide thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice to the other Party of the alleged breach. The
written notice shall contain reasonable description of the underlying facts and an explanation of
why the Party providing notice believe those facts constitute a breach. Following transmittal of
the notice, the Party alleged to have caused the breach shall be given a reasonable time (as
provided in Section 11.03 of this Agreement), not less than ten (10) calendar days to correct or
remedy the alleged breach, to meet and confer with the other Party, and/or to participate in
mediation with the other Party prior to initiating any litigation, arbitration, or any administrative
proceeding, unless the alleged breach has the potential to cause immediate and irreparable harm,
in which case the Party alleging the harm may initiate litigation prior to complying with the
provisions of this Section 11.02 while, at the same time, following the procedures set forth in
Sections 11.01, 11.02, and 13.01 of this Agreement as applicable.

Section 11.03 TimMe TO CORRECT. The reasonableness of the time afforded to the Party
alleged to have breached this Agreement pursuant to Section 11.02 of this Agreement to cure the
alleged breach and engage in dispute resolution processes shall be determined by considering the
circumstances, including the potential harm, injury, or damages that are or may result from the
alleged breach and the extent to which the harm, injury, or damages may worsen with the passage
of time.

Section 11.04 MEDIATION. If there is a failure between the Parties to resolve a dispute
on their own, the Parties shall first attempt to mediate the dispute. The Parties shall agree upon a
single mediator or, if they cannot agree, shall obtain a list of court-appointed mediators from the
Cass County District Court Administrator, and select a mediator by alternately striking names until
one remains. The Authority shall strike the first name, followed by the Utility, in that recurring
order until one name remains.

19



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 115 of 247

Execution Version

Section 11.05 RIGHT oOF SETOFF. If there is a failure between the Parties to resolve a
dispute on their own, and the Parties have attempted to utilize the dispute resolution process
pursuant to Article XI of this Agreement, and such dispute, including but not limited to those
identified in Sections 3.04, 5.05, and 6.03, results in the unreasonable delay of the Utility
Relocation Project, the Authority is hereby authorized, to the fullest extent permitted by law to
setoff, and may apply any and all deposits at any time held and owing to or for the credit of any
Party to this Agreement against any and all obligations existing under this Agreement.

Section 11.06 LITIGATION IF DISPUTE NOT RESOLVED. If the dispute is not resolved
within thirty (30) days after the end of mediation proceedings, the Parties may litigate the matter.

Section 11.07 LEGAL FEeES. Each Party will be responsible for their own attorney’s fees
in connection with a dispute under this Article.

Section 11.08 WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THE PARTIES HEREBY KNOWINGLY,
IRREVOCABLY, VOLUNTARILY, AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVE ANY RIGHTS THAT
ANY MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO ANY ACTION,
PROCEEDING, COUNTERCLAIM, OR DEFENSE BASED ON THIS AGREEMENT, OR
ARISING OUT OF, UNDER, OR IN ANY CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, OR
WITH RESPECT TO ANY COURSE OF CONDUCT, COURSE OF DEALING, STATEMENTS
(WHETHER ORAL OR WRITTEN), OR ACTIONS OF ANY PARTY HERETO RELATING
TO THIS AGREEMENT. THIS PROVISION IS A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT FOR ALL
MEMBER ENTITIES ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT. THIS PROVISION APPLIES
ONLY TO SUITS BETWEEN THE UTILITY AND THE AUTHORITY ARISING OUT OF
OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT AND DOES NOT APPLY TO THIRD-PARTY
CLAIMS OR SUITS BY OR ON BEHALF OF THE PARTIES FOR PROJECT PROPERTY
ACQUISITION AND/OR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT CLAIMS AND DEFENSES.

ARTICLE XIlI.
USE OF EMINENT DOMAIN

Section 12.01 EMINENT DoMAIN. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as
limiting the Authority, or its Member Entities’ ability to exercise its powers of eminent domain.

Section 12.02 NULLIFICATION BY EMINENT DOMAIN. Should the Authority initiate
eminent domain proceedings to accomplish the goals of the Utility Relocation Project, the terms
of the Agreement shall be null and void at the option of the Authority. However, the Authority
will initiate eminent domain proceedings against the Utility only if (1) the Utility has failed to
fulfill a duty under this Agreement and that failure has or is like to cause material and substantial
disruption to timely completion of the design or construction of the SEAI; and (2) the Authority
has given the Utility at least fourteen (14) days written notice of its intent to initiate eminent
domain proceedings and the Utility has failed within those fourteen (14) days to fulfill its duty or
to make substantial progress in doing so as reasonably determined by the Authority.

Section 12.03 NULLIFICATION AFTER COSTS INCURRED. Should the terms of this
Agreement be nullified under Section 12.02 or terminated under Section 13.23 (Termination”),
after the Utility has begun work for which it would otherwise be entitled to reimbursement under

20



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 116 of 247

Execution Version

this Agreement, the Utility shall, within thirty (30) days of being served with notice of the
nullification or termination, submit a report of its Costs to the Authority in the same manner it
would have submitted a report of Costs pursuant to Article VII had the Agreement not been
nullified or terminated. In the event of nullification or termination, the Utility and the Authority
shall have all the rights and obligations created by Article VIII of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XIII.
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 13.01 NorTIce. All notices under the Agreement will be in writing and: (a)
delivered personally; (b) sent by certified mail, return receipt requested; (c) sent by a recognized
overnight mail or courier service, with deliver receipt requested; or (d) sent by facsimile or email
communication followed by a hard copy and with receipt confirmed by telephone or return receipt
(in the case of email communication), to the following addresses:

a. All notices to the Authority, including Project correspondence, submittals, and
samples, will be marked as regarding the Project and will be delivered to the
following address or as otherwise directed by the Authority’s authorized
representative:

Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc.
4784 Amber Valley Parkway, Suite 200
Fargo, North Dakota 58104

b. All legal notices to the Authority, in addition to being provided to the Authority’s
representative as provided above, will also be provided to the Executive Director
at the following address or as otherwise directed by the Authority’s representative:

Metro Flood Diversion Authority

Attn: Executive Director

4784 Amber Valley Parkway, Suite 100
Fargo, North Dakota 58104

and
APInvoicesFMDiv@jacobs.com

wilsonro@casscountynd.gov
mredlinger@FargoND.gov

C. All notices to the Utility will be marked as regarding the Project and will be
delivered to the following address or as otherwise directed by the Utility’s
authorized representative:

21


mailto:wilsonro@casscountynd.gov
mailto:mredlinger@FargoND.gov

Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 117 of 247

Execution Version

Southeast Water Users District
Attn: General Manager
P.O.Box 10

Mandator, North Dakota 58058

d. Notices will be deemed received when actually received in the office of the
addressee (or by the addressee if personally delivered) or when delivery is refused,
as shown on the receipt of the U.S. Postal Service, private courier, or other person
making the delivery. Notwithstanding the foregoing, notices sent by facsimile after
4:00 p.m. Central Time and all other notices received after 5:00 p.m. Central Time
will be deemed received on the first Business Day following delivery.

Section 13.02 AsSSIGNMENT. Neither Party may transfer or assign this Agreement, nor
any rights or obligations under this Agreement, without the express written consent of the other
Party. Each Party shall only be permitted to transfer or assign rights or obligations under this
Agreement by giving thirty (30) days’ written notice pursuant to Section 13.01 to the other Party
of its intent to transfer or assign.

Section 13.03 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION. Each Party shall be responsible for injuries
or deaths of its own personnel. Each Party will maintain workers’ compensation insurance or self-
insurance coverage, covering its own personnel while they are providing assistance pursuant to
this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, each Party waives the
right to pursue a legal action against one of the other Parties for any workers’ compensation
benefits paid to its own employee or volunteer or their dependents, even if the injuries are caused
wholly or partially by the negligence of any other Party or its officers, employees, or volunteers.

Section 13.04 INSURANCE. The Utility shall list the Authority as additional insureds on
any insurance policy obtained in connection with the Utility Relocation Project. No Utility
Adjustment Work may be done until a certificate of insurance listing the aforementioned entities
as additional insureds is produced. An additional insured shall be given notice at least thirty (30)
days before an insurance policy on which it is an additional insured is canceled or allowed to
expire. In the event that the policy is terminated for any reason and notice has not been previously
given to the additional insureds, the formerly insured shall give notice to the additional insureds
as soon as is reasonably possible.

Section 13.05 LIABILITY LIMITATIONS. Nothing in the Agreement shall be deemed a
waiver by either Party of any limitation on liability set forth in any statute, including N.D.C.C.
Section 32-12.1-03, and as any such statutes may be amended from time to time, or a waiver of
any available immunities or defenses.

Section 13.06 RELATIONSHIPS CREATED. The Parties agree this Agreement does not
create any agency, partnership, joint venture, or any other relationship between the Parties and
that the Utility is solely responsible for its own actions or omissions.

Section 13.07 GOVERNING LAw. This Agreement shall be controlled by the laws of the
State of North Dakota. Any action brought as a result of any claim, demand, or cause of action

22



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 118 of 247

Execution Version

arising under the terms of this Agreement shall be venued in Cass County in the State of North
Dakota, and the Parties waive any objection to personal jurisdiction.

Section 13.08 CoNFLICT. In the event of a conflict between the Parties pertaining to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, this Agreement shall control and govern the relocation
of Utility infrastructure, lines, and property for purposes of the SEAI and the UMA, but not the
relocation of Utility infrastructure, lines, and property for purposes of the SWDCAL.

Section 13.09 SEVERABILITY. Each provision, section, sentence, clause, phrase, and
word of this Agreement is intended to be severable. If any provision, section, sentence, clause,
phrase, and word hereof is held by a court with jurisdiction to be illegal or invalid for any reason
whatsoever, such illegality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this
Agreement.

Section 13.10 MoDIFICATIONS. Any modifications or amendments to this Agreement
must be in writing and signed by both Parties to this Agreement.

Section 13.11 BINDING EFFeCT. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective personal representatives, successors, and assigns.

Section 13.12 REPRESENTATION. The Parties, having been represented by counsel or
having waived the right to counsel, have carefully read and understand the contents of this
Agreement, and agree they have not been influenced by any representations or statements made
by any other parties.

Section 13.13 HEADINGS. Headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and will
not be used to interpret or construe its provisions.

Section 13.14 COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and
the same agreement and shall become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed
by each of the Parties and delivered to the other Party.

Section 13.15 REPRESENTATION OF AUTHORITY. Each Party signing this Agreement
represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute and
deliver this Agreement and that the Agreement is a valid and legal agreement binding on such
Party and enforceable in accordance with its terms.

Section 13.16 FEeEes. The fees provided for herein shall not be interpreted or deemed to
be the Authority’s sole source of recovery for damages in any way arising from or related to
Utility’s delay, actions, or failure to act. The Authority shall have all remedies available to it at
law in addition to any fees paid to the Authority by Utility pursuant to this Agreement.

Section 13.17 ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this

Agreement may be executed by electronic signature, which shall be considered an original
signature for all purposes and shall have the same force and effect as an original signature.

23



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 119 of 247

Execution Version

Section 13.18 FEDERAL LOBBYING RESTRICTIONS. Recipients of federal financial
assistance may not pay any person for influencing or attempting to influence any officer or
employee of a federal agency, member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or any
employee of a member of Congress with respect to the award, continuation, renewal, amendment,
or modification of a federal grant, loan, or contract. These requirements are implemented for U.S.
EPA in 40 CFR Part 34, which also describes types of activities, such as legislative liaison
activities and professional and technical services, which are not subject to this prohibition. Upon
award of this contract, Utility shall complete and submit to the Authority the certification and
disclosure forms in Appendix A and Appendix B to 40 CFR Part 34, which are attached as Exhibit
D to this Agreement. Utility shall also require all subcontractors and suppliers of any tier awarded
a subcontract over $100,000 to similarly complete and submit the certification and disclosure
forms pursuant to the process set forth in 40 CFR 34.110.

Section 13.19 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION. Utility certifies that it will not knowingly
enter into a contract with anyone who is ineligible under the 40 CFR Part 32 to participate in the
Project. Suspension and debarment information can be accessed at http://www.sam.gov. Utility
represents and warrants that it has or will include a term or conditions requiring compliance with
this provision in all of its subcontracts under this Agreement. Upon award of this contract, Utility
shall complete and submit to the Authority, the federal certification form regarding debarment
and suspension, which is attached as Exhibit D to this Agreement.

Section 13.20 DAviIs-BACON AcT AND OTHER LABOR LAws. Utility shall comply with
the following federal labor requirements:

a. Davis-Bacon Act, which requires the payment of prevailing wage rates to all
laborers and mechanics on construction projects in excess of $2,000. Utility and
the Authority acknowledge and agree that the Davis-Bacon Act shall apply if the
Authority is performing Utility Adjustment Construction Work. Utility and the
Authority acknowledge and agree that the Davis-Bacon Act shall not apply if any
party other than the Authority is performing Utility Adjustment Construction
Work.

b. The Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which requires time and
one-half pay for overtime hours worked in excess of forty hours in any workweek.

C. The Copeland Act (Anti-Kickback Act), which prohibits employers from inducing
an employee to give up any part of compensation to which he or she is entitled.

Section 13.21 CiviL RIGHTS OBLIGATIONS. The Utility shall comply with the following,
federal non-discrimination requirements:

a. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination based on
race, color, and national origin, including Limited English Proficiency (“LEP”).

b. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination
against persons with disabilities.

24


http://www.sam.gov/

Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 120 of 247

Execution Version

C. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, which prohibits age discrimination.

d. Section 13 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 1972,
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex.

e. 40 CFR Part 7, as it relates to the foregoing.
f. Executive Order No. 11246.

Section 13.22 CERTIFICATION. Utility shall complete and submit to the Authority, the
federal certification form regarding civil rights, which is attached as Exhibit D to this Agreement.

Section 13.23 TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated by the Authority, at
any time and for any reason with three (3) calendar days written notice to the Utility. If this
Agreement is terminated, Section 12.03 (Nullification After Costs Incurred”) applies to allow the
Utility the right to recover its Costs.

Section 13.24 RAPID CLOSURE VALVES. Section 5.5 of Exhibit C (MFR-023, Utility
Guidelines for the Southern Embankment) contains a requirement that certain pipes have a valve
that allows rapid closure in certain events. This requirement is met by installation of new manual
isolation valves for rapid emergency closure in accordance with the Ultility’s standard
specifications and Section 5.5 of Exhibit C on either side of the dam embankment in locations
consistent with the Utility’s safety requirements and approved by the USACE.

(Signatures appear on the following pages.)

25



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 121 of 247

Execution Version

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties executed this Agreement on the date first written above.

ATTEST:

Dawn Lindblom, Secretary

AUTHORITY:

Metro Flood Diversion Authority

Michael Redlinger, Co-Executive Director

Robert Wilson, Co-Executive Director

Michelle (Shelly) A. Carlson, Chair



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 122 of 247

Execution Version

UTILITY:

Southeast Water Users District

By:
Its:
ATTEST:
By:
Its:

S-2



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 123 of 247

Exhibit A

: : T
P et
Cass PLEASANT 31 Clay '_ Legend
2 36 Twp "
Aj/ . IV 32I e SE\VUD - Non-Field Located
137 - 49 Wi« A S —— el Southern Embankment
\46F .14 Sy Q1=_ . .'| Segments
\ v / /) SE-1
N A S SE-1B
":. 5 ;% A N SE-2A
| S W | 2, SE-2B
3 2 ' 1 ' 4 r b7 7 A 6 SE-3
= . ' 'y \ A, 3 SE-4
: { = 4 i SE-5
\.J 6 29
P ) 2 Flowage Easement Zones
s = - 11/03/2021
5 ."; bt 7 / = ) Federal Mitigation Zone 1
| — 4 Federal Mitigation Zone 2
( - NDSWC Mitigation Zone 3
@ h N, MNDNR Mitigation Zone 4A
/ 7 : ) 7 MNDNR Mitigation Zone 4B
10 11 12 | A MNDNR Mitigation Zone 4C
[l \ g
| === 4
: f - -
& Wilkin
» P -
{ 16
\ WOLVERTON
=48
l ¢ \
g JM * < k
15 14 ! 13 ® )
18
)
Walcott
22 235 o 24 19
i
|
Ch;is.tine
25 Eagle
27 30
Richland
’
- 35 36 31
3
A ] S
y 5 \ &
Colfax ~ &
5
3 2 1 6 S N,
——
.J.!_.;5
\
SEWUD N
FLOWAGE EASEMENT AREA 0 1250 2,500 5,000 m
FM AREA DIVERSION PROJECT w g | o ——e Feet : 00 re
C tdBy TJS Date Created: 12/03/21 Date Saved: 02/24/22 Date Plotted: 03/28/16 Date Exponed' 02/24/22 tin =2‘500 feet englneerlng’ InC'
ForconlDatm SAB”{‘Séasfl pina (L“’E?kfs !J??pgs aié’;i"t ‘y'é’*‘fs.‘%st um E.L,Ivéiig?a s




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 124 of 247

Exhibit B

N

o e A
| Oxbew,
B =

Legend

= Diversion Channel Centerline Structure Mitigation Zone
e Embankment [ Residential, Zone 1

o

r | FEMA Revision Reach Boundary Non-Residential, Zone 1

= (100-year 6-inch impact) Residential, Zone 2

Mitigation Zones

[/ Federal Mitigation Zone 1
B Federal Mitigation Zone 2
[ NDSWC Mitigation Zone 3
I VINDNR Mitigation Zone 4

Non-Residential, Zone 2
Residential, Zone 3
Non-Residential, Zone 3
Residential, Zone 4
Non-Residential, Zone 4
Residential, Mitigated
Non-Residential, Mitigated
Residential, N/A
Non-Residential, N/A

[] e m O O @€ B O O

O

1 &
| i%%’%i
1

FM AREA DIVERSION PROJECT
UPSTREAM MITIGATION AREA &
MITIGATION ZONES

Created By: KMV Date Created: 06/18/18 Date Saved: 09/15/20 Date Exported: 09/15/20

Plotted By: kyle.volk Parcel Date: Varies Aerial Image: N/A Elevation Data: 2008 Lidar

Horizontal Datum: NAD 1983 StatePlane North Dakota South FIPS 3302 Feet Vertical Datum: NAVD1988
T:\Projects\19100\1911612020 Mitigation Plan Maps\2020_06_17\CLOMR5_UMA_Zones_Map_2020_09_15_Revision_Reach.mxd

Miles

Source: CLOMR FEMA Case Number 19-08-0683R

FM AREA
DIVERSION




Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 125 of 247

Exhibit C
EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

MEMORANDUM FOR RECORD

SUBJECT:
Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan (FMM) Area Southern Embankment - MFR-023, Utility
Guidelines for the Southern Embankment

1. REFERENCES
a. USACE. Engineering Manual 1110-2-2902 Conduits, Culverts and Pipes. 22 May 2020.

b. USACE. Engineering Pamphlet No. 1110-2-18, Guidelines for Landscape Planting and
Vegetation Management at Levees, Floodwalls, Embankment Dams, and Appurtenant
Structures. 1 May 2019.

c. ANSI/IEEE C2 —National Electric Safety Code.

2. PURPOSE

Requirements for pipelines! and other utility lines crossing the dam are primarily defined in
References under paragraph 1. Asnoted in Chapter 2 of Reference 1a, internal erosion accounts
for nearly half of all embankment dam failures with many of those failures occurring along
pipelines. These potential failure modes are also discussed at length in Chapter 2 of Ref 1a.
Understanding how these failures occur and the risks associated with these failures is key in
designing the proposed utility crossings and was the basis of this MFR to minimize risks to the
dam and allow the dam to perform as intended.

Ideally, all utilities would be relocated around the Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan Area (FMM)
Southern Embankment (SE) Project and would not cross the dam embankment or be placed
within the Project work limits. However, given the length of the Project, (21 miles of dam),
utilities will need to cross the line of the protection. Therefore, these guidelines will aid impacted
utility owners and the Non-Federal Sponsor (NFS) in developing an approved utility relocation
plan. These guidelines are general; each proposed utility relocation within the SE Project work
limits shall be reviewed by the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) on a case-by-
case basis.

3. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The FMM SE Project is a “dry dam” consisting of a 21-mile long earthen dam embankment and
three gated structures. The SE Project will be constructed to meet USACE dam safety criteria
and is to be built under several contracts spanning multiple years. The three gated structures are
located at the inlet to the diversion channel near the intersection of Cass County Road 16 (CR

I Conduits, pipes, and culverts that convey fluids or gases, or serve as encasements forutility lines, or intercept
seepage.

Page 1 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 126 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

16) and Cass County Road 17 (CR 17) south of Horace, North Dakota; at the Wild Rice River;
and at the Red River of the North. These three structures are referred to as the Diversion Inlet
Structure (DIS), Wild Rice River Structure (WRRS), and Red River Structure (RRS),
respectively.

4. EXISTING UTILITY REMOVAL AND ABANDONMENT

In general, existing utilities within the SE Project work limits and/or that cross the proposed dam
embankment alignment shall be removed and or abandoned prior to the USACE issuing a notice
to proceed for an awarded construction contract.

Existing utility lines may remain in place until the relocated utility becomes operational or may
be temporarily relocated provided its design is coordinated in line with the USACE design and
construction schedule. Temporary utility relocations shall be coordinated with the USACE prior
to the SE Project 65% plans and specifications and may be placed within the SE Project work
limits.

4.1. Overhead Utilities

In general, overhead utility lines and poles shall be removed from the SE Project work limits by
the responsible utility owner prior to construction. Above ground appurtenances, utility
pedestals and boxes, or any other utility related infrastructure shall also be removed by the utility
owner prior to award of the USACE construction contract. Existing overhead power may be
allowed to stay in place based upon approval from the USACE.

4.2. Underground Utilities

Responsible utility companies shall disconnect, cap, and abandon existing underground utility
lines located within the SE Project work limits. Abandoned underground utility lines will be
removed as necessary by the USACE construction contractor.

Any remaining abandoned underground utility lines, abandoned above ground utility lines, and
any related utility infrastructure within the SE Project work limits shall be described and listed
with enough detail to include as part of the SE Project 65% plans and specifications ahead of
contract award.

5. PROPOSED UTILITY CROSSINGS OF THE DAM EMBANKMENT
The paragraphs below provide the general guidance for utilities crossing the FMM SE Project.

5.1. Alignment and Utility Corridor

Utility owners shall develop a plan forrelocation of utilities (electric, water, sewer,
communication, gas, etc.) that cross or lie within the SE Project work limits. Utility companies
shall submit proposed utility relocation plans to the NFS and USACE forreview and comment

Page 2 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 127 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

prior to utility relocation construction. The number of utility crossing locations shall be
minimized and the use of utility corridors where multiple utilities cross in the same general
location is preferred. Final crossing location and orientation relative to the SE Project alignment
shall be approved by the NFS and USACE during SE Project design stages.

Wherever possible, the utilities shall be rerouted to one of the nearest seven proposed utility
corridors provided in Table 1 and Figure 1 below.

Table 1: List of Utility Corridors.

ID Location Description

1 Diversion Inlet Structure Shoulder of County Road 16

2 45t Street S Shoulder of 45" Street S

3 County Road 16 Shoulder of County Road 16

4 Wild Rice River Structure 173" Ave SE access ramp to Dam

5 Red River Structure Roadway shoulder of County Road 81

6 Comstock, MN Roadway shoulder of 160" Ave S (County Road 2)
7 HWY 75 & 100" Street Intersection Roadway shoulder of U.S. Highway (HWY 75)

‘Horace

fWild Rice

Diversion Inlet
structure

-

Red River Structure
e

Wild Rice

{Comstock

Figure 1: Locations of the utility corridors along the FMM Southern Embankment Project

Page 3 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 128 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

5.2. Overhead Utilities

Poles, guy wires, and anchors shall be located 25 feet beyond the daylight of the SE Project
borrow and local drainage ditches. Overhead work clearance requirements for dam construction
shall be determined by Table 232-1 of Ref 1c, and dam embankments shall be considered “road,
streets, and other areas subject to truck traffic,” as the dam will be regularly traversed for
operation, maintenance, repair, rehabilitation, and emergency operations. Clearance distances
shall be selected per voltage levels and the type of cable, conductor, or wire. Section 23 and
sections C and D of Ref 1¢ have methods for calculating the required clearances for routing
electrical lines with voltages exceeding 22 kV.

5.3. In-Ground Utilities Crossing the Dam Embankment

Utilities crossing the dam embankment shall be designed according to Ref 1a, as well as the
guidance provided below. These guidelines apply to the portion of the utility located within the
dam embankment footprint and within the SE Project work limits.

5.3.1. Up and Over Dam Embankment Crossing

Proposed utility crossings above the allowable crossing elevation of 925 feet (NAVD88) will be
evaluated on a case by case basis, and drawings/calculations shall be submitted to fully
document the design. The following are provided as guidelines:

(1)  Proposed utility crossings shall be aligned to cross as close to perpendicular as
possible to the dam embankment centerline at the approved utility corridor crossing.
Variations to the crossing angle may be dictated by field conditions and the location of
connecting utilities. If possible, crossings shall be located where the existing ground is
at its highest elevation. Final crossing location and orientation relative to the dam
embankment alignment shall be approved by the NFS and USACE during SE Project
design stages.

(2)  Ingeneral, non-pipeline utilities (Cable TV, Telecommunications and Underground
Power lines) shall cross up and over the top of the dam embankment at an elevation
above 925 feet NAVDSS). This elevation includes the 1.5 feet of expected settlement
for most of the dam embankment reaches. Calculations are required to show that each
utility line has adequate strength/flexibility to withstand the expected loading and
settlement.

(3)  For pipelines that need to be protected from freezing (e.g. water lines and sanitary
sewer force mains), additional dam embankment fill will be required to meet local
requirements for 10 feet minimum cover. Earthen fill is the preferred alternative for
frost protection, as it is more reliable than insulation.

Page 4 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 129 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

4)

)

Selecting the most appropriate pipe material for a specific environment is an essential
step in reducing the risk associated with the long-term performance of a pipe. A list of
applicable pipe materials by function along with potential concerns for each pipe
function, is provided in Table 3-2 in Ref la.

Controlled Low-Strength Material (CLSM) backfill must be used to encapsulate pipes
through its horizontal alignment when trenched within/through the crest of the dam to
reduce the chance of seepage along or into the pipe. See Figure 5-40 of Ref 1a.

For pressurized utilities, the following guidelines also apply:

(6)

(7)

(8)

©)

(10)

Pipeline material and joints shall be pressure rated to withstand all fluid pressures that
may be encountered. Recommended viable pipe materials by pipe function are listed
in Table 3-2 of Ref la.

Pipelines shall be evaluated for the need for air-release, air vacuum and combination
valves at the crest of the dam embankment. If needed, the valves shall be adequately
protected from frost.

Pipe bends shall have appropriately designed thrust restraints. See Section 5.5.13 of
Ref 1a.

Calculations are required to show that each utility line has adequate strength and
flexibility to withstand the expected loading and settlement.

If manholes are required for access to rapid closure valves and testing access points,
watertight sealed manholes shall be located a minimum of 25 feet outside the upstream
and downstream dam embankment toes.

5.3.2. Under Dam Embankment Crossing

Utilities crossing under the dam embankment shall be designed according to Ref 1a, as
well as the guidance provided below. These crossings will also be evaluated on a case by
case basis, and calculations shall be submitted to fully document the design. There are

additional factors that must be considered and addressed in a site-specific engineering
evaluation before any such crossing would be approved. Chapter 5 of Ref 1a discusses
these factors and concerns. Pressure pipelines are of particular concern because of the
damage that can occur to the dam embankment if a line fails in the foundation of the dam
embankment. The guidelines in Paragraph 5.3.1 above will apply to crossings under the
dam embankment as well as the following additional guidelines.

(1)

If open-cut methods are utilized, the crown of the pipeline must be at least 3 feet

Page 5 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 130 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

)

)

“4)

below the bottom of the dam inspection trench and bottom of borrow/drainage ditches
associated with the SE Project. This guideline serves to reduce the chance of damaging
the utility during construction and/or during future maintenance activities. Utilities
susceptible to freezing shall be located a minimum of 10 feet below the ditches or as
required by local code.

If open cut is utilized, the trench shall extend under and 20 feet beyond the proposed
dam embankment prism toes. Topsoil shall be stripped from the trench area and set
aside separate from the excavated trench material. The utility pipeline will be required
to be encased in CLSM (specification attached). The new pipeline shall be placed on
supports to allow the CLSM to flow beneath the pipe and completely fill the pipe
haunches. See Sections 5.5.7 and 5.5.18.1. of Ref 1a. Supports shall be placed from
L/4 to L/5 from the pipe ends, where L is the pipe segment length. See Section 5.5 in
Ref 1a for further detail. CLSM shall be placed in the trench to 1 foot above the crown
of the pipe. The remaining trench shall be backfilled with compacted impervious fill
from material excavated from the trench, excluding topsoil. Fill shall not be placed on
any subgrade that is wet, muddy, frozen, containing frost, or covered with snow.
Trenches shall be backfilled in maximum 12-inch (uncompacted) layers and
compacted to a density of at least 95-percent of the maximum density obtained by
standard proctor (ASTM D698). Fill shall be within the limits of 3 percentage points
above the optimum and 1 percentage point below the optimum moisture content of the
standard proctor as determined by field moisture density tests. Field moisture density
tests shall be either by nuclear method (ASTM D6938) or the rubber balloon method
(ASTM D2167). Testing frequency shall be at least one test per 250 lineal foot, for
each lift.

If horizontal directional drilling is utilized, it shall be accomplished pursuant to
Section 5.6 of Ref 1a and the attached “Guidelines for Installation of Utilities Beneath
Corps of Engineers Levees Using Horizontal Directional Drilling”, June 2002, and the
St. Paul District’s “Guidance Pertaining to Horizontal Directional Drilling Under a
Flood Barrier/Channel.” The pipe entry and exit locations (pits) must be located so
that they are a distance of at least 20 times the embankment height or 300 feet
(whichever is greater) from the embankment centerline.

Utility relocation design shall include watertight sealed manholes on both sides of the
dam embankment for access to rapid closure valves (see Section 5.5 below), regular
operation and maintenance activities, and to facilitate recurring inspections of
pressurized utilities passing under the dam embankment. Watertight sealed manholes
shall be located a minimum of 25 feet outside the upstream and downstream
embankment toes.

Page 6 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 131 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

5.4. Casing for Utility Lines

(1) All pressurized utility lines (sewer, water, and gas) crossing under the dam
embankment shall be cased. The use of casing pipe should also be considered for
other utility crossings.

) USACE recommends the use of HDPE or steel pipe for casing pipe material. All
casing specifications shall be submitted to USACE forreview and comment prior to
installation.

3) In general, if horizontal directional drilling is utilized casing pipe material shall be
limited to one that can be joined together continuously, while maintaining sufficient
strength to resist the high tensile stresses imposed during the pullback operation.

4) Casing shall extend a minimum of 20 feet beyond the proposed dam embankment
prism toes if open cut method is utilized. If horizontal directional drilling is utilized
casing pipe will extend from entry to exit pit.

(5) The annular space between the casing and the carrier pipe must be grouted and sealed
under the dam embankment prism and extend a minimum of 20 feet beyond the dam
embankment prism toes to reduce the likelihood of future seepage or settlement
related issues. The design documentation for the grouting must include calculations
for the expected volume of grout needed to fill the annular space.

5.5. Rapid Closure Valves

All pressurized pipelines crossing above or below the dam embankment shall have positive shut-
off valves installed on either side of the dam embankment. The purpose of the valves is to
provide pipeline isolation in the event of leakage, rupture, repairs, or relocation. All pressurized
pipes crossing the dam must be designed in a way that allows rapid closure in the event of a
rupture to prevent gas or fluid from escaping within or beneath the dam embankment causing
internal erosion; and to prevent backflow of floodwater into the benefitted area. The rapid
closure valves shall be located a minimum of 25 feet beyond the toes of the dam embankment. If
a utility company wants to relocate valves outside of SE Project limits, the utility company must
submit a detailed plan with justification to USACE. USACE will review the plan and provide its
decision on whether or not to grant a variance. Final valve type used shall be determined on a
case by case basis.

5.6. Non-Pipeline Utility Crossings

Cable TV, Telecommunications and Underground Power lines are typically trenched into the
ground at depths ranging from 3 to 4 feet below the ground surface. For non-pipeline utilities
that will be relocated up and over the dam embankment, the utilities shall be relocated in the dam
embankment above the allowable crossing elevation of 925 feet (NAVD 88).

Page 7 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 132 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

When crossing underneath the dam embankment, the non-pipeline utility may be horizontally
directionally drilled pursuant to Paragraph 5.3.2 (3). Any open annular space in the casing pipe
must be grouted or filled, as noted in paragraph 5.4 (5) above.

6. UTILITY RELOCATIONS NOT CROSSING THE DAM EMBANKMENT BUT
WITHIN PROJECT WORK LIMTIS
Utility relocations within the SE Project work limits, but not crossing within the dam
embankment or located underneath the dam embankment prism, shall be designed to meet all
federal, state, and local requirements. Relocations shall be designed to withstand heavy loading
from construction equipment and shall meet minimum frost protection depths as required.
Consideration shall be given to prevent excavation of the dam embankment if the utility is
required to be replaced or repaired. Ultilities running parallel to the SE Project alignment must
be located a minimum of 25 feet beyond the daylight of the SE Project borrow and local drainage
ditches.

Existing utilities running parallel to the SE Project alignment and located within 25 feet of the
daylight of the SE Project borrow and local drainage ditches will be evaluated on a case-by-case
basis. The NFS and USACE will make a determination if the utility may remain in place.

7. INSPECTIONS

7.1. Acceptance Testing and Inspection

Pipelines crossing the dam embankment will require acceptance testing as described in Section
5.8 of Ref 1a following standards and guidance for pipe testing per Table 5-4 of Ref la. USACE
requires that each joint be tested hydrostatically to determine whether it exceeds the maximum
joint leakage specified by the pipe’s applicable ASTM. Utility companies must submit a plan
that outlines their proposed testing. Specifications shall be written to require testing after
installation.

7.2. Post-Construction Inspection

A post-construction inspection of pipes within the inspection limits of the dam as determined in
Section 6.3 of Ref 1a must be performed no sooner than 30 days after completion of the project

to assess backfilling, grading, paving, placement of concrete structures, etc. See Section 5.8.3 of
Ref 1a.

7.3. Recurring Inspections

Pipes must be inspected, and their conditions assessed on a recurring basis so that any potential
impact to the integrity of a USACE dam can be evaluated regularly. Water distribution and sewer
force main testing must include in-line inspection, hydrostatic pressure testing, direct assessment
or other technology that is demonstrated to provide an equivalent understanding of the condition

Page 8 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 133 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

of the pipe. Natural gas testing must include internal inspection tools, pressure tests, or direct
assessment to address threats of external corrosion, internal corrosion and stress corrosion
cracking; or other inspection technology that is demonstrated to provide an equivalent
understanding of the condition of the pipe. Description of inspection methods and design of
pipeline to accommodate recurring inspections shall be included in the design documentation.

Some third-party pipes/conduits serve as casings for utilities (e.g., electric, fiber optic) and will
cross the dam within a larger casing pipe. Neither the utility conduit nor its larger casing pipe
will require regular inspections provided these are designed in accordance with Sections 5.4 (4),
5.4 (5) and 5.6 above.

8. RESPONSIBILITIES

Per the Project Partnership Agreement (PPA), the NFS is required to perform relocations, which
includes utilities. The NFS is thus responsible for:

(1)  Coordination with utility owners impacted by the proposed SE Project.

(2) Development of a schedule to implement the relocations which includes at a minimum
design, review, and construction.

(3) Hold coordination meetings as needed during the design of relocations.

(4) Development of draft and final demolition and relocation plans and design
documentation that will be submitted to the USACE forreview and comment, and
inclusion into plans and specifications.

(5) Evaluate USACE comments and coordinate with USACE reviewers to close out
comments.

(6) Depending on the type and location of proposed utilities within the Project work
limits, some relocations may need to be constructed prior to dam embankment
construction. For utility relocations that will need to be completed prior to the dam
embankment construction, final approved relocation plans must be submitted to the
appropriate USACE design team no later than 30 days prior to the 65% dam
embankment design package submittal date.

(7)  Utility relocation plans shall be transmitted to the USACE Technical Lead.

(8)  Provide construction oversight of utility relocations and abandonments within the
Southern Embankment Project footprint. Construction oversight shall be administered
by a professional engineer. Construction reporting and documentation shall be in
accordance with Section 5.9 of Ref la.

(9)  Facilitating recurring inspections of pipelines that are within the SE Project work
limits. Schedule for recurring inspections must be coordinated with the Utility
companies and USACE. All inspection reports shall be submitted to USACE.

(10) Future utility relocations and coordination of new utilities after SE Project completion
shall be in accordance with the SE Operations and Maintenance manual and pursuant

Page 9 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 134 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

to CFR 33 USC 408.

The USACE shall be responsible for:

(1)  Participation in coordination meetings.

(2)  Incorporating demolition and relocation plans into the dam embankment design
packages, if applicable.

(3) Timely review of draft and final demolition and relocation plans during the 65% and
95% dam embankment design packages. These will be reviewed with the dam
embankment design packages in accordance with the FMM SE Project review plan.

(4)  For utilities to be relocated under the dam embankment prior to its construction, the
USACE shall have 14 days to review the utility relocation documents per submittal.
All comments shall be submitted in writing to the NFS and be routed through the
USACE Technical Lead. Final utility relocation plans will require written approval
from the USACE Design Branch chief prior to construction.

(5)  Utilize construction reporting and documentation for all utilities in the dam foundation
for creation of the foundation report for the Southern Embankment.

(6)  Evaluate inspection reports from the NFS to assess the threat the pipe may represent to
the structural integrity or operational adequacy of the SE Project, and ensure any
recommended actions are communicated to the utility owner through the NFS.

9. DOCUMENTATION REQUIREMENTS

The section below contains the documentation requirements for utilities that are within the SE
Project work limits.

9.1. DESIGN SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

The NFS is required to provide submittals of their design documentation, plans, specifications,
and all other supporting information for all utility relocations to the USACE forreview and
acceptance. Ata minimum, two submittals shall be provided to the USACE forreview. The
first review will be a draft submittal that includes, at a minimum, sketches or relocation plans
and text defining the general proposed plan. This review will be submitted to the USACE after
the dam embankment’s 35% project review but prior to the 65% review. The final utility
submittal will include the fully developed design and relocation plan, drawings, specifications,
design documentation including recurring inspection methods and access points as well as
calculations for the expected volume of grout needed to fill the annular spaces, and all other
supporting information, etc. This will be submitted to the USACE for approval after the SE
Project’s 95% review, but prior to the SE Project’s final sign off. However, for utilities that will
be relocated under the dam embankment prior to its construction, NFS and USACE approval
must be obtained before the final ROW drawings are completed for the SE Project to ensure

Page 10 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 135 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

adequate lands are acquired for the project. Coordinate with the Technical Lead to determine the
final ROW submittal date.

9.2. MAINTENANCE AND ABANDONMENT PLAN

The NFS and the utility owners shall prepare an operation and maintenance agreement that at a
minimum describes the roles and responsibility of each party. Responsible utility owners shall
also prepare a maintenance and abandonment plan for all utilities located within the work limits
of the SE Project. The plan shall address applicable facility maintenance, periodic valve testing,
leakage, repair (if applicable), and abandonment.

9.3. POST CONSTRUCTION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

The NFS in coordination with the utility owners is required to provide construction reporting to
the USACE in accordance with Section 5.9 of Ref 1a and the following:

(1) Acceptance testing documentation and inspection records as described in Section 5.8 of
Ref 1a, including standard proctor and field moisture density results.

(2) Pipe inspection schedule and maintenance plan for future recurring inspections.

(3) Design documentation that includes calculations for the expected volume of grout
needed to fill the annular space.

(4) Post-Construction Report that shows the actual volume of grout used for filling the
annular space. This will include documentation that is quantifiable and verifies that the
annular space in the pipe has been filled.

(5) As-Built Drawings: Submit As-Built drawings for the complete utility line relocation
showing complete detail, including trench dimensions, pipe profile, pipe alignment,
valve locations, connection box locations, manholes and all other pertinent as-built
information.

(6) As-Built Surveys (see requirements listed in AS-BUILT REQUIREMENTS
paragraph).

10. UTILITY MARKERS

Crossing identification and markings will be required for each utility that is within the SE Project
work limits. Color coded fiberglass service line marker posts shall be provided for all
underground utilities at each crossing point on both sides of the embankment. Markers (Length
72 in; width 1 in.) shall identify service lines, valves, and underground property. Marker posts
shall be located 50 feet from the toe of the dam embankment.

Additionally, all piping shall be provided with tracer wire or other applicable passive marking
system to facilitate utility location by field personnel for future maintenance and repair. For
trenched pipe, the tracer wire shall be installed in the trench at a bury depth recommended by the

Page 11 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 136 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

manufacturer. For directionally drilled pipes, tracer wire shall be installed along the as-built pipe
alignment at a bury depth recommended by the manufacturer.

Above-ground signing shall be included at each crossing with information including project
stationing at pipe crossing, top of pipe elevation (including datum), pipe diameter, products that
are carried in the pipe, and pipe owner and/or emergency contact.

11. ASBUILT REQUIREMENTS

As-Built plans and As-Built survey data is required for all relocations within the work limits of
the SE Project. As-Built drawings shall be submitted in electronic format (drawing set in PDF
format and CAD files in a format compatible with Bentley MicroStation). Survey point data (X,
Y, Z, description) shall be submitted in ASCII text format. FGDC-compliant metadata files shall
be submitted which describes, in general, when the as-built survey was conducted, who
conducted the survey, how it was conducted, and the accuracy of the survey data. As-Built
drawings and surveys shall be done in the project spatial reference system:

NADS83 (2011), North Dakota State Plane Coordinate System, South Zone
NAVD 88 (GEOID18)
US Survey Feet

Page 12 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 137 of 247

EMVP-EC-D February 10, 2021

12, CONTACT

Any questions concerning this MFR should be directed to Renee McGarvey, PLA, FMM
Technical Lead, St. Paul District.

13. SIGNATURES

Digitally signed by

CSAJKO.WILLIA CSAKOWILLIAML122865959

M.L.1228659599 9Date: 2021.02.17 08:05:14 %b g%&?anl/
-06'00'

Terry Williams Kris Bakkegard, P.E.
Program Manager Director of Engineering
Project Management Branch Metro Flood Diversion Authority

SULLY.THOMAS SSiiigiiseaosses
B.1231345864 ‘%2533?021.02.1617:06:52

Tom Sully, P.E. Chris Behling, P.E.

Branch Chief Branch Chief
Design Branch Geology and Geotech Branch

Digitally signed by Michael J. Bart, PE
Date: 2021.02.24 07:09:19 -06'00'

Michael Bart, P.E.
Chief of Engineering and Construction
Engineering and Construction Division

Page 13 of 13
FMM Southern Embankment MFR-023, Utility Guidelines



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 138 of 247

ATTACHMENTS

1. Guidance Pertaining to Horizontal Directional Drilling Under a Flood Barrier/Channel
Draft Controlled Low-Strength Material (CLSM) Specification

Guidelines for Installation of Utilities Beneath Corps of Engineers Levees Using Horizontal
Directional Drilling.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 139 of 247

ATTACHMENT 1

Guidance Pertaining to Horizontal Directional Drilling Under a Flood Barrier/Channel



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 140 of 247

GUIDANCE
Pertaining to
Horizontal Directional Drilling Under a Flood Barrier/Channel

The following information and guidance pertains to horizontal directional drilling (HDD)
under an engineered flood barrier (i.e floodwall, levee embankment, diversion channel).

The two primary concerns with horizontal directional drilling (HDD) beneath a levee or
floodwall are:

1. Hydrofracturing (drilling fluid pressure exceeding the tensile strength of the soil)
the foundation soils beneath the flood barrier during drilling operations.

2. Development of a preferential seepage path along the pipeline/utility after
installation.

Generally, the COE would require the following information in the permit application for
any utilities installed by HDD that pass beneath a flood barrier.

1. Proposed drill path alignment (both plan and profile views).
2. Location of entry and exit points.
3. Proposed depth of cover.

4. Diameter of the borehole, diameter of pipe and type of pipe to be installed, if
used, or diameter of utility.

5. Proposed method to fill annulus.
6. Location, elevations, and clearances of all utility crossings and structures.

Based on our recent experience, we feel comfortable with the following
recommendations/guidelines:

e Allow the Contractor to proceed without actively monitoring the drill pressures.
Suggest that only fresh drilling mud be used. It may not be necessary to insist on
this provision depending on the length of flood barrier to be traversed, however it
will be easier to maintain a proper viscosity if clean mud is used.

e If “mud motor” HDD technology is used, hold the density of the drilling fluid as
close as possible to 8.4 Ibs/gallon (or 45seconds/quart in a Marsh Funnel).

e Bentonite can be used to fill the annulus.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 141 of 247

e Generally, depth of burial should be at least 10 feet below grade where the utility
passes under the flood barrier.

e Fluid jetting methods should not be used as a means of cutting beneath a flood
protection project.

e The Contractor will be responsible for repairing any soil fracturing, drilling fluid
reaching the surface, etc. as well as any slope failure resulting from the drilling
process. The Contractor should note any spots where fluid loss occurs, and the
COE should get a record of the amount of fluid loss as well as the location.

e Prior to commencing, the Contractor should explain their method for maintaining
directional control during drilling operations. In other words, how will he/she
verify where the bit is horizontally and vertically so that it does not accidentally
wander beneath the levee foundation any more than absolutely necessary?

e The Contractor should provide an “as-built” drawing upon completion of the
directional drilling and installation of the line. This drawing should include
alignment & profile data.

e |t should be plainly stated that any foundation or flood barrier damage resulting
from the directional drilling will be repaired by the Contractor to City/Gov’t.
specifications at Contractor expense.

e The Contractor should be informed that the suspension of the requirement to
actively monitor downhole pressures does not relieve them of the ultimate
responsibility of leaving the flood barrier foundation in the same condition, as it
was before the horizontal drilling procedure was undertaken.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 142 of 247

ATTACHMENT 2

Draft Controlled Low-Strength Material (CLSM) Specification



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 143 of 247

PART 1

w
W wwwwn e

w W W w ww

Apri |

e

1
2
3

ww

NN

RPRRPRPRRNONRE

1
2
.3
3
3

21
.2

Fargo Moorhead Metro Fl ood Reduction Project
CLSM Requirenents for Uility Relocations

SECTI ON TABLE OF CONTENTS
DI VI SI ON 03 - CONCRETE
SECTION 03 22 70.01 13

CONTROLLED LOW STRENGTH MATERI AL (CLSM

04/ 12
GENERAL
REFERENCES
DESI GN REQUI REMENTS
SUBM TTALS
PRODUCTS
MATERI ALS
1 Ready- M xed Concrete
1.1.1 Vol unetri ¢ Batching and Conti nuous M xi ng
1.1.2 On-Site Batching and M xi ng
2 Portl and Cenent
3 Pozzol an
4 Sand
5 Fluidifier
6 Wat er
M XI NG AND TRANSPORTI NG
EXECUTI ON
TRENCH PREPARATI ON
PLACEMENT
Gener al
Consol i dation
TESTS
Gener al
I nspection Details and Frequency of Testing
2.1 Fl ow Consi st ency
. 2.2 Conpr essi ve- Strengt h Speci nens
Density
Reports

.4

2012

End of Section Table of Contents --

SECTION 03 22 70.01 13 Page 1



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 144 of 247

Fargo Moorhead Metro Fl ood Reduction Project
CLSM Requirenents for Uility Relocations

SECTION 03 22 70.01 13

CONTRCLLED LOW STRENGTH MATERI AL (CLSM
04/ 12

PART 1 GENERAL

1.

1 REFERENCES

Al'l publications referenced shall be the nost current version, edition,
standard, |atest revision, or reapproval unless otherw se stated. The
foll owi ng publications and standards |isted belowwill be referred to only
by the basic designation thereafter, and shall forma part of this
specification to the extent indicated by the references thereto:

ASTM | NTERNATI ONAL (ASTM

ASTM C 33/ C 33M (2011a) Standard Specification for
Concrete Aggregates

ASTM C 94 (2011b) Ready-M xed Concrete

ASTM C 150 (2011) Standard Specification for Portland
Cenent

ASTM C 220 (1991; R 2009) Standard Specification for

Fl at Asbest os- Cenent Sheets

ASTM C 618 (2008) Coal Fly Ash and Raw or Cal ci ned
Nat ural Pozzolan for Use as a M neral
Adm xture in Portland Cenent Concrete

ASTM C 685 (2010) Concrete Made by Vol unetric
Bat chi ng and Conti nuous M xi ng

ASTM C 940 (2010a) Expansion and Bl eedi ng of Freshly
M xed Gouts for Prepl aced- Aggregate
Concrete in the Laboratory

ASTM D 4832 (2010) Preparation and Testing of
Controlled Low Strength Material (CLSM
Test Cylinders

ASTM D 5971 (2007) Standard Practice for Sanpling
Freshly M xed Controlled Low Strength
Mat eri al

ASTM D 6023 (2007) Standard Test Method for Density

(Unit Weight), Yield, Cenment Content, and
Air Content (Gravinmetric) of Controlled
Low Strength Material (CLSM

ASTM D 6103 (2004) Standard Test Method for Fl ow
Consi stency of Controlled Low Strength
Material (CLSM

April 2012 SECTION 03 22 70.01 13 Page 2



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 145 of 247

1.

Fargo Moorhead Metro Fl ood Reduction Project
CLSM Requirenents for Uility Relocations

2 DESI GN REQUI REMENTS

Controll ed Low Strength Material (CLSM m xture proportion shall consist of
100 pounds or less of portland cenent plus fly ash per cubic yard;

pozzol an; sand; water; and a fluidifier, if required to obtain the required
slunp. The CLSM fill mixture proportion shall have a flow consistency of
nore than 8 inches. The flow consistency shall be determined in accordance
with ASTM D 6103. CLSMfill shall have a conpressive strength of 100 psi

at 28 days. The conpressive strength of the CLSM shall be determined in
accordance with ASTM D 4832 after being made and cured in accordance with
ASTM D 4832. The mixture proportions shall be reported in accordance with
ASTM C 94. If the CLSMis to be placed using a concrete punp, the mxture
proportions shall be designed so that it will not segregate in the punp

i ne under pressure or when there is an interruption in flow

.3 SUBM TTALS

CGovernment approval is required for submttals with a "G' designation;
submittals not having a "G' designation are for information only. Wen
used, a designation following the "G' designation identifies the office
that will review the submttal for the Governnent. Submit the following in
accordance with Section 01 33 00 SUBM TTAL PROCEDURES:

SD-01 Data

On-Site Batching and M xi ng
Wat er Reduci ng

Concrete M xture Proportions

The Contractor shall submt manufacturer's literature fromsuppliers
whi ch denonstrates conpliance with applicable specifications for all
equi pnment and materi al s.

SD- 07 Schedul es
Pl aci ng

The net hods and equi prent for transporting, handling, and depositing
the CLSM backfill and CLSMfill shall be submitted to the Contracting
Oficer prior to the first placenent.

SD-08 Statenents
Concrete M xture Proportions

CLSM mi xture proportions shall be the responsibility of the Contractor
and shall be designed in accordance with the criteria in paragraph
DESI GN REQUI REMENTS.  Ten days prior to placement of CLSM the
Contractor shall subnmit to the Contracting Oficer the mxture
proportions that will produce CLSM of the qualities required. Mxture
proportions shall include the dry weights of cenentitious material (s);
and saturated surface-dry weights of the fine aggregate; the
guantities, types, and nanes of admi xtures; and quantity of water per
cubic yard of concrete. Al materials included in the mxture
proportions shall be of the same type and fromthe same source as

will be used on the project.

April 2012 SECTION 03 22 70.01 13 Page 3



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 146 of 247

Fargo Moorhead Metro Fl ood Reduction Project
CLSM Requirenents for Uility Relocations

SD- 09 Reports

CLSM M xture Proportions Tests

Applicable test reports shall be submitted to verify that the CLSM

nm xture proportions selected will produce CLSM of the quality
specified. The results of all tests and inspections conducted at the
project site shall be reported informally at the end of each shift and
in witing weekly and shall be delivered to the Contracting Oficer
within 3 days after the end of each weekly reporting period.

SD- 13 Certificates

Cement

Cenentitious Material will be accepted on the basis of a manufacturer's
certificate of conpliance.

Aggr egat es
Aggregates will be accepted on the basis of certificate of conpliance
that the aggregates neet the requirenents of the specifications under
which it is furnished.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.1 MATERI ALS

2.1.1 Ready- M xed Concrete

Ready- nmi xed concrete shall conformto ASTM C 94, except as otherw se
speci fi ed.

2.1.1.1 Vol unetric Batching and Continuous M Xxi ng
Vol unetric batching and continuous m xing shall conformto ASTM C 685.
2.1.1.2 On-Site Batching and M xi ng
The Contractor shall have the option of using an on-site batching and
m xing facility. The nmethod of neasuring materials, batching operation,
and m xer shall be subnmitted for review by the Contracting Oficer
On-site plant shall conformto the requirenments of either ASTM C 94 or
ASTM C 685.
2.1.2 Portl and Cenent
Portland Cenment shall conformto ASTM C 150, Type | or 11, low alkali.
2.1.3 Pozzol an
Pozzol an shall be Cass For Cfly ash conformng to ASTM C 618.
2.1.4 Sand

Sand shall neet the requirenments of fine aggregate of ASTM C 33/ C 33MN.

April 2012 SECTION 03 22 70.01 13 Page 4



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 147 of 247

Fargo Moorhead Metro Fl ood Reduction Project
CLSM Requirenents for Uility Relocations

2.1.5 Fluidifier

The fluidifier shall give the CLSMfill the follow ng salient
characteristics:

a. must have less than 1 percent bleed water in accordance with
ASTM C 940

b. have an initial set tinme of nore than 5 hours in accordance with
ASTM C 220 nodified by using a Ferioli apparatus

c. have a flow consistency equal to or nore than 8 inches in accordance
with ASTM D 6103

d. have a conpressive strength of 100 psi at 28 days in accordance with
ASTM D 4832

e. maintain a honbgeneous ni xture during punping

1. Quantity of adm xture(s) required in the nmixture proportion is
governed by the salient characteristics specified.

2. The adm xture shall be added as directed by the nanufacturer
in nost cases it added to the CLSMat the job site and m xed for a
m ni mum of 5 minutes at mi xi ng speed.

2.1.6 Wat er

Water shall be potable water that is fresh, clean, and free from sewage,
oil, acid, alkali, salts, or organic natter

2.2 M XI NG AND TRANSPORTI NG

The CLSM shall be m xed and transported in accordance with ASTM C 94.
PART 3 EXECUTI ON
3.1 TRENCH PREPARATI ON

Once the trench has been dug it shall be cleaned of all |oose material and
debris to the satisfaction of the Contracting Oficer before any CLMS fil
is placed. The new utility pipeline shall be placed on firmground at the
bottom of the trench and a minimumof 1 foot of CLSMfill shall be placed
above the top of the pipeline. The pipeline shall be securely anchored to
maintain its position and prevent it from any nmovenent during placenment of
t he CLSM

3.2 PLACEMENT
3.2.1 CGener a

CLSM pl acenent shall not be permtted when, in the opinion of the
Contracting O ficer, weather conditions prevent proper placenent. Wen
CLSM i s mixed and/or transported by a truck m xer, the CLSM shall be
delivered to the site of the work and di scharge shall be conpleted wthin
1-1/2 hours (or 45 minutes when the placing tenperature is 85 degrees F or
greater unless a retarding adm xture is used). The fluidifier shall not be
added to the Ready M x trucks until they have arrived onsite. The
fluidifier shall be added to each truck at the proper dosage rate and mi xed

April 2012 SECTION 03 22 70.01 13 Page 5



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 148 of 247

Fargo Moorhead Metro Fl ood Reduction Project
CLSM Requirenents for Uility Relocations

for 5 minutes and no nore than 15 minutes before it is placed. CLSM shal
be conveyed fromthe mxer to point of placement as rapidly as practicable
by met hods whi ch prevent segregation or |oss of ingredients.

3.2.2 Consol i dati on

Consol i dation of the CLSMwi |l not be required.
3.3 TESTS
3.3.1 Gener a

The individuals who sanple and test CLSM as required in this specification
shal | have denonstrated a know edge and ability to performthe necessary
test procedures equivalent to ACI m ni mum gui delines for certification of
concrete Field Testing Technicians, Gade I.

3.3.2 I nspection Details and Frequency of Testing
3.3.2.1 Fl ow Consi st ency

Fl ow consi stency shall be checked once during each shift that CLSMis
produced for each class of concrete required. Sanples shall be obtained in
accordance with ASTM D 5971 and tested in accordance with ASTM D 6103.
Whenever a test result is outside the specifications linmts, the CLSM shal
not be delivered to the placenment and an adjustnent should be nade in the
bat ch wei ghts of water and fine aggregate. The adjustnents are to be made
so that the water-cenment ratio does not exceed that specified in the
submitted CLSM m xture proportion.

3.3.2.2 Conpr essi ve- Strengt h Speci nens

At | east one set of test specimens shall be made each day on CLSM pl aced
during the day or every 10 cubic yards placed. Additional sets of test
cylinders shall be nade, as directed by the Contracting O ficer, when the
m xture proportions are changed or when | ow strengths are detected. A
random sanpl i ng plan shall be devel oped by the Contractor and approved by
the Contracting O ficer prior to the start of construction. The plan shal
assure that sanmpling is acconplished in a conpletely random and unbi ased
manner. A set of test specinens for concrete with strength as specified in
par agr aph DESI GN REQUI REMENTS shal | consi st of six cylinders, one tested at
7 days, one tested at 14 days, and two tested at 28 days. Two cylinders
shall be tested as directed. Test specinens shall be nolded and cured in
accordance with ASTM D 4832 and tested in accordance with ASTM D 4832. Al
conmpressive strength tests shall be reported imrediately to the Contracting
Oficer.

3.3.3 Density
At | east one set of test specimens shall be made each day on CLSM pl aced
during the day or every 20 cubic yards placed. A random sanpling plan
shal | be devel oped by the Contractor and approved by the Contracting
Oficer prior to the start of construction. The plan shall assure that
sanpling is acconplished in a conpletely random and unbi ased nanner. Test
procedures and cal cul ati ons shall be in accordance with ASTM D 6023.

3.3.4 Reports

The Contractor shall prepare reports of all tests and inspections conducted

April 2012 SECTION 03 22 70.01 13 Page 6



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 149 of 247
Fargo Moorhead Metro Fl ood Reduction Project
CLSM Requirenents for Uility Relocations

at the project site.

-- End of Section --

April 2012 SECTION 03 22 70.01 13 Page 7



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 150 of 247

ATTACHMENT 3

Guidelines for Installation of Utilities Beneath Corps of Engineers Levees Using Horizontal
Directional Drilling



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 151 of 247

ERDC/GSL TR-02-9

Guidelines for Installation of Utilities Beneath
Corps of Engineers Levees Using Horizontal
Directional Drilling

Carlos A. Latorre, Lillian D. Wakeley, and June 2002
Patrick J. Conroy

7))
()
| -
-
+—
&
-
| -
)
0p
O
c
©
©
&
C
L
&
)
-’
@
)
@)

>
| -
@)
e
©
S
@)
@)
©
—

Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 152 of 247

The contents of this report are not to be used for advertising,
publication, or promotional purposes. Citation of trade names
does not constitute an official endorsement or approval of the use
of such commercial products.

The findings of this report are not to be construed as an official
Department of the Army position, unless so designated by other
authorized documents.

@ PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 153 of 247

ERDC/GSL TR-02-9
June 2002

Guidelines for Installation of Utilities Beneath
Corps of Engineers Levees Using Horizontal
Directional Drilling

by Carlos A. Latorre, Lillian D. Wakeley

Geotechnical and Structures Laboratory

U.S. Army Engineer Research and Development Center
3909 Halls Ferry Road

Vicksburg, MS 39180-6199

Patrick J. Conroy

U.S. Army Engineer District, St. Louis
1222 Spruce Street
St. Louis, MO 63103-2833

Final report

Approved for public release; distribution is unlimited

Prepared for U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Washington, DC 20314-1000



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 154 of 247

Contents

PIETACE .. e aare s iv
L—INErOTUCTION ...t 1
BACKGIOUNG .....ovieieiice ettt 1
Horizontal Directional Drilling Method............ccccoovieiiiiiee e, 1
Problem 1dentifiCation ..........ccoovoiiiiiiiieee e 3
(@] oL 1S SSRURSR 3
Potential BENETILS .......ooeiiieiiicreeeee s 3
Potential ProbDIEM .......ccoiiiiiie s 4
2—HDD Guidelines and SpecifiCations...........cccevveveiieie i 5
Permit Application Submittal..........c.cccovveiiiiiic e, 5
SOIl INVESTIGALIONS ... 6
SOOI ANAIYSIS...vecvecie e 6
Determination of soil iNVestigations...........cccocveveieiiiicc e 7
Preconstruction and Site EValuation.............ccccocviiinininninnnee e 8
Installation REQUIFEMENTS.......ccviviiiiiice ettt 10
CONSIABIALIONS ...ttt ettt 11
Permittee/contractor responsSibilities ...........ccocvevveiivii i 11
Additional REQUITEMENTS. ........ccveiiiieiiecie s 15
Aditional PEIMILS.....ccviiiei e 15
Bonding and certification requirements ............ccoccvvveveiesiese e 15
Drilling OPErationS.........ccveiveieiiiiieiese e ste st e e ste et sre e 16
Equipment setup and site [ayout............ccceeveviiiiicviiiece e 17
Drilling and back-reaming...........cccoovevieiieiiiiiie e 17
Drilling Fluid - Collection and Disposal Practices..........c.ccccoveverveieneinenenn, 18
Tie-INS and CONNEBCLIONS.......ccveieiiiiiiie e s 19
Alignment and Minimum Separation ..........c.ccccevvvveiieiiesiece e 19
Break-Away PUulling Head............cccoiiiiiiii e 20
ProteCtive COatINGS.......vivveiieiieiesie ettt st e ane 21
Site Restoration and Postconstruction Evaluation............cc.ccocveveneneieinnne. 21
RETEIBNCES ...t 22
Appendix A: Recommended Guidelines for Installation of Pipelines Beneath
Levees Using Horizontal Directional Drilling ...........cccocvvvveviiivieic e Al
SF 298



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 155 of 247

Preface

The work documented in this report was performed during May through
October 2001 as part of the technology transfer component of the Geotechnical
Engineering Research Program (GTERP), specifically in the work unit entitled
Applications of Trenchless Technology to Civil Works. Funding for preparation
and publication of this report was provided by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
as part of its ongoing support of civil works research. Mr. Carlos Latorre,

U.S. Army Engineer Research and Development Center (ERDC), Geotechnical
and Structures Laboratory (GSL), is principal investigator for this work unit. The
research team also includes Dr. Lillian D. Wakeley, GTERP Manager (ERDC,
GSL), Mr. Patrick J. Conroy, U.S. Army Engineer District (USAED), St. Louis
(MVS), and Mrs. Nalini Torres (ERDC, GSL). Mr. Jim Chang, CECW, is
GTERP Technical Monitor.

The guidelines and specifications provided in this report are based on work
completed previously by Dr. R. David Bennett, formerly GSL, ERDC; and
Mr. Joseph M. Morones, State of California, Department of Transportation; and
modified with their cooperation by Mr. Latorre. This report was prepared by
Messrs. Latorre and Conroy and Dr. Wakeley. The authors gratefully acknowl-
edge technical review of this document by Mr. George Sills, USAED, Vicksburg,
Mr. Pete Cali, USAED, New Orleans; and Mr. John Wise, USAED, Fort Worth.

This report was completed at ERDC under the general supervision of
Dr. Wakeley, Chief, Engineering Geology and Geophysics Branch, Dr. Robert L.
Hall, Chief, Geosciences and Structures Division, GSL, and Dr. Michael J.
O’Connor, Director, GSL.

At the time of publication of this report, Dr. James R. Houston was Director
of ERDC, and COL John W. Morris Ill, EN, was Commander and Executive
Director.

The contents of this report are not to be used for advertising, publication,
or promotional purposes. Citation of trade names does not constitute an
official endorsement or approval of the use of such commercial products.



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 156 of 247

1 Introduction

Background

Early methods of installing pipelines and utilities across rivers and streams
involved excavation of trenches. After the placement of the pipeline, the trenches
were backfilled to protect the pipeline from hazards. These early dredged cross-
ings were generally sited at the channel crossing of the thalweg between bends of
the river. Here the river is generally a wide, shallow rectangle. This location is
chosen because of its hydraulic stability and the economic limitation of the
dredging equipment.

In and across the U.S. Army Engineer Division, Mississippi Valley (MVD),
lies the heart of the pipeline transmission network of the United States. Hundreds
of individual pipelines traverse from Texas and out of the Gulf of Mexico across
the numerous rivers, bayous, and wetlands of Louisiana to service the northeast
population centers on the Atlantic coast. Along the leveed banks of the lower
Mississippi River, pipeline crossings exist between almost every bendway. The
crossings of these earthen flood control structures present a difficult and expen-
sive construction problem resulting from concerns about the integrity of the levee
which may be subjected to sliding, piping, and erosion failures.

Horizontal Directional Drilling Method

In the early 1970s, a new process was introduced to install pipelines by use
of horizontal directional drilling (HDD) techniques acquired from the oil and gas
industry. The method has steadily grown to achieve worldwide acceptance and
has been used in over 3,000 installations totaling over 1,288 km (800 miles) of
pipelines. Today pipeline installations increasingly rely upon HDD technology as
the primary method for crossings of watercourses, wetlands, utility corridors,
roads, railroads, shorelines, environmental areas, and urban areas.

The placement of pipelines by the HDD method requires the drilling of a
guided pilot bore, generally using a 7.3- to 11.43-cm- (2-7/8- to 4-1/2-in.-) diam
drill pipe. At the lead, or downhole, end of the pilot string is a fluid powered
cutting tool. The cutting tool is either a drill motor to which a bit is connected or
a jet bit with nozzles. Drilling fluid is pumped through the string, and fluid
causes the motor to rotate which turns the bit to cut the hole. With jet bits, the
velocity from the jet nozzle erodes the hole in front of the drill pipe. Located

Chapter 1 Introduction



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 157 of 247

behind the drill head is a section of the drill pipe with a small bend or angular
deviation. This section, known as a bent sub or bent housing, allows the motor or
jet nozzle to be directed. A steering tool is latched onto a locking tool on the drill
pipe. In this steering tool are a magnetometer and other devices to determine the
azimuth, inclination, and orientation of the tool or tool face. Position determina-
tions are made, and the data from the steering tool are plotted in the field to
determine the profile and alignment of the bore. Analysis of this position plot is
then used to determine drilling progress and path. At a desired location, the pilot
drill pipe exits the ground. The pilot bore is then enlarged by pulling reaming
tools back through the bore. Once this operation is completed, the pipeline or
conduit is attached to the drill pipe and pulled back through the predrilled bore.
This is accomplished as the drill pipe is removed, joint by joint, from the drilled
path until the pipeline reaches the ground surface at the entry end of the bore.

One of the primary parameters in horizontal directional drilling is the drilling
fluid or mud. The drilling mud is usually comprised of a bentonite and water
mixture with the main function to power the downhole cutting tool used to open
the bore. Secondary functions of the drilling mud are to serve as a lubricant for
the pipeline during installation and, in cases of rock or hard ground bores, to
remove cuttings from the bore.

The use of HDD has been restricted, in part, by major misunderstandings of
how the HDD process actually functions. It is assumed by many that it is similar
to well drilling or tunneling in that an open bore is required. This is true only in
hard geologic materials such as rock. The majority of HDD pipeline crossings
installed to date have been performed in soft ground comprised chiefly of alluvial
deposits of silts, sand, and clay. In these types of soils, the process begins with a
small pilot bore from which various cutters are inserted to loosen the soil as it is
mixed into a slurry by injection of the drilling mud. Once this slurry pathway has
been made large enough, generally 25.4 to 30.5 cm (10 to 12 in.) greater than the
diameter of the pipeline, the installation of the pipeline commences by pulling
the pipeline back through the soft slurry pathway. Some of the in situ soil and
fluid are then compressed into the formation, and the remainder of the soil is
actually pumped out of the path.

The information in this report represents some of the experiences of the
Corps of Engineer (CE) Districts involving HDD for installation of utilities under
levees. The experience of the U.S. Army Engineer District (USAED), St. Louis,
in dealing with installation of communications systems was identified as having
wide applicability to the Corps. Engineering documentation from two St. Louis
District projects, the set of guidelines presented in “Installation of Pipelines
Beneath Levees Using Horizontal Directional Drilling” (Staheli et al. 1998),
Engineer Manual (EM) 1110-2-1913 (Headquarters, Department of the Army
(HQDOA) 2000), and the State of California Department of Transportation
(CalTrans) Encroachment Permits, “Guidelines and Specifications for Horizontal
Directional Drilling Installations” (Morones 2000), provided the basis for this
report. A paper on the subject was presented at the Corps Infrastructure Systems
Conference in August 2001.

2 Chapter 1 Introduction



Board Packet 2024-06-27 Page 158 of 247

Problem Identification

Although horizontal directional drilling could offer cost-effective, safe alter-
natives to installing pipelines with open trenching, the CE has no standard guide-
lines allowing the installation of pipelines with this construction method. As a
result, permitting policies are extremely varied and some districts strictly prohibit
the use of this technique. While recommended guidelines for pipeline installation
using HDD were developed for use by the CE Districts through this work unit
back in 1998, as part of a lengthy and detailed EM, the guidelines were not
readily recognized by permitting offices as applicable to the questions they face.
Also, there is growing pressure on Corps offices particularly by communications
companies to install cables under levees.

Objectives

The objectives are to provide and distribute this information to targeted
potential users like the CE District permitting offices and engineers that receive
applications from utility companies to install utilities under levees. This report
addresses those questions and helps CE offices with the growing pressure they
are receiving from private companies to allow them to install cables/pipelines
under levees. These guidelines are presented in a quick and organized manner
that will provide criteria by which to evaluate proposals (e.g., application review,
approving, disapproving, and/or making recommendations) for levee crossings,
beneath rivers, and within levee rights-of-way using HDD techniques without
endangering the levees; and the use of HDD for pipeline installation in areas
where the installation technique might be applicable and capable of providing a
tremendous cost savings to the Corps of Engineers and the pipeline industry.
These guidelines will also help to demonstrate that, very often, these techniques
offer substantial economic and operational advantages over current practices.
Last but not least, these guidelines will help us stay involved in the development
of this fast and fairly new emerging technology.

Potential Benefits

The pipeline industry would realize a tremendous benefit from the use of
HDD in crossing of flood control levees. This benefit would include significant
cost reduction in construction and maintenance presently required for levees and
adjacent road crossings such as bridges, concrete boxes, earthen cover, and
ramps. The use of the technique could also benefit the Corps of Engineers by:

(a) elimina